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Financial Summary

S 5 W 2

SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET i@ miSE| D 2 D EW A

Revenue from external

customers

REAIIMBERZBA
2023 2022
—ECHF TEC 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Mainland China AR 1,216,564 154,679
Hong Kong BB 9 305
Total Jakey 1,216,573 154,984

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, total T AREEEREFRAT([EAT ) REME
equity, share capital, results and other financial information of DINGYI NEl(HE ERE DR BEIRAFEE=-RA=1T—H
GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries IEFEZREE  BaE - Bks  BRE - FER
collectively, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March for the last five EA B E RN o

years.

Financials (HK$ Million) MEBEB (E%BET) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—B=§ —T--F —E--& C—E-TEFE —E-AFE

Total assets BEE 3,945 4,416 3,956 2,788 2,827
Total liabilities =N 2,688 2,942 2,482 1,572 1,296
Total equity oy 1,257 1,475 1,474 1,216 1,531
Shareholders’ funds BRES 1,257 1,475 1,474 1,216 1,531
Share capital B

—in number (Million) —#E(EER) 7,357 7,357 7,357 7,357 7,328

—in value —HE 74 74 74 74 73
Revenue WA 1,217 155 226 185 271
Profit/(loss) attrioutable to the  AARHEHE AEEEF]/

owners of the Company (E18) 5 (101) 43 (348) 213)
Per Share Basis (HK cents) SBEXR(E(l)
Earnings/(loss) BFl/(&18)

- Basic —HAK 0.06 (1.38) 0.58 (4.75) (3.00)

- Diluted —#E 0.06 (1.38) 0.58 (4.75) (3.00)
Dividends e - - - - -
Net asset value EEFE 17.09 20.04 20.03 16.53 20.90
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Corporate Information

Eyegs

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation Zhanjiang Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 2703, 27/F
Convention Plaza — Office Tower
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

AGENT IN BERMUDA

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Standard Limited

17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre
No. 16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 508

WEBSITE
http://www.dingyi.hk
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By abiding the corporate spirit of “seizing early opportunities, pursuing
excellence, progressing proactively and forging ahead innovatively”,
over the years, we have been adhering to the industry intrinsic value as
the core of our investment philosophy. We believe all investment values
are built on the growth and success of business operation. We applied
the comprehensive investment evaluation and management system to
select and invest in those enterprises that have high growth potential
and solid business in their respective industry sector. Meanwhile,
we also worked closely with the management teams of prominent
enterprises, seeking mutual development to maximize our own
investment value through the joint growth with the investees.

Like in the past, we continue to move forward dependably in achieving
to “leap into the world with our foothold in China and become a
professional investment institute with international competitiveness
focusing on scalable industry investment”. Apart from our existing
securities trading, loan financing, properties development and other
businesses, we persevered unremittingly to make the best use
of various resources and channels to proactively seek significant
opportunities that are suitable for enterprise development, so as to
achieve growth for the Group in repaying the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) for their long-term support.

During the past year, the Company devoted much time to continue
exploring different investment opportunities proactively. In addition,
the management team did some research in different regions in the
world to explore and study other investment opportunities in resources
and energy projects, properties development, financial technology,
pharmaceutical and ocean industry. The Company is confident
about the prospect of such investment projects. We will notify our
Shareholders important information whenever is available.

=4
Acting Chairman’s Statement
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Acting Chairman’s Statement

By

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 was mainly
attributable to (i) the increase in revenue of properties development
business recognised upon the customers obtaining control of the
completed property for sales of which the sales proceeds were
recognised as contract liabilities (i.e. deposits received from customers)
in previous financial year; and (ii) the non-cash recognition of the
reversal of impairment loss for the expected credit losses of loan and
interest receivables.

In March 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of the 100%
indirect equity interest in Xintai Investment Company Limited*
ISR ERR A R]) (“Xintai”). Xintai is principally engaged in the
development, operation and investment of property. Xintai also holds
One Parkview* (2 & — 5% ), a complex land use development which
is located at Chikan District, Zhanjiang, Guangdong Province, the
PRC (the “Properties”). The Properties comprises of three phases, (i)
phase | comprises of two blocks of residential buildings with a number
of retail shops, car parks and facilities; (i) phase Il comprises of four
blocks of residential buildings with a number of retail shops, car parks
and facilities; and (i) phase lll comprises of ten blocks of residential
buildings with a number of retail shops, car parks and facilities. The
Group has obtained pre-sales permit for certain blocks of the Phase I
of One Parkview project starting from June 2020 and is commencing
the pre-sales under the pre-sales permits. The Company is very
optimistic about the revenue and profit to be brought by the property
development industry in which it will engage in the PRC in future.

The COVID-19 outbreak has resulted in an extremely complicated
external environment with lots of uncertainties. However, the Group’s
business and operation were not adversely impacted or disrupted by
COVID-19 pandemic for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Group will
implement proactive epidemic prevention measures to ensure the health
and safety of its employees and customers. The Group will continue to
monitor the developments of the COVID-19 outbreak closely, assess
and react actively to its impacts on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

For identification purpose only
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In the future, the Group will continue to explore more investment
opportunities, especially in new energy, finance, ocean industry and
property development.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
and also my sincere thanks to all stakeholders who had made
valuable contributions to the Group this year. They include our loyal
Shareholders, fellow directors of the Company (the “Directors”), our
business partners, our steadfast customers, and those hardworking
and dedicated staff who have longed been supporting us.

Reward Others While Enriching Ourselves, Thus Enlightening Dingyi!

SU Xiaonong
Acting Chairman

Acting Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in securities trading, loan financing,
properties development and other businesses.

The Group’s revenue from its continuing operations for the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,217 million or HK$1,062 million
more than that for the previous year. There was a profit for the year
attributable to the Company’s owners of approximately HK$5 million
(2022: loss of approximately HK$101 million). Such turnaround from
loss to profit was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in revenue of
properties development business; and (i) the reversal of allowance for
impairment loss of loan and interest receivables.

The basic and diluted earnings per share was HK0.06 cents as
compared with loss per share of HK1.38 cents last year.

Securities trading

During the year, the Group has been involved in the securities trading
business. The Group had not realised any loss on the disposal of these
listed securities investments during the year (2022: approximately
HK$60,000). The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$18
million (2022: gain of approximately HK$1 million) arising from
changes in the fair value of the listed securities. As a result, the Group
reported a segment loss of approximately HK$18 million (2022: loss of
approximately HK$1 million) during the year. Going forward, the Group
expects that the future performance of the listed securities investments
held by the Group will be volatile and substantially affected by overall
economic environment, equity market conditions, investor sentiment
and the business performance and development of the investee
companies. The Board will closely monitor the performance progress of
the investment portfolio from time to time.

Loan financing

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$141 million (2022: approximately HK$148 million) from loan
financing segment. The Group recorded a reversal of allowance for
impairment of loan and interest receivables of approximately HK$54
million (2022: allowance for impairment of approximately HK$60 million).
As a result, the Group reported a segment profit of approximately
HK$195 million (2022: approximately HK$88 million). The Group will
further develop this segment in order to earn a higher interest income.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Business model

In respect of the loan financing business, the Group targeted on variety
of corporate clients by providing interest bearing short-term loans in
order to meet their liquidity needs. The sources of customers are mainly
referral from former and/or existing customers and third parties.

Source of funding

Currently, the loan financing business finances its operation primarily
from (i) funding from the Group; and (i) operating cash flow generated
from the loan financing business segment. Since commencement of the
business, the loan financing business did not obtain any bank borrowing
and/or financing facility from third party to finance its loan financing
activities.

Scale of business, loan portfolio and customer base

The loan financing business solicits its customers by referral from former
and/or existing customers and third parties.

As at 31 March 2023, loan receivables with the aggregate gross
principal amount of approximately HK$1,837,964,000 and gross
interest receivables amount of approximately HK$131,344,000 were
recorded on the audited financial statements. The interest rates of the
loan receivables ranged from 8% to 15% per annum.

As at 31 March 2023, the principal of loan receivables ranged from
approximately HK$19 million to HK$24 million. The borrowers are
from different industries mainly engaged in innovation of IT technology;
property management; E-commerce; accommodation and catering;
import and export business; trading of building materials; agricultural
products processing; and logistics business. As at 31 March 2023,
all of the loan receivables are unsecured and repayable within twelve
months from the drawdown date with no loan renewal occurred and
booked in our records.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B i B g M

Financial business structure and credit risk
assessment

The loan financing business of the Group is operated by two tiers of
structure, being the Loan Approval Committee (the “Committee”)
as the overseeing team and the Loan Financing Management Team
(the “Loan Team”) as the administrative team responsible to the
Committee. The Committee comprises three senior management of the
Company and is headed by Mr. Wang Xiachua, an executive director of
the Company. The Loan Team comprises two divisions namely the Loan
Financing Unit and the Credit Risk Management Unit, each headed
by a manager (the “Manager’/“Managers”). The Committee and the
Managers of the Loan Team together constitute the core management
of the loan financial business of the Group.

The primary duties of the Loan Financing Unit are to collect and review
borrowing applicants’ background information and preparing summary
of due diligence on the borrowing applicants, resulting in a Loan
Investigation Report confirmed by the Manager of the unit.

The primary duties of the Credit Risk Management Unit are to carry out
credit risk assessment on the borrowing applicants and propose the
post-loan management, resulting in a Project Risk Report confirmed by
the Manager of the unit.

The Committee is responsible for considering the loan applications,
Loan Investigation Report and the Project Risk Report presented by the
Managers.

To achieve a sustainable and balanced development of the Group’s
loan financing business, the core management of the loan financing
business possesses comprehensive range of experience and skill
and expertise covering, inter alia, (i) risk management; (i) legal and
compliance; (jii) project evaluation; and (iv) corporate management. The
Company is of the view that the loan financing management team’s
diversified abilities are adequate to run the Group’s loan financing
business in the sustainable manner.

The loan financing business processes undertaken by the Committee
and the Loan Team involve a series of internal compliance and control
procedures: (i) acceptance of loan applications and Know-Your-Client
assessment; (i) conducting due diligence; (iii) credit risk assessments
and loan approvals; (iv) granting of loans; and (v) post-loan grant review
and collections.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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In the key internal control perspective, the core management of the loan
financing business also considers (i) credit risk; (i) operational risk; and (iii)
legal and compliance risk, when conducting the loan financing business
activities.

Credit risk in particular is considered to be the principal risk inherent
in the loan financing business. Therefore, the loan financing business
has developed a credit risk management system in order to effectively
identify, manage and minimize credit risks in connection with each loan
it grants.

A series of credit risk assessment procedures, such as identity checks,
financial position assessment and public searches, were performed
by the Group before each loan was approved and advanced to the
borrowing customers. In credit assessment, the Company will take into
consideration factors including but not limited to the borrower’s financial
soundness, internal and external credit checking results, and, where
applicable, the availability of any guarantee, collateral and/or other
forms of security. According to the aforesaid credit policies, the head
of the risk management department carries out the credit assessment
procedures with reference to the loan investigation report and the
project risk report.

Subsequent to the drawdown, the Group will regularly review on a
quarterly basis or any time the Committee finds necessary when there
is change of policy or economic climate and update the information
we obtained during the credit assessment procedures. The Group also
actively reviews and monitors the loan repayment status to ensure all
the interests and principal payments made by the borrowers through
bank transfers are punctual and the past due amounts, if any, are
closely followed up.

In the event that the loan repayments are not made on schedule, the
Company would communicate with the borrowers to understand the
reason for default and their latest situation. Based on the situation and
the re-assessment of risk of the loan, the Company would consider
whether a loan re-schedule arrangement or a legal action against the
borrowers would be the best choices for the Company in order to
protect the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The credit policy is reviewed and revised on a regular basis to
incorporate changes in the prevailing market and economic conditions,
legal and regulatory requirements, and other factors the Committee
considers as important.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B i B g M

Operational risk is the risk resulting from inadequate or failed internal
controls and systems, human errors or external events. The loan
financing business has adopted and implemented adequate operational
policies and procedures to cope with the operational risk as follows:

established adequate corporate governance structure with clearly
defined duties of the Committee and senior management;

- established the Committee under the Board and collective
decision making procedures to mitigate the risk relating to
personal judgment or prejudice of a single decision maker in a
loan approval procedure;

- adopted and strictly implemented measures to prevent and
detect potential employee frauds, such as dual investigation and
due diligence process, the policy of separating the investigation
and evaluation of loan applications or risk assessment process
from the approval of loans, multilevel assessments and approval
procedure, on-site visits and inspection, and interviews conducted
by our senior management with the owner or management of the
customers;

- implementing a performance-based compensation scheme for
staff; and

- providing staff with professional training, especially to those who
are responsible for assessment and approval process.

The loan financing business operate in a highly regulated industry that
is subject to continually evolving laws, regulations and policies, and the
loan financing business may be required to make significant changes
to its operations from time to time in order to comply with changes in
these laws, regulations and policies. The Committee together with other
departments involved, advises on legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to the loan financing business as well as the application
restrictions, and initiate legal proceedings against any defaulting
customers.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The Company considers that the loan financing business has put
in place adequate loan approval and assessment and monitoring
procedures. During the year ended 31 March 2023, all loan receivables
are assessed as low risk of default or there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since drawdown, nor there was credit impaired.
The Board considers it has put in place adequate and tight policies
towards its loan financing business. The effectiveness of these policies is
reflected by the fact that all the loans due have been fully settled and no
past due has occurred as of the reporting date.

Loan impairment

Despite that there was no repayment defaults as above mentioned, the
loan impairment was recognised with reference to the expected credit
losses in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
9 Financial Instruments issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the economic downturn
continued due to the continuation of the epidemic which affected
the repayment ability of the borrowers, thus affecting the Group’s
expectation on the borrowers’ repayment ability. Therefore, when
estimating the default rate of loan receivables according to the
accounting standards, the Group would prudently consider a higher
default rate of each borrower during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Besides, the Group based on the borrowers’ current financial status by
communicating with the borrowers, referring to their past and current
repayment records, loan terms, and the value of the collaterals, and will
make further additional independent adjustments, to calculate the loan
impairment.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no loan receivables were
identified as credit impaired nor written off. The Board considers that
the impairment ratio is insignificant, given that the Company has put in
place adequate and tight policies towards its loan financing business.
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Properties development

During the year, the Group has recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$1,076 million (2022: approximately HK$7 million) and segment profit
of approximately HK$75 million (2022: loss of approximately HK$15
million segment loss). The increase in revenue was mainly due to the
increase in revenue of properties development business recognised
upon the customers obtaining control of the completed property for
sales of which the sales proceeds were recognised as contract liabilities
(i.e. deposits received from customers) in previous financial year. The
Group has completed the construction of certain blocks of the Phase
Il of One Parkview project and is commencing the sales of residential
buildings and retail shops. The payment received in advance from
customers for properties sales were recognized in contract liabilities.
The Group anticipates further revenue and positive results from this
segment in the following years upon completion of properties under
development and the sales of completed properties.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of the
Group’s property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations of
such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees terminate upon the
earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will
generally be available within a period of two years upon the completion
of guarantee registration; or (i) the satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the
purchasers of properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued interest and
penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of
grant of the mortgages. The Directors consider that the likelihood of
default in payments by purchasers is minimal and in case of default in
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties can cover
the repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals together with
the accrued interest and penalty and therefore the fair value of these
financial guarantees is immaterial.

As at 31 March 2023, guarantees given to banks for mortgage

facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties amounted to
approximately HK$11,394,000 in total (31 March 2022: Nil).
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Other businesses - trading of wine

The Group has kept certain quantities of fine wines. The stocks will be
offered to sell when the market prices are favorable such that the Group
can obtain a good return on the trading. At present, the stocks are kept
in the wine cellar situated in Hong Kong.

Strategic cooperation

On 19 April 2022, the Company entered into a strategic cooperation
framework agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with
State Power Investment Group Overseas Investment Co., Ltd.*
(FEREBEHICEEEFIMNEEABR AT in respect of developing a long-
term cooperation in the fields of energy trade, new energy projects,
financial investment, based on the principles of complementarity of
advantages, mutual benefit and common development (the “Strategic
Cooperation”). During the year ended 31 March 2023, the activities
contemplated under the Strategic Cooperation have not achieved
significant progress because of the global stagnant market condition.
For more details about the Framework Agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2022.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2023, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 7,356,783,015 (31 March 2022: 7,356,783,015) of
HK$0.01 each and its issued share capital was HK$73,567,830 (31
March 2022: HK$73,567,830).

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company during the
year.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 June 2023, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with a subscriber (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to issue, and the Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, the convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$980,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”)
convertible into the Company’s shares at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.40 (the “Conversion Price”) per conversion share (the
“Conversion Share”).

* For identification purpose only
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Assuming the exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching to
the Convertible Bonds at the initial Conversion Price of HK$0.40 per
Conversion Share, a total of 2,450,000,000 Conversion Shares will be
issued, representing approximately 33.30% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company and approximately 24.98% of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of the Conversion
Shares. The Conversion Shares will be allotted and issued under a
specific mandate (the “Specific Mandate”) to be approved by the
independent shareholders at a special general meeting.

The subscription price of the Convertible Bonds in the sum of
HK$980,000,000 shall be settled by the Subscriber by setting it
off against the redemption money payable by the Company to the
Subscriber in the equivalent sum of HK$980,000,000 for redemption of
the convertible bonds expired on 26 March 2023.

The Convertible Bonds are subject to conditions precedents including
but not limited to independent shareholders’ approval at general
meeting.

For further details of the Convertible Bonds, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 23 June 2023.

STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 outbreak has resulted in an extremely complicated
external environment with lots of uncertainties. However, the Group’s
business and operation were not adversely impacted or disrupted by
COVID-19 pandemic for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Group will
implement proactive epidemic prevention measures to ensure the health
and safety of its employees and customers. The Group will continue to
monitor the developments of the COVID-19 outbreak closely, assess
and react actively to its impacts on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

Apart from the existing businesses of securities trading, loan financing,
properties development and other businesses, the Group will continue
to explore other potential investment opportunities with reasonable
returns that meet the Company’s criteria. This will not only strengthen
our core business but also increase the shareholders’ values. The
Group has been exploring some investment opportunities in resources
and energy projects, properties development, financial technology,
pharmaceutical and ocean industry.
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue increased from approximately HK$155 million in
2022 to approximately HK$1,217 million in 2023, mainly because of a
increase of revenue in properties development segment.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit increased by approximately HK$81 million, or 52.8%,
from approximately HK$153 million in 2022 to approximately HK$234
million in 2023. The gross profit margin decreased from approximately
98.8% in 2022 to approximately 19.2% in 2023.

OTHER INCOME

Other income decreased to approximately HK$1 million this year
(2022: approximately HK$1.5 million). The decrease was mainly due to
decrease in bank interest income for the year ended 31 March 2023.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS AND
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling and distribution costs decreased to approximately HK$8 million
(2022: approximately HK$11 million) which was mainly due to the
decrease in marketing expenses during the year ended 31 March 2023.
General and administrative expenses decreased to approximately
HK$33 million (2022: approximately HK$43 million) which was mainly
due to the cost saving resulted by an implementation of cost control
during the year under review.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment decreased to approximately HK$9
million in this review year (2022: approximately HK$11 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, representing equity securities listed in Hong
Kong, Shanghai and London, of approximately HK$15 million
(2022: approximately HK$33 million). The Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$18 million (2022: loss of approximately HK$1 million)
arising from changes in fair value of listed securities. Since there was
no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held by the Group
valued more than 5% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 March
2028, there were no significant investments held by the Group.
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances increased from approximately HK$152 million
in last year to approximately HK$206 million this year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s net assets attributable to the owners
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$1,257 million (2022:
HK$1,475 million), an decrease of approximately HK$218 million when
compared with that of 2022.

As at 31 March 2023, total debt to equity ratio was 1.00 (2022:
0.61) and net debt to equity ratio was 0.84 (2022: 0.51), which were
expressed as a percentage of total borrowings and total borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents respectively, over the total equity of
approximately HK$1,257 million (2022: HK$1,475 million).

BANK BORROWING, CONVERTIBLE BONDS
OTHER BONDS AND PROMISSORY NOTE

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s bank borrowing, convertible bonds,
other bonds and promissory note amounted to approximately Nil, Nil,
HK$1,260 million and Nil respectively (31 March 2022: approximately
Nil, HK$893 million, HK$279 million and HK$6 million respectively). The
increase in the other bonds was because the conversion rights attached
to the convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$980,000,000
issued by the Company to a former director (Mr. Li Kwong Yuk) on 26
March 2018 at the initial conversion price of HK$0.80 per conversion
share expired on 26 March 2023, and as such the relevant convertible
bonds have become a straight debt and no longer been classified as
convertible debt securities but other bonds.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had no charge on assets.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s assets are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), United States dollars (“USD”) and
Australian dollars (“AUD”). Considering the exchange rates between
these currencies are relatively stable, the Group believed that the
corresponding exposure to RMB, USD and AUD exchange rates
fluctuation was relatively limited. The Group does not undertake any
derivative financial instruments or hedging instruments. The Group will
constantly review the economic situation and its foreign currency risk
profile, and continues to actively monitor foreign exchange exposure to
minimise the impact of any adverse currency movement.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately HK$691,526,000 (2022: approximately
HK$262,578,000).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimise the cost of
funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralised. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in HKD, USD, RMB
or AUD. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments, the Group will consider new
financing channels while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Set out below are the biographical details of the current Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Su Xiaonong (“Mr. Su”)

Mr. Su, aged 59, joined the Company as executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) on
27 October 2011. He was appointed as the Acting Chairman of the
Board and the chairman of the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 30 December 2022. He is also a member of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
directors of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Su graduated
from East China College of Political Science and Law in 1986. He has
been director or management of various venture capital, private equity
and investment consultancy companies in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), including & 3! i1 B 2% 1& & & 12 A BR 2 & (Shenzhen
Gofar Investment Management Co., Ltd.*), during the period from April
2003 to November 2007. Mr. Su currently works at 7 3Il 75 71 B 5 %
B AR AR A A (Shenzhen Union Venture Capital Consulting Co.,
Ltd.") and AT 518 & EI%E B R A 7 (Shenzhen Dingyi Wantong
Investment Co., Ltd.*). He is also a partner and vice president of &I
BIEERRE R E(ERAE) (Shenzhen Dingyi Venture Capital L.P*).

Mr. Wang Xiaohua (“Mr. Wang”)

Mr. Wang, aged 61, graduated from the Nankai University with
a bachelor’'s degree in Economics and a master’s degree in
International Economics and Trade. He has more than 30 years’
experience in investment banking and equity investment fund.
He served as a lecturer in the Faculty of Economics in the Nankai
University from July 1986 to October 1996 and worked as a senior
manager in the investment banking department of CITIC Securities
Company Limited from May 1996 to December 1998. Mr. Wang
joined EIITHAIFT1% B £ B AR A F] (Shenzhen Capital Group Co.,
Limited) in August 1999 and currently serves as a senior investment
manager of that company. He was a director of EMNim RIZ/REE
Fh&fn AR AT (Guangzhou Ruili Kormee Automatic Electronics Co.,
Ltd.) (being a subsidiary of Imsx/ S£E AR A7) (Ruili Group Co., Ltd)
which was previously listed on NASDAQ) and J&3IITT E 7] 2 £ PR
BBRAF] (Shenzhen Ecomann Biotechnology Co., Ltd.) until 19 May
2022.

For identification purpose only
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Mr. Ho Cheong Hang Edmond (“Mr. Ho”)

Mr. Ho, aged 37, graduated from the University College London
with a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering and from the University
of Warwick with a master’s degree in Electronic Commerce. He
possesses solid experience in intelligent digital commerce business,
assets and property management and gas station operation. He was
the chairman and general manager of /&Y EEIEE T AR A
(Shenzhen Gaozhizhe Digital Electronics Company Limited*) from 2008
to 2013 and the chairman of &I B EEEEBR AR (Shenzhen
Letian Assets Management Company Limited*) from 2013 to 2015. Mr.
Ho has been serving as a director of J& I T3 R £ % B 0 i 3k 5 IR A
&] (Shenzhen Yuanxiang Caitian Gas Station Company Limited*) since
2015.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (“Mr. Chow”)

Mr. Chow, aged 55, joined the Company as independent non-
executive Director on 27 October 2011. He is also chairman of the
Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chow
has accumulated years of working experience in auditing, accounting
and corporate finance areas. He holds a Master Degree in Professional
Accounting. Mr. Chow is a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has worked for
various private and listed companies at senior management level. He is
currently serving in a senior management role in a consultancy services
company. He served as an independent non-executive director of
China Assurance Finance Group Limited (a company listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8090 and was delisted on 12 March
2021) from December 2011 to March 2021.

For identification purpose only
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Mr. Cao Kuangyu (“Mr. Cao”)

Mr. Cao, aged 73, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 12 December 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Cao holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from the University of Hunan and
a Master Degree in Financial Management from the University of
London. Mr. Cao has extensive experience in the areas of banking
and finance. He worked in Bank of China, Hunan Province branch
for the period from July 1981 to February 1996 and his last position
was the deputy president of the branch. For the period from February
1996 to September 1999, Mr. Cao was the deputy general manager
of Bank of China, Singapore branch. For the period from September
1999 to September 2003, he was the president of China Citic Bank,
Shenzhen branch. Then he worked as the managing director of the
investment banking division of BOCI Asia Limited from September 2003
to September 2007. Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive
director of New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (stock code: 472)
and Dongwu Cement International Limited (stock code: 695), both of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was
an independent non-executive director of Macrolink Capital Holdings
Limited (stock code: 758), which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from January 2013 to June 2021.

Mr. Ip Chi Wai (“Mr. Ip”)

Mr. Ip, aged 55, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 31 March 2016. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Degree of a Bachelor of Laws. He is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong
and has more than 20 years of experience in the legal profession. Mr.
Ip is currently an independent non-executive director of Asia Standard
International Group Limited (stock code: 129) and Wealthy Way Group
Limited (stock code: 3848), both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director
of Asia Standard Hotel Group Limited (stock code: 292), which is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from 11 December 2003 to
21 April 2023.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Ji Jiaqi (“Mr. Ji”)

Mr. Ji, aged 56, joined the Company as executive president on 20
February 2017. Mr. Ji has over 20 years of experience in scientific
research and practical work on risk control and investment operation
in financial market. Mr. Ji holds a Bachelor's Degree in Science from
South China Normal University, a Postgraduate Degree in Economics
from the Communist Party School in Guangdong and a Doctoral
Degree in Finance from College of Economics of Jinan University.
He has published numerous articles in major periodicals relating to
financial and public management sectors. He once worked in provincial
governments, universities, and engaged in the bankruptcy works of
(& 3 B R 12 5E % & A 7)) Guangdong International Trust Investment
Corporation* and reorganization of Guangdong Holdings Limited.
He is currently an adjunct professor of Tsinghua University and Jinan
University respectively, and also a distinguished visiting professor of
Central University of Finance and Economics.

Ms. Kuang Yating (“Ms. Kuang”)

Ms. Kuang, aged 33, joined the Company as an investment analyst
on 3 January 2017. Ms. Kuang has 5 years of experience in data
analysis, corporate finance and investment management. Ms. Kuang
holds a Dual Bachelor’'s Degree in Management and Law from Jinan
University, a Master’'s Degree in Finance from University of Bath,
England. She was granted the international mathematical modelling
award. She obtained the Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and
Financial Risk Manager (FRM) Licenses and is a member of the HK
Society of Financial Analysts. She worked at the group business unit
of China Construction Bank Corporation, specializing in constructing
performance models for banks and provision of investment and
financing proposals for clients.

For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and has introduced corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 March
2023 except for certain deviations disclosed in this report.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board leads to establish, promote and continually reinforce the
desired corporate culture of the Company which is underpinned by
our corporate values of committing highest standard of business
ethics and integrity. Our sound corporate culture reaches all levels of
the Group, and aligns with the Company’s mission, corporate values
and strategies.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code (the “Model Code”) for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The Company has made specific enquiries to all the Directors and they
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2023.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Company is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
as a whole. The Board has delegated the power to oversee the daily
operational matters of the Group to the management of the Company
under the supervision of the Board.
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The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its
power in an informed manner, all members of the Board have full and
timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and the
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

Appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against the Directors and senior management of the Group
arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this report,
the Board comprised the following Directors and their respective roles
are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
(resigned on 30 December 2022)
Mr. Su Xiaonong (Acting Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Xiaohua
Mr. Ho Cheong Hang Edmond (appointed on 30 December 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai
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The biographical details of each current Director are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” in this annual report.
Their roles and functions are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. A
balanced composition of executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors also generates a strong independent element on
the Board, which allows independent and objective decision making
process for the best interest of the Company. The Company will review
the composition of the Board regularly to ensure the Board possesses
the appropriate and necessary expertise, skills and experience to meet
the needs of the business development of the Group.

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki has served on the Board for more than nine
years. He has clearly demonstrated diligence and his willingness to
exercise independent judgement and provides objective opinion to
the management of the Company. There is no evidence that length
of tenure is having any adverse impact on his independence. The
Board therefore considers that Mr. Chow remains independent,
notwithstanding the length of his tenure.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has put in place mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. This is achieved by giving
Directors access to external independent professional advice from
legal advisers and auditor, as well as the attendance of all independent
non-executive Directors at almost all the meetings of the Board and
its relevant committees held during the year ended 31 March 2023.
The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the
aforementioned mechanisms on an annual basis.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

EREEFIREARENAFREETRERE
BE ] o REZBE N B TIB B S
S EAN

EEQAREEADAEBHEL S BHAERE
5% - RITEERBIIFRTEE 85 BRI
FEER LARAZEILE | WAL
YRR B BARD B2 BAEFIEHIEDRE o A
ARG THREEER AN RRESRRAE
URFECER  HERESH R AEEY ¥
BRRBSL -

FEELEECHIEESHBBNF - WAERADL
BREITEBELHEOERARAARRERER
HEBER - IEERRE MR RER 2B
BREMTFNEE - it - EESRR/EERLLE
FHRK - BERINEBT -

ARREEESBEILIIFATESRIELEMRAE
BBFBELZERFEBUERSE - BARBELETH
RIS ABIRAE 2 B S| - R REIRIBILIFH
TEFYBET -

ARABDEZES - WREFSEFBLNEH
MER - BEREE B EEBERE Mz AR ERSN
BN BEES - UREEBUIFTERHER
ECEC=F=A=t+ B IFERBRITHE T
FEEe N AEHZES A EBAR - EF
SERFHSEN DOEBINITERA R BRI



BOARD MEETING

The Board meets either in person or through other electronic means of
communication to monitor the execution of plans, review the Group’s
business performance and review financial reporting as well as all
other material matters. The Board held 4 regular meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2022. Individual attendance records of each
Director at the Board meetings are set out in the table on page 36 of
this report. Code provision C.5.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14
days should be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors
an opportunity to attend. During the year ended 31 March 2023, a
regular Board meeting was convened with less than 14 days’ notice to
facilitate the Directors’ timely reaction and expeditious decision making
process in respect of internal affairs of the Group. All Board meetings,
nevertheless, were duly convened and held in the way prescribed
by the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board will use reasonable
endeavour to meet the requirement of code provision C.5.3 of the CG
Code in future. Minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee were sent to all Directors for comments and approval.
The signed minutes of the said meetings are open for inspection by
all Directors. If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matters will be dealt with by a Board
meeting rather than written resolutions and the Board will ensure that an
adequate number of independent non-executive Directors are involved
in the consideration of the relevant matters. Independent non-executive
Directors are encouraged to take an active role in the Board meetings.

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships, among the Board members.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors are provided with an induction after
their appointment so as to ensure that they have appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of their duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company provides regular
updates on the business performance of the Group to the Directors.
The Directors are continually updated on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of good
corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development by way of attending trainings and/or seminars organised
by professional organisations and director training webcasts organised
by the Stock Exchange and also reading materials for updating new
practices, rules and regulations to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. According to the records maintained by the Company, the
training that the Directors received for the year ended 31 March 20283 is
summarized below:

FESRER
ERENHES BB TRERE—(E[S
T MEREEER TREASENER LR EmRA
RAERAE REERTER FMOBERAE - ARF]
EHRAEFENAEEZEXBRRER - EFHE
BSEREmRANREMEREERE 2K ER
R URRTE MERRFCEERER -

RABHBEEF B2 MERABATE M AIFI
R/ E  BRAEBNR LEEIRIARE
M ER  RARERNEEN 2 BEERX
TR - UBRNMEHRE 2 BN IXEE - RIEAR
ARz BEEREE T =ZF=A=1t—
AIEFERR BB T

Training courses/
seminars/webcasts/

Name reading materials
ILAIEREE ERE

] LR REEE

Executive Directors

BITE=R

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (resigned on 30 December 2022) v

EREHEE(RN-_E-_—F+-A=+HET)

Mr. Su Xiaonong v

BRI E

Mr. Wang Xiaohua v

TSRS

Mr. Ho Cheong Hang Edmond (appointed on 30 December 2022) v

MEaHEE(N-_E-—F+-A=1+HEZT)

Independent Non-executive Directors

WIERITES

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki v

R4

Mr. Cao Kuangyu v

LS

Mr. Ip Chi Wai v

HEREE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year ended 31 March 2023, Mr. Li Kwong
Yuk was the Chairman of the Board until he resigned from that position
on 30 December 2022 while Mr. Su Xiaonong was the Chief Executive
Officer throughout the year under review. On 30 December 2022, Mr.
Su Xiaonong was appointed the Acting Chairman of the Board. Hence,
the roles of the Acting Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer have
been held by Mr. Su Xiaonong since that time. The Group has plans
to diversify the long term development of its business activities for
more income streams. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
the Acting Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer in
Mr. Su Xiaonong will provide the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and promote effective and efficient formulation and
implementation of business decisions and strategies for the aforesaid
goal. The Board considers that such structure is in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders at this stage.

As the Acting Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Su
Xiaonong is responsible for overseeing the functions of the Board,
providing leadership for the Board and managing the businesses of the
Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each independent non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years from the
effective date of the service agreement and automatically renewed for
one year from the expiry date of the appointed period until terminated
by either party giving at least three months’ notice.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of two years from the effective date of the
service agreement and automatically renewed for one year from the
expiry date of the appointed period until terminated by either party
giving at least three months’ notice.
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In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company. Under Bye-law 112(A) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
Every Director shall retire from office no later than the third annual
general meeting since the last re-election or appointment of such
Director.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in order to maintain high level of corporate governance
standard of the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai. The chairman of the Audit
Committee, Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, possesses appropriate professional
qualifications in finance and accounting and meets the requirements of
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
and provide supervision over the financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control procedures of the Group and to
review the Company’s annual report and accounts and the interim
report and to provide advices and comments thereon to the Board.

Code provision D.3.3 stipulates that the audit committee must meet,
at least twice a year, with the Company’s auditor. Since the Company
did not engage its auditor to review the financial information in its
interim report for the six months ended 30 September 2022, the audit
committee has met the Company’s auditor once during the review
year to discuss matters arising from the audit of the Company’s annual
results and other matters the auditor may wish to raise.
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Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are

set out in the “Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee” which are

available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee performed

the following duties:

(@)

reviewed the annual audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2022 and the unaudited interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 September
2022 with recommendations to the Board for approval;

reviewed the Group’s enterprise risk assessment report
and internal audit report and the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) practice of the Group for the year
2021/2022;

considered the independent auditor’s engagement and
remuneration in relation to the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022;

reviewed the independent auditor’s independence and service
quality and recommended the Board to nominate the independent
auditor for re-appointment at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 28 September 2022 (the “2022 AGM”); and

reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.
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The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2023. Individual attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the table on page 36 of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai, and
one executive Director, namely Mr. Su Xiaonong.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
but not limited to, making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and the senior management of the Company and establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.
Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in the “Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee”
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The remuneration policy of the Group aims to maintain an appropriate
balance between business performance and long-term sustainable
growth of the Group. In particular, no individual Board member or any
of his associates should participate in deciding his own remuneration.
The emoluments payable to Directors are determined by the Board with
reference to the Remuneration Committee’s recommendation as well as
the Directors’ performance, duties and responsibilities and the prevailing
market conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the existing Directors and senior management of the
Company and the new executive Director; and reviewed the proposed
revised terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee with
recommendations to the Board for adoption.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2028. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 36 of this
report.
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Remuneration of Members of Senior Management by
Band

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the senior management by band for the year ended 31 March 2023 is
set out below:
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No. of employees

EEAR

Nil - HK$1,000,000

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mr. Su Xiaonong (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki and
Mr. Ip Chi Wai. Mr. Su Xiaonong was appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 30 December 2022 in place of
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
but not limited to, reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience, length of service and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are set out in the
“Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee” which are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Currently, all Board members are male. The Board has set down
its goals to appoint one female as Board member no later than
31 December 2024 as part of its effort to achieve diversity on the
Board level. The Nomination Committee will continue to monitor and
actively consider different aspects of diversity in the boardroom, and
recommend further actions or plan to the Board when necessary.

The Board, through the Nomination Committee, has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and
confirm that the Board has an appropriate mix of skills and experience
to deliver the Company’s strategy.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s workforce is more than 61% female.
The Board considers that the Group’s workforce are diverse in terms
of gender. The table below summarizes the share of women at different
position levels across the Group as at 31 March 2023.

Bl frEEEeXEYARE - EE2EHITER
B BER_ZZNF+_A=+T—HZEF—EX
MAEEGKE  UEHNERESSERZ UL -
REZEB SR FHEEBYEGEEEESZ LA
ZEFE  TROERBESSREE—SHNTH
kETEl ©

EFxeC AR REZERHEFTENEZ TR
RNERIARE  UYHERESSHAEE KL
N E A AE IR AR BIRRE -

R-Z-_=F=A=1t—8 ARBEZXtEER
61% - EERR > AEEREHEMR LEZ T -
TEREAN T - =F=A=1+—HArEESRMI
ARG

Level
5l
Senior

Gender Director Management Manager Employee
:3:1] = SREERE i3 ]
Male 6 2 2 26
S
Female - 5 2 40
it

Note: The above data is calculated based on the number of total employees of the
Group as at 31 March 2023
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The Board has also adopted a Directors’ nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) to formally set out the criteria and nomination
procedures on the appointment of Directors and succession planning
of Directors. According to the Nomination Policy, the ultimate
responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors rests with the
entire Board or the Shareholders in general meeting, as the case may
be. The Board has delegated the relevant screening and evaluation
process to the Nomination Committee, which identifies suitably qualified
candidates and recommends them to the Board. In assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate, the Nomination Committee takes
into consideration the candidate’s character, integrity, competence,
skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the Group’s principal
business, devoting sufficient time and attention to the Board, fulfilment
of the independence requirements as set out in the Listing Rules (for
independent non-executive Directors) and diversity on the Board. After
reaching its decision, the Nomination Committee nominates relevant
Director candidates to the Board for approval of new appointment and/
or for consideration and recommendation in respect of re-appointment
of any existing Director(s) of the Board, for the proposed candidate to
stand for re-election at a general meeting. The Board will have the final
decision relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for re-
election as Directors at general meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
assessed the independence of all independent non-executive Directors;
recommended to the Board on the nomination of retiring Directors for
re-election at the 2022 AGM; and the appointment of the new executive
Director and the Acting Chairman of the Board.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2023. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 36 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the fees paid/payable to the
Auditor in respect of audit services provided by the Auditor were as

Corporate Governance Report

1 36 B A O

EFENCRMELREFORR((REMEK)) - L
AN ZEEEREFETAINTERERR
Fre RERAEE  EFRELZENRKELER
EEEESAMRAGNRR(RFHERME) &
1z - EFHERGENTENERZIRTRAR
Bg RAZEEVEAEAEBMNKREARAE
SR -  RAHMEERREARTAER - 28Z%
LB E B IEE AR - BE - BERT X
£ EARAEEXBEBOMNERER  HHE
EEELRARHFRLET - EEHE TR
P&V B R (B IEMITE ST 5 ) ARST
BREFEUELZILEERR - REFHRTR @ 12
ZLREeHNESTSRABAESREANMHILE
R/ FEBMEL  UHECNEEFSRAEEENHE
BELERZR  NEERREARRRASERE
B EEEHAEERREAMEAETNREREX
B LERETERNRORTERE

m

an>

REBE_ZT-_=F=A=+—BILFERN  RBELE
BECRIEFEZRE - MERANX : Hh2E
BUFRTEF2BYNE  MEFSHERAR
AR -Z-—FRRAFAS LEENREIESR
% RERTHPTESREFTEREER -

RBE_Z_=F=A=+—HILFERN BELE
BEORTMAER - RARBEEKEZERIH
BB RN AR EFEI6E 2 RIGA ©

22l
RHE-T-ZFZA=+—ALFER  REH
BRiR G BRI E S R B BRI T -

follows:

Nature of services Amount

R¥HMHE of ]
HK$’'000
BETT

Audit services — Elite Partners CPA Limited 1,330

— Elite Partners CPA Limited -
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Non-audit services
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REERBEE

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS DL RCER

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the individual attendance record REBEZZ_=F=A=+—HILFEA FEF
of the Directors at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings, REEEEE  BFRLESeE  THEEgg

= e

the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Nomination Committee %IRRT EEERA ST I FRERBAFARE 2
meeting and the 2022 AGM is set out below: BRI E R eEkpmnT

Attended/Eligible to attend

BHE SERHE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting 2022 AGM
EFe ERZHE FHMZA® REZAE —2_C
<24 | ik ik g BREAFEXE
Executive Directors
hiES
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (resigned on 30 December 2022) 3/3 N/A N/A 1/10 0/1
FREEE(R_T__F+-_A=1THEHE) TiERm TER
Mr. Su Xiaonong 4/4 N/A 2/2 1/1@ 0N
BHEREE TEH
Mr. Wang Xiaohua 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0N
TRESYE TEA TEA TiEM
Mr. Ho Cheong Hang Edmond (appointed on
30 December 2022) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
MEBLE(R-Z-_—F+_-_A=1+HEZRT) TEm TER iR iR NiER
Independent non-executive Directors
BIERITESE
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
FAEESE
Mr. Cao Kuangyu 4/4 2/2 2/2 N/A 0/1
EHTRAE TEA
Mr. Ip Chi Wai 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
REREE
Notes: MisE
1) Mr. Li Kwong Yuk resigned as the chairman of the Nomination Committee with 1) TREFER-_ZE_—_F+_A=THEEREZEE
effect from 30 December 2022 and there was one Nomination Committee BXFE REZEGNREEFEAR-Z-__F+=
meeting held before 30 December 2022 during the year under review. A=THART—Rg:E -

with effect from 30 December 2022 and there was one Nomination Committee ZEGXR  REZEER-_T-_—_F+=-A=+H

(2)  Mr. Su Xiaonong was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee (2 EHERLENR-T__F+-A=+RHEZTARS
g
CECCFEZAT+ ARSI REE -

meeting held during the period from 30 December 2022 to 31 March 2023. EY
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Due to travel restrictions as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, Mr.
Li Kwong Yuk, the former Chairman of the Board, was unable to
attend the 2022 AGM as required by code provision F.2.2 of the CG
Code. The 2022 AGM was chaired by the independent non-executive
Director, Mr. Chow Shiu Ki. The annual general meeting provides a
channel for communication between the Board and the Shareholders.
Other than the annual general meeting, the Shareholders may
communicate with the Company through the contact methods listed
on the Company’s website.

DIRECTORS” ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

AUDITOR’S STATEMENT

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has complied
with Principle D.2 of the CG Code by establishing appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. Management
is responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
systems, while the Board oversees management in performing its duties
on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems are described in the sections below:

Risk management system

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: |dentify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.
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° Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate
the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the year ended 31
March 2023, no significant risk was identified.

Internal control system

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The components of the framework
are shown as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provides the basis for carrying out internal control
across the Group.

° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a
basis for determining how risks should be managed.

° Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information needed
to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain

whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.
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In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an
inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the
Group, which include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

° Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

° The executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external parties
such as the media, analysts or investors.

o Refer to inside information policy and procedures for more
procedures.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the year ended
31 March 2023, no significant control deficiency was identified.

Review of effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee, with the
delegated authority from the Board, has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group including the relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management procedures for identification, evaluation
and management of the significant risks (including ESG risks) faced by
the Group. Such systems are designed to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against failure to achieve business objectives and
material misstatement or loss.

4
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INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually and the results are reported to the
Board via the Audit Committee afterwards.

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board'’s reviews, which include but not limited
o (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment; and (i) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control
systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function and
the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate. Such systems, however,
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also considered
that the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting functions were adequate and their
training programmes and budget provided were sufficient.

ESG COMPLIANCE AND GOVERNANCE

The Group recognises the importance of climate change avoidance and
has developed internal strategies aimed at creating sustainable value for
its stakeholders and minimizing its negative impact on the environment.
To carry out the Group’s sustainability strategy from top to bottom, the
Board holds ultimate responsibility for ensuring the effectiveness of the
Group’s ESG strategies, including those relating to climate change.
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Dedicated teams have been established within each business division to
manage ESG issues and monitor progress toward corporate goals for
addressing climate change. These teams are responsible for enforcing
and overseeing the implementation of relevant ESG policies throughout
the Group and have designated staff members to carry out these tasks.

The Group’s management and responsible teams regularly review
and adjust its sustainability policies to meet the evolving needs of
stakeholders, including those related to climate change. Detailed ESG risk
and information on the Group’s management approaches and specific
strategies adopted for environmental and social aspects including climate
change avoidance can be found in various sections of the ESG Report
of the Company dated 30 June 2023. The Board is satisfied with the
adequacy of the Group’s resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget relating to ESG performance and reporting.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric (“Mr. Chan”) as
the Company Secretary from an external secretarial service provider.
The primary corporate contact person at the Company with the external
secretarial service provider is Mr. Su Xiaonong.

In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2023.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Rights to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders may convene special general meeting (the “SGM”) of
the Company according to the Bye-Laws of the Company and the
provisions as set out in Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Bermuda Act”). The Board shall, on the requisition
of Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, forthwith proceed duly, to convene the SGM. The
requisition must state the purposes of the SGM, and must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 2703, 27/F, Convention
Plaza — Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene the SGM in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda Act, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting enquiries by the Shareholders
to the Board

The Company endeavors to maintain two way communications
with the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders
are encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@dingyi.hk or by mail to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 2703, 27/F, Convention
Plaza — Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. All the
enquiries are dealt with in a timely manner. The Shareholders are also
encouraged to attend the annual general meeting and the SGM and
to put their enquiries to the Board directly. Notices are duly circulated
to the Shareholders in order to ensure each Shareholder is informed
to attend the annual general meeting and the SGM. The Chairman
of the Board, the chairman of each of the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, the senior
management and the Auditor will attend the annual general meeting
and respond to the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner. The
procedures for conducting a poll will be explained by the chairmen of
the annual general meeting and the SGM orally at the beginning of the
aforesaid meetings.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at the
general meetings

U)

(i)

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act, either any
number of the Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates or not less than 100 Shareholders, can
request the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be deposited to the
above-stated principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the meeting (in the case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less than
one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the relevant
expenses of the Company.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under the provisions as stated
in Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act.

For procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director, please refer to the information available on
the website of the Company at http://www.dingyi.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in

March 2019.
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Under the Dividend Policy, the Company considers it appropriate to
align the dividend payments with profit and ensure that it is able to pay
dividend on a sustainable and affordable basis. The Company may
declare dividend in any financial year after taking into consideration the
Company’s financial position, liquidity and cash flow, capital requirement
for future growth, economic conditions and any other factors to be
considered by the Directors. The Company will declare dividend out of
retained profit under certain circumstances, and therefore there can be
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any given
year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board communicates with the Shareholders and investors through
various channels. The Board members meet and communicate with
the Shareholders and investors at annual general meetings and other
general meetings where Shareholders can obtain better understanding
of the business and operating performance of the Group. Corporate
communications (such as interim and annual reports, notices, circulars
and announcements) are sent to shareholders in a timely manner and
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted the Shareholders Communication Policy,
which is available on the Company’s website and set out the Group’s
objective of providing clear, full, accurate and timely information of
the Group to the Shareholders and the investing community. The
Board communicates directly with Shareholders through annual
and other general meetings. The Board reviewed the Shareholders
Communication Policy and the Shareholders and investor engagement
and communication activities conducted during the year ended
31 March 2023 and was satisfied with the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders Communication Policy.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at http://www.dingyi.hk, where the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), is pleased to present
this Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) Report (the
“Report”) to provide an overview of the Group’s management of
significant issues affecting its operation, including environmental, social
and governance issues.

The objective of this Report is to highlight the Group’s ESG performance
for the purpose of assisting all stakeholders in understanding the
Group’s ESG concepts and practices in achieving sustainable
development for the future.

The Group is principally engaged in loan financing, securities trading
and properties development. The Board of Directors (the “Board”)
acknowledged the responsibility for monitoring and managing ESG-
related risks and the effectiveness of the ESG management system.
The Board reviews and discusses the goals and targets under the ESG
initiatives to optimise efficient use of resources and to minimise the
impact on the environment and natural resources from the Group’s
operation on an annual basis.

Sustainable development is an integral part of the Group’s business
strategy in order to achieve business excellence and enhance
capabilities for long-term competitiveness. The Group is committed to
operating in a manner that is economically, socially and environmentally
sustainable while balancing the interests of various stakeholders and
fostering a positive impact on the society. The Group’s sustainability
strategy is based on compliance with the applicable legal requirements,
principle of sustainability and opinions from stakeholders. The Group
has established and implemented various policies to manage and
monitor the risks related to the environment, employment, operating
practices and community.

The Board believes that a sound environmental, social and governance
structure is vital for the continued sustainability and development of the
Group’s activities. The Group is willing to take more responsibilities for
the society but with a view to balancing the Shareholders’ interests and
the society’s benefits. The Group will continue to strengthen the efforts
in information collection for better performance in the ESG areas and
broader disclosure of related information in sustainable development.

BRBE -~ AL KR Ol

HESREREERAR(FLE ) EREMNBAR
(Gefe FRE ) MARSARE - HE@REA (R
R omeRERDGE((8E])  #ersE4HY
LEFLNEARENERBRRE  HERERN
A8 o

A& B HRAAKENERE 1w REARE
EEBBME RN ERBRAREEERRKAFE
BRITENRE  HERERESRER -

AEBTZRFEERRE  FEFEERYMEER -
EXxg((HERDRAERLERRE  HEME
AR E TR - HE REREIERSN
B - EERBFEGALIRERE  HERER
iR B R R BT AB(EERERLFEAEKE
LEHRENARERNTE -

AR EER AR REEHREEAARED - AR
BEBLNEEARIIEF#EFRERT NHEE
71 o AEBHARARE - & MIRFEAFENT
A& FAFRESHNENNE  XAHEHR
B o AEE 2 AIRERR DENETERE
BIRE - AIERAIRFNEER - AEEESE

BERSERRABEMERRE  BE 2EF
B R AR R AEREE R o

EFxed R BREORER HeREARBHAE
BEBESRNAIKEFRIMERAEEE - £5H
BRER/MEAEESEI - FIRFFRERRME Rt
G - AEBEREENRERKETENNE
BRIRIR - HERERBBHRREUSE - A3t
AREERNEEEMEERZAORKE -

S0 AR IO 8 A B )
SRR

45



46

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BN - g R RS

Quality ESG governance is inextricably linked to the sustainable
development of business. The Board assumes the ESG management
responsibility of the Group. It is responsible for monitoring the
formulation and report of the ESG policy and identifying and controlling
the risks related to ESG to ensure appropriate ESG governance
policies are formulated. The Board delegates ESG management and
implementation powers to the management of each department,
and the management will implement the ESG policies and measures
established.

REPORTING STANDARDS AND PRINCIPLES

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Main
Board Listing Rules — “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” and has complied with the “comply or explain” provision in the

Listing Rules.

The Group has prepared this Report in accordance with the following
reporting principles:
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. Materiality: Important and relevant information to stakeholders on different ESG aspects is covered in the
Report. A materiality assessment was conducted to determine material ESG issues with results
approved by the Board.

EpN R ERENTEIRR g RkE
HEABEEARE 8 MNEREE  BifftaREEESIE -

. Quantitative: The relevant standards, methodologies and assumptions used to prepare the quantitative
information is disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is provided with narrative and
comparative figures, where possible.

21k ARmEESCERNBERRE  HEARBRREEHBHKE - ErBERLT -
HENLER -

° Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare and present ESG data in the Report, unless
otherwise specified, to allow for meaningful comparisons.

—&t REARAIN  RRERR BN ERENZ2FRER - g RERBUE - UEE

° Balance: The information is presented without the inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms
of manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by the reader.
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REPORTING PERIOD AND BOUNDARY

This Report demonstrates the Group’s sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 (the “Reporting
Period”). There was no material change to the methods or key
performance indicators (‘KPIs”) used by the Group in the years ended
31 March 2023 and 2022. The Report focuses on the environmental
and social performance of the Group in Hong Kong and PRC during
the Reporting Period and the disclosure of relevant key performance
indicators. The Group did not have any reporting boundaries for this
Report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group values the opinions of our stakeholders have significant
value in improving the ESG performances. Therefore, we are committed
to effective communication with different stakeholders through a variety
of communication channels to listen and respond to the expectations
and requirements of the stakeholders.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the
Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders
that are important to the Group’s business and established various
channels for communication. The following table provides an overview
of the Group’s key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Key stakeholders Main concerns Channels for communication/response
EERHHE EEME BB EERE
Shareholders - Operation performance - General meeting
PRER - EERH - BREX®
- Risk management - Company’s announcements
- RREE —-  RARE
- Email and telephone communications
—  BEREFERA
- Company’s website
— AR
Suppliers/service providers — Close communication - Meetings
HHhrER, ARG IRME - EUER - @&
- Order/contract execution - Email and telephone communications
-  BITER /A48 —  BEREFEEA
- Product quality
- EmEE
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Key stakeholders Main concerns Channels for communication/response
EERGE FE/ME B8 EfERE
Customers - Customer relationship - Customer hotlines
B - EFPBE - EPAR
- Responsible investment - Suggestion box
- BEERE — ERM
- Risk management - Email and telephone communications
- EREE —  BENEFERA
Employees - Long-term career development - Meetings
(== - REOBXRZER - B&
- Health and safety - Email and telephone communications
- RBEEZE —  BENEFEEA
- Remuneration and benefits
- FBRAEN
- Staff training
-  BIEI
The Public - Community service - Company’s announcements
NS - HRRARE -  RAERE

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns of stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,

and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group have adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting
by understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the business
of the Group. All the key ESG issues and KPIs are reported in the
Report according to the recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide

(Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).
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The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance of ESG aspects
through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification - Industry Benchmarking

o Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of relevant
ESG reports of the local and international industry peers.

° The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on
the importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of the
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

° The Group discussed with key stakeholders about key ESG areas
identified above to ensure that all the key aspects were covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

o Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured that all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2021, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.

STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on this Report for
the Group’s sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email at
info@dingyi.hk.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group is mainly involved in office operations and its business
activities do not have a significant impact on the environment or
natural resources. In spite of this, the Group are committed to
continuously improving the environmental sustainability of the
Group’s business and ensuring that environmental consideration
remains one of the key focuses in fulfilling the obligations to both
the environment and community. To demonstrate the commitment
to sustainable development, the Group have established relevant
emission reduction and energy-saving initiatives to manage the
emission and maintain green operations.
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Throughout the year, the Group fully complied with all of the
relevant environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong,
such as the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311),
the Sewage Services Ordinance (Chapter 463) and the Waste
Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354). Besides, during the Reporting
Period, the Group were not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Group related to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. The Group also regularly update with the
latest development of the applicable laws and regulations on
environmental protection.

A1. EMISSIONS
Air Pollutant Emissions

Air emission control is essential to mitigate environmental
impacts and protect employees’ health. As the Group is
mainly involved in general office activities, the amount of
air pollutant emissions are insignificant. The air pollutant
emissions are mainly generated from the vehicles used for
transportation. The emission from the vehicles imposed an
immaterial impact on the overall air pollution in Hong Kong.
The detail of air pollutant emissions of the Group during the
Reporting Period was as follows:

FR-AREEEETEBMAEBRRE
I B - PlanZE RS R E SR (F 311
5) - 5KEERB R (F463% ) REVIR
EFRPGI(FIB4F) » 1o - NIWEHE - K
SEBTANBEARETERREIAER
BB - mkR LS EXAERES
BENIABERLERAMEASEELS
AFEZBR - BRI AEBEEH T HER
RIBEREERSOERORER -

Al. HE
RS RPN
FEEHE IR SRR R B 2 RIRIER
ERFEUSE AR ANEBTENE
—RIFBAZER - MERSLYHRE
BT E - ERSAYHINEERE A
YEB I TE o RETENHRE TS
R QU LM IE S ETA - RIS
HARY - ANEEMZE RS A HERGEHE N
—F :

Type of air pollutants Unit 2023 2022
ZERTRMER B B k=t
Nitrogen oxides (NO) g 6,600 1,189
AAILIINO) =
Sulphur oxide (SO,) g 111 20
eSO, =
Particulate matter (PM) g 486 54
FERLY(PM) =)
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

Climate change is gradually concern by the community.
The Group recognises that climate change poses a risk to
its business and it is committed to mitigating the effects of
climate change. Regarding GHG emissions of the Group,
scope 1 direct emissions and scope 2 and 3 indirect
emissions have mainly resulted from the mobile combustion
sources and purchased electricity. Giving the majority
of the GHG emissions of the Group come from energy
consumption, the Group place great emphasis on improving
energy efficiency and reducing energy consumption.
The Group aims to reduce or maintain the current GHC
emissions at a stable level in the next 3 years in the future
compared to this Reporting Period. The GHG emissions of
the Group during the Reporting Period were as follows:

BN - g R RS

AERAE(REREE BN
RIRE(C DR X BT ROEE - A&k
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Type of air pollutants Units 2023 2022

2RISR MER B —E-= T4

Scope 1! tonnes of CO,-e 21 6

#iE— WStk E=E

Scope 22 tonnes of CO,-e 738 736

#HE—? W=tk EE

Scope 3° tonnes of CO,-e - 6

i WS tIREE

Total GHG Emission tonnes of CO,-e 759 748

BERBRINE WS tiRE S

GHG Intensity tonnes of CO,-e/million of dollars 1 5

of revenue”

BAERBRE M-St E 2B & T

1 Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or 1 #HE—  REAEEHEA KL TR
controlled by the Group. I E B o

2 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased 2 HE— : REAEBMEENBAT N
electricity consumed by the Group. EERBEGEN -

3 Scope 3: Includes all other indirect emissions that occur in the 3 #HE=  EAEEEEEREE AT
Group’s value chain. BHMREEBER o

* As at 31 March 2023, the Group revenue is HK$1,217 million. * BE-_Z-_=-F=-A=+—8 K&£H

WA BABEA2A7TETT - ZEEIE A
RETEEARE -

This data will also be used for calculation of other intensities.
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Sewage Discharge

The Group does not consume a significant volume of water
in its daily operation due to its office-based nature, therefore
its business activities did not generate a material portion
of discharge into water. Since the sewage discharged by
the Group is discharged into the municipal sewage pipe
network to the regional water purification plant, water
consumed by the Group is considered sewage discharged.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

The Group recognises the importance of waste reduction.
Waste management measures have been introduced to
minimise the amount of waste generated and reduce the
impact of the Group’s operation on the environment. Due to
the Group’s business operation nature, no hazardous waste
was generated during the Reporting Period.

Due to the nature of office operation, non-hazardous waste
was mainly attributed to domestic wastes of office. The
Group strives to reduce the amount of non-hazardous waste
generated and strengthen the environmental awareness
of employees by introducing various waste reduction
measures and education as mentioned in the section “Use
of Resources” of this Report. The Group aims to reduce
or maintain the current non-hazardous consumption at a
stable level in the next 3 years in the future compared to this
Reporting Period.

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group during
the Reporting Period was as follows:

B IKEER
HRAEENEENERRERAR
T HABRETHRKELTEX
BEERBALARELERERKIT
AR AR BB A5 KB E AT B 57K
EMEREDSIOFCR - AEBAFEK
AR A5 IKBERR

REREEERED

AREBARMBRE BRI - WEHTTE
EMEEERASERNELERER
K WREAEESEHREIRE -
ENAEENEBRL LT - REHHE

ENMAELENEE - BEEREYE
EREMRAEEENR - NEBB R
VEEERVELE - WEBSIAKXR
S ERER | — it ) SRR
BB NRSEBHIRREH o AR
SHEMEL  AREEFE/NARKBR
=FHEESEEMER D IEFR
FREKF ©

R AEEEANEEEEY
T

Type of waste Units 2023 2022
EEEMER L —=-= T4
Non-hazardous waste tonnes 1.1 1.32
EERERY) 185

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/million dollars of revenue 0.001 0.01

BEERNER Wi BEET R
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group considers environmental protection as an
essential component of a sustainable and responsible
business. The Group has an in-depth understanding of
the importance of safeguarding sustainable development
of the environment and attaches importance to efficient
utilisation of resources by introducing various measures
in daily business operations. The Group understand that
staff participation is the key to achieving such goals. The
Group have adopted energy and water efficiency initiatives
policies to motivate the employees to participate in resource
conservation activities.

Energy Consumption

The Group is committed to upholding high environmental
standards in order to promote environmental friendliness.
Throughout the Group, the following actions have been
taken to reduce carbon and energy footprints:

- maintain the indoor temperature of offices at an
optimal temperature;

- adopt low-emissivity glass to block ultraviolet, which
in turn reduces the power consumption of the air

conditioning system;

- choosing environmentally friendly materials and
energy-saving lightings and electrical appliances;

- switch off idle electrical appliances; and

- regular maintenance and repair for motor vehicles to
lower energy waste.

A2.
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The energy consumption of the Group during the Reporting
Period was as follows:

RIBEIRT - AEEMAREEDT -

Energy consumption Units 2023 2022
REIRERRY B —E-=HF k=St
Purchased electricity MWh 1,207 917

BAE JKELEF

Petrol MWh 89 11

pai:i JK LB

Natural gas MWh - 13
RAR JKELBF

Total energy consumption MWh 1,396 941

BEIRAEEFEE JK LB

Energy intensity MWh/million dollars of revenue 1 6
BEIREE JKER, B & T

The Group aims to reduce or maintain the current energy
consumption at the stable level in the next 3 years in the
future compared to this Reporting Period.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Water Consumption

Water is an important natural resource. The business of
the Group is operated in leased office premises where the
water supply is solely controlled and centrally managed
by the building management company. In this case, it is
not feasible for us to provide water consumption data as
there is no separate meter for each individual office unit
to record water usage data. In spite of this, we still activity
seek ways to reduce water consumption in daily operation
by encouraging employees to turn taps off tightly to prevent
dripping of water and giving priority to effective water-saving
products. As said, due to the Group’s office-based business
nature, there is no issue in water sourcing. The water
consumption of the Group during the Reporting Period was

BN - g R RS

¥K
RIKREBNAAER - ~AEERHEE
WMNGEIEEER  HKEZEFTER
NENEHIREPEE - EUBRT © &
P EREFEKENE - REASSEHRA
B8 {07 3 4 B B ER B KSR DA T 8% PR /K B
& BEW - RMDEREEES R
SUKBETRLART LK - I BB B RRERK
WER  BRERFERDBEEEF
HFEKE o I BRI - EBRAREER
ERELGUERAERABE - SR
BUKREIERE - RS ERE - AEEH
FEKELT :

as follows:

Water consumption Units 2023 2022
FEKE B —E—= —E-—F
Water m?® 4,023 10,113
FA7K K

Water intensity m®/million dollars of revenue 3 65
FkE2RE SR BB T

The Group aims to reduce or maintain the current water
consumption at a stable level in the next 3 years compared
to this Reporting Period.

Use of Packaging Material

Due to the business nature, the Group does not consume
a significant amount of product packaging materials as the
Group does not have any industrial productions nor any
manufacturing facilities.

EATRE MEMEL - AREBRFEANK
K B& =41 B AR KR D M5
RIBEKF -

_H

ERaRMH
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S0 AR IO B A PR )
SRR

55



56

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BN - g R RS

AS.

A4.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group understands that implementing environmental
protection can reduce operational risk and increase
business opportunities. Regarding the business nature
of the Group, the Group do not aware of any significant
impact of the business activities on the environment and
natural resources. Despite this, the Group endeavour to
consistently improve the environmental performance by
implementing the aforementioned waste reduction measures
and resource-saving initiatives. The Group will continue to
seek opportunities to further reduce emissions and resource
consumption with the aim to reduce the impacts on the
environment and natural resources to minimal.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group’s principal businesses have no direct effect on
facing climate change. However, climate change risk is
increasing and extreme weather is affecting the Global in
recent years. The Group believes that no one can escape
from climate change, and everyone should put effort into
tackling the issue.

Physical Risks

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and
the Group considered rainstorm and typhoon as the major
threats from the increasing climate change. The Group has
developed mitigation measures to reduce the effect raised
by extreme weather conditions such as typhoons on our
employees, properties and our operation. For instance,
before the Black Rainstorm Warning Signals and No. 8
or above Tropical Cyclone Warning Signals incurred, the
Group will release employees from work and ensure there
is sufficient time for their journeys between living place and
office. The Group also conducts inspection on windows
during the typhoon and rainstorm season and ensure all
inventories will be stocked on the shelves for the protection
from the risk of water invasion.

Transition Risks

The Group keeps on monitoring changes in regulatory,
technological and market landscape due to climate change,
including the tightening of national policies and listing rules.
The Group has been taking comprehensive measures to
deal with changing situation.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS B. #&Em
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES EBERSIER
B1. EMPLOYMENT Bi. (B{§

All labour-related issues in terms of compensation,
working hours, rest periods, recruitment and promotion,
dismissal procedures, equal opportunity, diversity and anti-
discrimination are in compliance with the Employment
Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the PRC.

The Group is committed to creating a working atmosphere
free of discrimination and harassment. Discriminatory acts
or motives in all phases of employment on the grounds
of nationality, physical ability, gender, age and any other
legally protected status are strictly prohibited in the
Group. Employees are encouraged to report any unlawful
discrimination or any form of harassment. The Group
investigates expeditiously and takes appropriate corrective
actions once we have confirmed the allegations.

The Group strives to maintain the employee turnover rate
at an acceptable level so as to facilitate the accumulation
of professional skills and experience. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not become aware of any material
non-compliance relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, discriminations.

PREESTHRBIER @ WHB - T1F
B - RBRE - BERET - #ER
o FEle - SREERREBES - 15
& B ERRIED) &+ BECSEEIN
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As at 31 March 2023, the employee compositions (in RZZBZ=F=RA=+—8 ' &5l
numbers of employees, excluding independent non- EEER - FhER R IB RIS 58
executive directors) by gender, employee category, age EEHEK(LMEE (T BIEEIENITE
group and geographical region were as follows: E)HERE)NT
2023 2022

Employee structure EERS —E= —E-F
By gender =I5

Male Bk 26 37

Female 7t 40 54
By age FEFH

Aged below 30 305% AT 8 25

Aged 30-50 30E505% 45 49

Aged 51 or above 51583 A = 13 17
By employment type 12iE S 457

Full time o 66 91

Part time FRIY - -
By employment category 1IES AR

Senior management SREERE 7 7

Middle management RREREE 6 21

General staff —fRET 53 63
By geographical region L FE 57 1

PRC H 48 77

Hong Kong B 18 14
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The employee turnover rate was 25% during the Reporting
Period. The employee turnover rates by gender and age
group during the Reporting Period were as follows:

BN - g R RS

REEHRE - BERKAEH25% - Rk
SHRE - BRI R EFRAR B D HESR
MAET

Units 2023

Employment &% B —E-=S
By gender 24 31

- Male — 5% % 22

- Female — 3 % 34
By age BER

- Aged below 30 —305% AT % 61

— Aged 30-50 —30E50%% % 17

- Aged 51 or above —51Rs A % 13
By geographical region 2t 2 [ i

-PRC — % 32

- Hong Kong — &5 % 19
Overall BEE 25
HEALTH AND SAFETY B2. RRHEZZ

Work safety is the key to the sustainable development of
the Group. We continue to strictly comply with the laws
and regulations related to occupational health and safety,
such as the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance,
in our endeavour to create a safe and healthy working
environment for employees. Rescue, fire and evacuation
drills are conducted regularly to increase employees’
awareness and involvement in accident prevention. The
Group also creates a pleasant and comfortable workplace
by carrying out various measures, including the provision
of adjustable seats and regular repair and maintenance of
office equipment.

THEZ2RAEEAFELENRRE -
BMEERRETEERERFEEY
HRVERER - I(BEL 2 REEG
By BMAHBEIAELTR2HREMNTIE
ﬁ%oﬁﬁi%Lﬁﬁ&~ﬁ%&mﬁ
EEEABRINSEHSEHR RS ME
BE - AEBNEHZIEREE @ fHiEsT
BREMNIERE  MRHATARSE
WERARTHEERERAZHRE

o
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Due to the impact of COVID-19, the Company holds a
cautious attitude on a series of prevention measures to
ensure employees with a safe and comfortable working
environment during the review period. The Group has
purchased additional cleaning and epidemic prevention
equipment and consumables such as surgical face masks,
sanitizer etc. The Group has implemented the precautionary
measures to prevent and control the spread of the
COVID-19 in the working place, including compulsory body
temperature checks, the mandatory wearing of a surgical
face mask, limit the visitor to access the office.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on the Group in providing a safe
and healthy working environment. The occupational health
and safety statistics during the Reporting Period were as
follows:

ENNEIROTE - ARREH— RS
PriEfEReRRERE - UEREER
CIEHREAN TIFREL2EE - AE
BEBARINER LR RE NBRE
n v PIANSMRI O - BB RIS - RIED
RAEHIFEI AN TVES R - 5%
BEE®HRER  SRER5HERER
Al SREIMESNGOE - REIEEEIH

WAZ -

REEHRE - AEBEY N HERRER
2RENTIEREN B EERARES
MDA AR M A REELEAY
ZmEN - RREHRE - BERERE
BN

Occupational health and safety statistics 2023 2022 2021
RERRRRZHMER —EC=H T4 —E-—F
Number of lost days due to work injury - - 43

R TBEKRH B

Number of work-related fatalities

HETEARMNILT AR

Number of work injuries incident

THEEHRRH
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B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group encourages employees to participate in
on-the-job training and continuing education to create
opportunity for career development. On-the-job training
is tailored to equip our workplace with the necessary
knowledge and skills relevant to work. Other than providing
diversified on-the-job training to employees and ensuring
employees meet the changing demands in the Group and
the market. By providing continuous training, employees
gain satisfaction and enjoyment from fulfilling their roles
and boost morale. Employees are required to comply
with continuous professional training and examination
requirements as stipulated in relevant regulations.

The training details during the Reporting Period were as
follows:

The percentage of employees trained

BN - g R RS

B3. &R

AEE S B RS 2 BERSII RISEE
& REEERAEES - ERITIE
RBEMNTIESMMEET - ©2HEET
RES BB P A8 L AR RE TARIRHE - B
T REBRHZ TR ERIE - 1§
BRI AR E s L TR L
TRz o HERERY > BTHEET
BERSESHERNEE - BEHE
TR BTU/RETHERPIPTRTEN

SEHEEEVIREAEL -

RSB REIIFEET

by gender BUENBSHZIREREESL

Male EEles 55%
Female egi 82%
The percentage of employees trained

by employment category BRERENHSHZIEEE AL

General —MET 72%
Middle management RARERE 75%
Senior management BREERE 90%

Average training hours for employees
by gender

o3 b b d:o) R RSl

Male
Female

Average training hours for employees
by employment category

EEyi

poglid

ZERANE S0 E R F BN

2 hours /J\B
3 hours /JNEF

General
Middle management
Senior management

—ET 3 hours /)N
RREEE 2 hours /]\Es
SREEE 2 hours /]\E
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B4. LABOUR STANDARDS

The operations of the Group require sophisticated
training in the field of finance and the planning of property
development. Hence the Group does not rely on labour or
involve in any labour-intensive work. As such, management
is certain that the Group would not be involved in child
or forced labour. Further, the employment policies of the
Group focus on the capabilities of the particular regardless
of personal traits such as gender or ethnic groups.

The Group has strictly complied with the Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China. Overtime work is
compensated in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations. According to the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour and the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Minors and as stipulated by the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China in terms of
employment management, there is neither child nor forced
labour in the Group’s operation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not aware of
any non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding
child labour and forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES
B5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group’s business nature is service-oriented. The
major supply chain business partners of the Group are
construction suppliers, contractors and other office services
suppliers. Apart from taking into account the factors such
as reputation, quality and the price-performance ratio of
suppliers, the Group also priorities suppliers with a similar
value in social responsibility and environmental protection
policy. During the Reporting Period, there are 30 designated
suppliers and qualified sub-contractors in PRC for the
business of property development.

The Group has a preference on choosing products with
higher recycling value, fewer packing materials and
higher energy efficiency. Under the principles of green
procurement, we also assess the use of materials constantly
to avoid overstocking and waste of resources.
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B6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group strives to create maximum value for our
customers to gain their trust and support. The Group
has outsourced the construction works in property
development projects to independent construction firms.
Thus, a comprehensive supply chain management is of
great importance for the provision of high-quality properties,
which can ensure that customers are healthy and safe.
The Group has implemented control measures at different
stages and scopes of operation to protect customers’
benefits and boost satisfaction. During the Reporting
Period, no properties sold are recalled for safety and health
reasons.

Further, internal control and compliance procedures are
in place to ensure compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
aware of any violation of any laws or regulations regarding
to the products and services we provided.

Customer Satisfaction

The Group has earned trusted relationships with its broad
customer base through providing dedicated customer
services. In order to provide quality service to our clients, the
Group communicates with our customers and confirms their
expectation and direction prior to project commencement
and actively coordinated with customers in the process of
providing service.

When customers lodge a complaint, the Group will make
every effort to investigate and resolve the disputes fairly
and promptly. During the Reporting Period, there are no
complaints received.

Customer Data Protection and Privacy
Policies

Being a service provider with a range of financial services,
the Group has access to significant financial information and
personal data of the lessee, clients and potential customers;
therefore, ensuring the privacy of customer information is
one of the issues the Group cares about the most.
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B7.

The Group has formulated a set of privacy principal
in collection, retention, use, security, openness and
accessibility of information to ensure all lessees’ information
received is only for its intended purpose and to prevent
information leakage, such as:

- Access control to all information of lessees;

- Requiring employees not to retain and disclose any
confidential information about the Group’s business
and other sensitive, confidential data to any third
party; and

- Requiring employees not to obtain any unnecessary
information from the lessees and its associated
parties.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not notice any
violations of laws or regulations regarding customer data
protection and advertising relating to the services provided.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

It is the unwavering principle of the Group to combat
corruption and advocate integrity and self-discipline. The
Group continues to strictly comply with the laws and
regulations relating to bribery prevention, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, such as the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance.

A mechanism for declaration of interest is in place by the
Group to prohibit employees engagement in any investment
activities that collide with the interest of the Group, and
requires employees to report any situations that may involve
conflict of direct or indirect interest with the Group. There
is also a whistle-blowing policy to provide a channel for
employees to report any suspicious cases of unethical
behaviours in writing. The Group would report the cases
to the authorities if the case was found to be sufficiently
supported with evidence. During the Reporting Period, no
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer, the Group and our employees.
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Anti-Money Laundering

The Group strictly implements a series of policies and
procedures to prevent and detect money laundering and
terrorist financing. Following measures have been taken to
prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist financing:

- carries out know-your-client procedures by verifying
customers’ identity with reference to a reliable and
independent source of documents;

- reports any suspicious transactions to the relevant
government department; and

- repayments and deposits are only made by cheque,
bank transfer with customers’ bank accounts.

During the Reporting Period, The Group did not become
aware of any non-compliances of laws and regulations
relating to corruption, fraud, money laundering and bribery
in Hong Kong and China.

COMMUNITY
B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed
to understanding the needs of the communities in which
the Group operate. The Group encourage our employees to
pursue their personal passions and dedicate their time and
skills to supporting local communities. The Group strive to
develop long-term relationships with the stakeholders and
bring a positive impact on community development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING INDEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
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Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Section

TEEE  BE - —REERPEBENEF(RREXER) =&

A. Environmental

A iR

A1: Emissions

A1 BER)

General Disclosure “Emissions”

— MRk ER [HERR

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data “Emissions — Air Pollutant Emissions”
BRGETIEE  HRER AR B EUE [HER — ZE2 505 2 HER
A1.1

KPIA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas

MRESIESR  RERRAHIRER(RWER)TE
A1.2

Emission”

[BE— R = REEF U

Not applicable — The Group
generates no hazardous waste.

NER-AERTEAEREEE
/_:E o

Non-hazardous Wastes”
[ —BEREEEEY]

“Emissions — Greenhouse Gas
Emission”

[BE— R = REBHU

Non-hazardous Wastes”
[BE— B EREZTEEY

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity

BRENER EAREEEDESER(MER)EE

A1.3

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity “Emissions — Hazardous and

RRENEER MEAREEREVEENR(WMER)EE

Al.4

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved

BRERIER  HIURE RS A0 FE b B PR R

A1.5

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, “Emissions — Hazardous and
reduction initiatives and results achieved

FRERIEER HREEASRESEEVNE RS G R TR

A1.6
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

FEER  BE  —RESRASKVEF(RRBENER)

BN - g R RS

Section

=

A2: Use of Resources

A2 : BIREER

General Disclosure

—ARIREE

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity

MRENEE BN ERR SRRERERERTE
A2.1

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
BRERIER RRKEREE
A2.2
KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved
RARAERUEIR  HORAEIRGE AR i S TR R
A2.3
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
RARAERIER HISKEUERKRE S A EAIMRE - Bk KPR
A2.4
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and,
if applicable, with reference to per unit produced
BRENER  HERMReEDHONEER(ER) BEESMEE
A2.5

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 IRIERRAER
General Disclosure

—RRIREE

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them

BRERIER HHAEBERHRERRAERNEAZEANIRNEREATE

A3.1 B1TE

A4: Climate Change
A4 - RIREEE
General Disclosure

— R FE
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them
BRAERIER WD E AR HEIT ABKYENERRIGAERREE - A KLFTERE
A4.1 BRI EMRERITTE

“Use of Resources”

[&REMA]

“Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption”

[ BIRER —RERIERE]

“Use of Resources — Water
Consumption”

[BRER —KHRE]

“Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption”

[BREM —RERFER |

“Use of Resources — Water
Consumption”

[BIREM —KFEM ]

“Use of Resources — Use of
Packing Material”
[ERER—BEMEHMER]

“The Environment and Natural
Resources”

[R5 RAAEIR]

No significant impact of activities
on the environment and natural
resources was noted.

WARBREBEBDEIRIERRAE

VN7

“Climate Change”

[RiEEME ]

No significant impact on climate
change was noted.

R ERHRBEECEATE -

S5 3544 O 43 25 A R 4 ) 67
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BN - g R RS

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

TEEE  BE  —REESRPEEEFR(RBEXER) =i}

B. Social

B. it ®

Employment and Labour Practices

EBRERBIER

B1: Employment

B1 : (&%

General Disclosure “Employment”

— MR IR [MEfR=]

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment category, age group “Employment”
and geographical region

BRENIEER MR BEER - FRER MR RIFE D HEB A [MEfR=]

B1.1

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and “Employment”
geographical region

BRESIEE RIER - FRARNRMERSESHEBRAE [MEfE]

B1.2

B2: Health and Safety
B2 : EFRMEL S
General Disclosure
—MRiREE

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities

BREMIER EITHEABRLEE
B2.1
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury

BRENIER  BAIGIEAIERH

B2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored

BRENER HAERRABRREREE L 2R BLERAN

B2.3

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

“Health and Safety”

Rz 2 ]

No case of work-related fatality was
noted.

WARBRAEATTHAFER -

1 case of work injury with no lost
days to work was noted.

IRIBEZR - WARBRIBRTIIER
B o

“Health and Safety”

[ ]



Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

FEER  BE  —RESRASKVEF(RRBENER)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BN - g R RS

Section

=

B3: Development and Training
B3 : #& &iFH
General Disclosure

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained by gender and employee category

—RIKE
MRERIESR RUNMEESRBONZIEEA S
B3.1

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and

employee category

MRERIER  RURIREEERE S MERE TR E I TR R

B3.2

B4: Labour Standards
B4 : & T %A
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child

and forced labour

MBHERIER R EEESNEEAERRERE T RERHIST

B4.1

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

RRERIER RAEISRERBERE R Z ST RATRERE 5

B4.2

“Development and Training”
[ M aE 3l
“Development and Training”

[ERNAE]

“Development and Training”

[ R RIE]

“LLabour Standards”
[8 T8 ]
“Labour Standards”

[55 T 28]

No non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations related
to recruitment of child labour
or forced labour practices was
noted.
WARBREFAETABEERET
o8 % TIT RMMERER KA
HRAYIEN °
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BN - g R RS

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

FEER  BE  —RESRASKRMEF(RRAENER) =&

Operating Practices

HETHR

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : g EIR

General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management”
—MRBEEE [fHAEsRE e |

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region “Supply Chain Management”
BENIER RMIREEREE S NHEREE [MrEEe ]

B5.1

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of “Supply Chain Management”

suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored

AR WAZEHERNER  ERAEEROHERHE  BEkER [MrEgEETe |

B5.2 AR

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks ~ “Supply Chain Management”
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored

BRENIEER  WAAURRIHERTREAEGARNER  ARBEEEREF  [HERERE ]

B5.3

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable “Supply Chain Management”
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored

BARAENIEER HARAUARYCEHERRHRERRE R MRBNER - AREHER [MrEgEETe |

B5.4 BRI

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BN - g R RS

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

FEER  BE  —RESRASKRMEF(RRAENER) =&

B6: Product Responsibility
B6: EmAE

General Disclosure “Product Responsibility”
—RRIRER [EmET]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for No product sold or shipped subject
safety and health reasons to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
BEENER ChERbEEMERTEZ: MERRAMARKN A DL TEEHENHEERER S M
B6.1 FRIREmZARL -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and how No products and services related
they are dealt with complaints received.
BRENIER ERAHERMRBORFREBNEE TR WARBEER BE m R IRFEVIRGR
B6.2
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual  “Product Responsibility”
property rights
BRERIER fiUET RREMBEENREER [EmEE]
B6.3
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures “Product Responsibility”
BRETIER B SRTRE RO [EmEfE]
B6.4
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, “Product Responsibility”
how they are implemented and monitored
BRENER  HUHBEERREREBEE - BEkERETA [EmEE]
B6.5

S5 008 42 A A R 71
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BN - g R RS

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

FEER  BE  —RESRASKRMEF(RRAENER)

Section

=&

B7: Anti-corruption

B7 : KBS

General Disclosure

—ARIR R
KPIB7.1

FRBHA ISR
B7.1
KPI B7.2

BARERUER
B7.2
KPIB7.3

FASHEREIR
B7.3

Community
Zan

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought

against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the case
RHREHNRBITASEEEBRENEEREDEERGEA R
E L
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and monitored
HMTER e R ERRIET - BERERA

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff
il mEE KB TIRENRESE

B8: Community Investment

B8 : (t@IKE

General Disclosure

— IR
KPI B8.1

B RUEIR
B8.1

KPI B8.2
FARAARUEIR
B8.2

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport)

FIEREE(NHE  RREE  BIHK - EF - Xt
B5)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area

HETHREMBANER (WS ERERE)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

J

“Anti-corruption”

[R&E)5]

No concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices was noted.

WRBERCHERNESEERMNE -

“Anti-corruption”

[REF]

“Anti-corruption”

[RE)5)

“Community Investment”
HRIRE]

“Community Investment”

[tERRE ]



The Directors present this report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2023 analysed by reportable segments are set out in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year under review using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the Financial Summary on page 2 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 96 and 97 of
this annual report. No interim dividend was paid during the year. The
Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Movements in the share capital and convertible bonds during the
year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in Notes 28 and 29 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2023 are set out on pages 100 to 102 of this
annual report and Note 38(a) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

As at 31 March 2023, there is no reserve of the Company which is
available for distribution to Shareholders (2022: nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
page 2 and on pages 17 to 19 respectively of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount of revenue
attributable to the Group'’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 0.8% of the Group’s total revenue and the aggregate
amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 86% of the Group’s total purchases.
None of the Directors, their associates nor any Shareholder (whom to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers or five largest customers.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed 66 full-time staff under its subsidiaries globally as at
31 March 2023 (2022: 91). Total staff costs amounted to approximately
HK$17 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$20 million).
The remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on the
basis of job nature, market trend, company performance and individual
performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a
discretionary basis, retirement schemes and the share option scheme
of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws of the
Company although there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

ME - BB M
RBE-T-=F=A=1—HLFEN KEH
WE - BERREZ BN S G SRR T
1679 -

BT M B 15 Ol R
REE BTSRRI BIRRAFHE2
BREITE19E -

TERFP MRS
REBE_T-_=F=A=+—BILFE r&EZ
A REPFE 2 BRAIEARNEE 2 U A #)0.8%
RASEz AREEAMEZBEABREAEEZ
REEEN8% - BEF - HBMEA T EAK
R(AEZMHA - EAARRRDEITIRN B5% 2K
R)BERAEENTIARERXARETPTHEA
Efa s o

& 8 R
RZE—=F=A=+—H  AEEETHEAF
RERERABEEHE T (ZEZ2F : 914) -
REBEEZZE-_=F=A=+—HIFE 8THK
N AHBEL 7008 T (B - —F  #12,0008
7o) o AEEZHMECK IR EES 2 TIEHEE -
MHB% - ArFEAERER ST 2 RRMmERIEL
RS o BB TENSENBEMICAEE - RIK
ErEIRANERENRERT S ([ AR Rt E ) -

BB E
AARZAREARBELEERZRE - BAR
BADRZ M ERE A0 BT
RS -



RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are values
at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident
fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring
the Group to different levels of success.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. Our business model is to maintain and build on our strong
relationships within our client base. Our mission is to provide the
finest service to our customers and the Group is constantly looking
ways to improve customer relations through enhanced services.
Regarding the securities trading and loan financing businesses,
the Group has no major suppliers. Whereas regarding the other
principal businesses, the Group has maintained good relationship
with the suppliers to ensure their continued support to the Group in the
foreseeable future.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2023.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March 2023
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
(resigned on 30 December 2022)
Mr. Su Xiaonong (Acting Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Xiaohua
Mr. Ho Cheong Hang Edmond
(appointed on 30 December 2022)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai

In accordance with bye-law 112 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Wang
Xiaohua, Mr. Ho Cheong Hang Edmond and Mr. Chow Shiu Ki shall
retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The following persons who have served on the boards of directors of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023
and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk
Mr. Su Xiaonong
Ms. Lo Kwan

CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Directors are set out below:

(@ The annual salary of Mr. Su Xiaonong was adjusted from
HK$560,000 and RMB74,318 to HK$560,000 and RMB70,000
with effect from 1 April 2022.

(b)  Mr. Ip Chi Wai resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Asia Standard Hotel Group Limited (stock code: 292) and
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Asia
Standard International Group Limited (stock code: 129), both of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with
effect from 21 April 2023.
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of their independence
during the year ended 31 March 2023 and all of them are still being
considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who proposed for re-election at the annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions” as
set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no contracts
of significance relating to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had no contract
entered into in respect of the management or administration of the
overall business or any material business.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 March 2023, none of the Directors had

interests in business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying
shares of the Company

N\
Y

EEZNTETHAB ZEHFER

E

RIZBZ=F=A=+—H ARREFRE2T
BABRARE R EEEAE(ERRLESFMPE

Pl (T B RAARIEH ) FEXVEL) 2 B iy - HHER
I RESF A CREEZ BRI EXVE
FTRFEDHAEG AR A MR 2 #Eam foXk R
(BRERIEE S M E RO Z A BIRSGRD B R
1EA 2 m MAR) - RBBRBFR AR FIRE

B LB GROIEIL2GERERATFE 2 ELMA
ZHEmMRR  SRBEEETRIASITHEARA

R Pz B RORRIAE -

RELTEERREMKGZEE

Approximate

percentage of

Number of total number of

Number of underlying issued shares

Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total of the Company

5527

ERTRA

#ye

B 53 HEREE RS E #y #nask

(Note 1)

(BE1)

Mr. Su Xiaonong Beneficial owner 14,655,000 50,000,000 64,655,000 0.88%
HERTE EREAA (Note 2)
(PiE2)

Notes: FitsE

1. Based on 7,356,783,015 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2023.

2. These underlying shares were share options granted by the Company under

the Share Option Scheme on 11 April 2019 at the exercise price of HK$0.456
per share.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of the
persons or corporations other than the Director or chief executive of
the Company, in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying
shares of the Company
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REAFTEERREAMKOGZEE

Approximate
percentage of
Number of total number of
Name of substantial Number of underlying issued shares
Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares shares Total of the Company
T NG
BRITERA
Al
TERRMEBR n EiEReE HRRHHE g BhEal
(Note 1)
(FFzE1)
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk Beneficial owner 233,340,000 7,000,000 240,340,000
FREEE ERBEBA (Note 2)
(F&z2)
Interest of controlled 3,066,645,405 - 3,066,645,405
corporation (Note 3)
Rt EE R (PizE3)
3,306,985,405 44.95%
Wincon Capital Investment Limited  Beneficial owner 3,053,170,405 - 3,063,170,405 41.50%
KXEERRERERRA BRBEAA
China State Shipbuilding Interest of controlled 908,685,000 - 908,685,000 12.35%
Corporation Limited™ (Note 4) corporation
REMMERERAR(E4)  REHEERER
China Shipbuilding Capital Limited  Beneficial owner 908,685,000 - 908,685,000 12.35%

(Note 4) E=EEA
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Notes:

1. Based on 7,356,783,015 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31

March 2023.

2. These underlying shares comprised 7,000,000 share options granted on 11
April 2019 under the Share Option Scheme at the exercise price of HK$0.456
per share.

3. These shares were held by Wincon Capital Investment Limited (“‘WCIL”) as to

3,0583,170,405 shares, Wincon Asset Management Limited (‘WAML”) as to
11,475,000 shares and Win Master Group Limited (“‘WMGL”) as to 2,000,000
shares. WCIL, WAML and WMGL were wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Li. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Li was deemed to be interested in these
3,066,645,405 shares.

4. China Shipbuilding Capital Limited was wholly owned by B #EEER A
7] (China State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited*). By virtue of the SFO, A Bl
f&EEABR QA (China State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited*) was deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by China Shipbuilding
Capital Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 September 2012, the Shareholders approved the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, which is valid and effective for a period of ten
years and expired on 20 September 2022. A summary of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the
Listing Rules, are as follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to

grant the share options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant share options
to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible Participants”) to
subscribe for shares in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme and the Listing Rules:

(@ any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including
the Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);

(b)  any Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), any Subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(g0 any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant, individual or
entity who in the opinion of the Directors has contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group;

(h)  any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of
the Group; and

(i) any company wholly-owned by one or more Eligible Participants.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the share options and the share options granted under any
other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or
outstanding share options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company for the time being.
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In respect of any particular option, such period as the Directors may
determine, may not be later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant share options.

There is no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme
for holding of the share options before it can be exercised.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the
option shall be regarded as having been accepted when the duplicate
of the letter by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (ii)) the
nominal value of a share.

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing
on 21 September 2012 to make an offer for the grant of a share option.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 September
2019, the scheme mandate limit for the Share Option Scheme
was refreshed and approved by the then Shareholders to allow the
Company to issue a maximum of 735,306,071 share options under the
Share Option Scheme, representing approximately 9.99% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 7,356,783,015 shares) as
at 31 March 2023.

As mentioned above, the Share Option Scheme expired on 20
September 2022. During the year ended 31 March 2023, 107,500,000
share options lapsed, no share options were exercised and cancelled,
and 7,000,000 share options were reclassified. During the period from
1 April 2022 to 20 September 2022, no share options were granted.
Immediately before expiration of the Share Option Scheme, the total
number of the shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 1,444,806,071 representing approximately 19.64% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 7,356,783,015
shares) as at 20 September 2022.

The number of share options available for grant under the scheme

mandate as at 1 April 2022 and 20 September 2022 (being the expiry
date of the Share Option Scheme) was both 735,306,071.
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The movements in the share options granted under the Share Option

Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2023 are shown below:
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Number of share options
fkiEsE
At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed At Exercise price
Name or category 1 April during during during during 31 March Date of grant Validity period of share
of participant 2022 the year the year the year the year 2023  of share options of share options options
RIBZZE RIBZ=E  WRE
SHINZUEN MA-B  REREH REATE REAERE  REAKN ZASH-0 RHAN RRERNH BRETER
HKS per share
BiE%
Executive Directors
HiTEs
Mr. Su Xiaonong 50,000,000 - - - - 5000000 11-4-2019 11-4-2019 0 10-4-2024 0456
BRRLE “F-NERAT-B ZE-NERAT-RE
ZZCNEMATA
Sub-total
st 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000
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Number of share options
fkEsA
At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed At Exercise price
Name or category 1 April during during during during 31 March Date of grant Validity period of share
of participant 2022 the year the year the year the year 2023  of share options of share options options
RIBZZE RIBZZE  HEE
SHENZIER MA-B REARRH REATE  REMER  REREN ZASt-R AR BREFYH BRETER
HKS per share
v
Others
it
Employees 231,000,000 - - - (7,500,000) 223,500,000 11-4-2019 11-4-2019 10 10-4-2024 0456
8 ZE-NEREAT-E 0 ZE-NERAT-RE
“TREMATA
Other eligible participants 100,000,000 - - - (100,000,000) - 19-10-2017 19-10-2017 to 18-10-2022 0488
HtRERsEE “F-HETAThE . ZE-HETAThRE
ZRZZETATIA
336,000,000 - - - - 33,000,000 11-4-2019 11-4-2019 t0 10-4-2024 0.456
SEMEBAT-E CEFBAT-EZ
“Z-WEMATA
Sub-total
gt 667,000,000 - - - (10755000000 559,500,000
Total
&5 717,000,000 - - - (107,500,000) 609,500,000

REZEREXHABBA(NZ=ZZ—RF+A
+X8 - Z2—+tF+A+N\BRZZE—NFHA
TRIARRAFRMDUTES B ATRAKC.747T
FBHE0.467T M B 160.455TT ©

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the
dates on which the share options were granted, i.e. 16 December
2016, 18 October 2017 and 10 April 2019, were HK$0.74, HK$0.46
and HK$0.455 per share respectively.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course
of business of the Group are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of the related party transactions constituted
discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-exempted
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the Company’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in
Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “BANK BORROWING,
CONVERTIBLE BONDS, OTHER BONDS AND PROMISSORY NOTE”
in Financial Review on page 18 of this annual report and the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” on pages 80 to 84 of this report,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2023 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any Directors or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out on pages 24 to 44 in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance between
the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization of
greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation. Accordingly,
the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect internal and external
communications by means of telephone, emails and conferences or
such other communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, we are able to minimize physical travelling and printing.
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Detailed information about the Group’s environmental policies and
performance for the year ended 31 March 2023 is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 45 to 72 of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge to the
external environments. The Group will invest in projects and investments
based on the strategic plan in order to cope with the market demand
and expectation. Given the rapid change of unforeseeable external
environments in the financial and equity markets, the Group is facing
significant strategic risks on its investments when changing the strategic
plans to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,
are adequately managed.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in Note 33(b) to the consolidated
financial statements headed “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” -
risk management objectives and policies”.

“Financial

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed “BANK BORROWING,
CONVERTIBLE BONDS, OTHER BONDS AND PROMISSORY NOTE”
in Financial Review on page 18 of this annual report and the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” on pages 80 to 84 of this report,
the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during
the year ended 31 March 2023.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director or other officer of
the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities, which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has taken out insurance against all losses and
liabilities associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors and other officers of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited was appointed as the Auditor, following
the retirement of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, at the annual general
meeting held on 30 September 2020.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been
audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited, which retires and, being eligible,
offers itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting for the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as
the Auditor.

By order of the Board

SU Xiaonong
Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2023
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of DINGYI
GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 208,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

=4
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and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Impairment Assessment on Loan and Interest

Receivables

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

MRFHER

FEU S 7R B 1 B AR (B AT 4

AL A GRS -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMmE A EEREEHER

RS E FEARERMNEXAE - RESHAH
BRI ETRAERNER - BLEHE
EHMEFTERA G BHRREHABREETRE

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had loan and interest
receivables measured at amortised cost amounted to
approximately HK$1,969,308,000 and reversal of allowance
for impairment of approximately HK$53,728,000 has been
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2028.

RZZEZ=F=A=+—H EBS5EZREHENFTED
JE UK B 3k R B B 4 B #51,069,308,000t K REIE =T
=A==t HIEFERBREARLREAERBELBE
53,728,0007T °

Management judgment is required in assessing and
determining the recoverability of loan and interest receivables
and adequacy of allowance made using the expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”.
ERBANRBEEEVBREENFOR I eRmIAIERRE
HEEBHE([TRREEEE DRI G RETREERR
S AT U Bl 1 DA 2 Pt SR B i O 7 2 MR VR HE 21U o

We have identified the ECL for loan and interest receivables
as a key audit matter because the determination of ECL for
loan and interest receivables are based on management’s
estimation by taking into account the credit loss experience,
repayment history, financial background and financial
condition of each borrower, all of which involve a significant
degree of management judgment.
BMESERERENENTEREEEE#MIABARERT
21 DEARETRKEREMNENEREEEFERIER
EEREEGAREERANCEERELR  BREL KA
SRMBARRELHEME - FIEEEA P REEREHED
BRIEE -

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of loan and interest receivables included the
following:

BMBEERKERENEREN ENEZEFEEUATE
18 :

- Understanding the procedures performed by
management, including periodic review on overdue
receivables and the assessment of expected credit
losses allowance on the loan and interest receivables;

- THEEREETNRET SETHERBHEKRE
NeHh W ER LA SRR E SRR

- Understanding and evaluating the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness of the
model selection and key measurement parameters
determination;

-  TERIVHEREEERENER L FHEER
EBRRTENELHNETHEREAE

- Understanding the management’s identification
of significant increase in credit risk, defaults and
credit-impaired loans, corroborated management’s
explanation with supporting evidence for the historical
information;

- THREREZMEARRBEZEEN  BORELERE
EREMNERNAE  WABRTERNIHEEREE
BTG ARRE |

S0 AR IO B A PR )
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment Assessment on Loan and Interest
Receivables (Continued)

Key audit matter
REEtER

B ET S IH®)
PRy 5 3R e F 12 Y A 43 ()

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BBt EERRETER

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

- Assessing the reasonableness of economic indicator

selection, economic scenarios and weightings
application, assessed the reasonableness of the
estimation by comparing with industry data for
forward-looking measurement;

—  AMERERRER  CEBERMEEERNSEN
AR AR - AR ABE AR B RITE
2z

- Checking major data inputs used in the expected

credit losses models, on sample basis, to the Group’s
record; and

- BAKEREMERESEHEERRRLMANER
WABUR R

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity

of the independent external valuer taking into account
its experience and qualifications.

— AHMEBUIMBAEMOE N REFEILR gZEAK
BN ER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

FRSRE AT FIH )

Assessment of Net Realisable Value of Properties BRPVERBEHENCBR I YERNT
under Development and Completed Properties B REFG

Held for Sale

Refer to Notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements. ELBEHMIBEHRERNT18%19 ©

Key audit matter

MRFEHER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMmE M EEREETER

The Group’s properties under development (“PUD”) and
completed properties held for sale (“PHS”) amounted to
approximately HK$1,470,254,000 and HK$347,952,000
respectively as at 31 March 2023. The management
assessed the net realisable value (“NRV”) of PUD and PHS
as at 31 March 2023 and the carrying amounts of PUD and
PHS were stated at the lower of cost and NRV.
RZZBZ=F=A=+—0 AEEZZRTWE(TERE
RYE D ERBERENERTIVE(HELENEETY
¥ ) o R4 BB #1,470,254,0007T KB #347,952,0007T °
BEEENR-_TE-=F=ZA=1+—HBEERFWERRE
HENERTITYENAIZRFE(NAIERFEE]  EESP
MERFEHENE R T ENREEIRKA R E#IRF
BzRIEETER -

The assessment requires management judgement and
estimates. The risk in relation to assessment of net realisable
value of properties under development and properties held
for sale is considered relatively higher due to high degree of
management judgement.
AHEREEERE L A R - AR RERTYER
FELEMEA R FENREREN = E HE MR A
BB ER -

We have identified the assessment of net realisable value
of properties under development and completed properties
held for sales as a key audit matter because the assessment
requires management judgement and estimates. The
assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and properties held for sale is considered
relatively higher due to high degree of management
judgement.
ERERERARERTMELFELHENERIMELZA
B FER L HE A B SEENEEER
BRETEE - ENEEENSEAE  BRPYERS
TEHEME 2 &R FEN L ERERAEERS °

Our audit procedures in relation to the assessment of
net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale included the following:
BB EERTYERESEFLENE R IR AR
FENBEZIEFBENTRIE

- Evaluating management’s assessment by comparing,
on a sample basis, the estimated selling price
less selling expenses and the estimated costs to
completion used in the assessment with the price and
cost data from recent transactions or available market
information;

—  FHMEEREEELARE - AR ARG
FrEBREER Y RAFHE TR AEREFBARFHK

A TS E R R EIR TR

- Obtaining understanding from management and
performing assessment on the latest status and
development plans of the underlying property projects,
such as budgeted estimated costs to completion
approved by management; and

- RERETHEBEYEERSIBRNLKERTE
(PIEnEIR EHERTAE TR TR @ Wttt #ETT
FE R

- Checking management’s adjustments to recoverable

amounts of the underlying property projects if their
carrying amounts are below net realisable value.
AR EIE R NEREABEENRAIZRFE - AligsE
BEHREYEER TKE S RBIELNRE -
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DAY (TR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report
185 7 % R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

SRS & T 5 R oA R
EEE
RMHAERARRESHUBRAEERTT
T (T BA B4 SRR (T3 2 B R S SRR T
BE)  WREERE N\ —FAREEOKE
A ETREHARERMERORBMRE K
BEBASD BSOS R A o BUPIBET
RARENANE  WEGLBATBERAEE
- ARREIBEATRE  BUTRERRE

BEAEREITOER TIF TR EAHRR
A (HTFAE) o SARRERA A] RE A ARFF S BARRSIHE » I

B R RIS B R R
AGEBREFELOEmAT « AR AEA
H AR -

ERIRIBERBENEAETET TIEN &2 - &
PERERET TIEHEREXHE M EXRIRE
REE » JRAPITT -

o HBIMFHE AR IREE SRR T S A HF S
BREFEERFERRANER - ReT AT
*éﬁzﬂgfb{}?%%%@kﬁﬁ - AR IEEGE ' )
BENETERE  (FREMABRMNER - &
RIEGFRIRES R BR - i - ERER - &
BRI - SOERBERAENESZ L EiREg
HMAHLFFMHRNEAERRAN AR
RARBEEIRNE TR M H IR E A SRR A

[\ -

o HHEEZMEBOARMES  ARESR
FEI%RTJ%L REZIER 1E|EE’\inéE
 EREAMERNERMEERER -

o  FHAEFMIRASTHRAEE A RIS
SEHERT R EN AR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concemn.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report
185 7 % R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Chan Wai Nam, William with practising certificate
number: PO5957.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2023

10th Floor

8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

LRk

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

2023 2022
—ECHF TEC 4
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 BETT BT
Revenue WA 6 1,216,573 154,984
Cost of sales SHER R (982,658) (1,866)
Gross profit EH 233,915 153,118
Other income E A 8 1,017 1,486
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HERERERZANERE
fair value through profit or loss TREEFE - (60)
Loss arising from financial assets at REREEANEREZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEELCEE (18,348) (670)
Reversal/(provision) of allowance for B, (GHREWERRFEZ
impairment of loan and interest receivables ~ JR{E & 53,728 (60,423)
Selling and distribution costs $HE R HA A (8,050) (11,228)
General and administrative expenses —E R ATEBUE (34,331) (42,624)
Finance costs BhE R AR 9 (106,475) (121,327)
Profit/(loss) before tax BERT&F,(EE) 10 121,456 (81,728)
Income tax expense FrigHiE A 12 (116,790) (19,598)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the RATRHBAELFE
owners of the Company aF,/ (&8) 4,666 (101,326)
Earnings/(loss) per share w|EER(HR)
Basic and diluted (HK cents) B R 5 (L) 14 0.06 (1.38)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
o R R AR R Ml R AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

2023 2022
—ECHF TEC 4
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BETT BT
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERH(HE) 4,666 (101,326)
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income EERMFES(ZH) K
for the year
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HIZ A EF 7 2 185~
to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange difference arising on translating MEGINEREE ZEH Z58
foreign operations (222,530) 102,069
Total other comprehensive (expenses)/income FEEMERE (L H), Wa4asE
for the year (222,530) 102,069
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income for AR TR AEIGEEZEA
the year attributable to the owners of the () M4k
Company (217,864) 743

S5 3544 O 43 25 A R 4 ) 97
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
o OF B %5 5K D 3

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

2023 2022
—ECHF TEC 4
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE BETT BT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment properties REME 15 15,832 15,523
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 16 8,526 11,485
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 5,680 6,360
Prepayments and deposits FENFRIERIES 22 1,466 1,231
Deferred tax assets BIETRIREE 31 41,359 54,791
72,863 89,390
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 21 7,250 7,250
Properties under development BERERAYE 18 1,470,254 2,145,681
Completed properties held for sale FEHENER IR 19 347,952 108,828
Other receivables, prepayments E YRR - TARTFRIE K
and deposits e 22 22,050 61,995
Loan and interest receivables FEUE R B 23 1,803,871 1,817,875
Financial assets at fair value through RIERREANBEREZ
profit or loss SREE 20 14,695 33,043
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEFEY 24 206,333 152,120
3,872,405 4,326,792
Current liabilities nBAR
Trade and other payables 2 5 R H e R 26 55,731 36,664
Contract liabilities BHEBE 26 1,032,818 1,522,042
Amounts due to related companies JERAE R B BRI 25 96,947 41,091
Tax payables e TR 239,980 156,282
Lease liabilities HEBRE 17 2,972 2,418
Convertible bonds AR ES 29 - 893,329
Other bonds HiEH 30 1,259,500 279,500
Promissory note g 27 - 5,639
2,687,948 2,936,965
Net current assets mENEERE 1,184,457 1,389,827
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 1,257,320 1,479,217

98 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A F B4 R Ol %
For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ
2023 2022
ot Sl —F-—F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E BRTIT BT T
Capital and reserves BFREE
Share capital &7 28 73,568 73,568
Reserves (= 1,183,163 1,401,027
Total equity aiEs 1,256,731 1,474,595
Non-current liabilities El o h=Ki
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 589 1,357
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEE 31 - 3,265
589 4,622
1,257,320 1,479,217

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 30 June 2023 and are signed on
its behalf by:

SU Xiaonong
g

Director

EF

EHMBRERN T _=FA=tHHRESFEH
ERFERETIEL B T EERRRE

WANG Xiaohua
FRE

Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
o D HE £ 5 B %

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

NG DN
Convertible
bonds -
Capital Share Exchange equity
redemption option Other fluctuation  conversion
Share Share reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  Accumulated
capital premium (Note i) (Note ii) (Note i) (Note iv) (Note v) losses  Total equity
-2 [F] ERED TREES-
B BREGE ] | B RABREE
2 Kfam (MaEi) (M&Eii) (M&iii) (Miiv) (Miv) RHER fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT EWTT ERTT ERTT EWTT ERTT ERTT EWTT ERTT
A1 Apr 2022 RZFzZE
mA—-H 73,568 3,313,708 14 152,850 (795,421) 96,661 728,704 (2,095,489) 1,474,595
Profitfor the year EEET - - - - - - - 4,666 4,666
Other comprenensive expenses for - EEEAFATH
the year
-Exchange differencearisngon  ~REBNEREE?
translating foreign operations ErzE - = s = = (222,530) = s (222,530)
Totel comprehensive expenses  FEEATHEE
for the year - - - - - (222,530) - 4,666 (217,864)
Share options lapsed B E - - - (23,670) - - - 23,670 =
Convertible options lapsed BARAERESRE - - - - - - (728,704) 728,704 -
At31 March 2023 i ——
=A=t-H 73,568 3,313,708 14 129,180 (795,421) (125,869) - (1,338,449) 1,256,731

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
£ OF Bl 45 52 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z=F==4F=H=+—HIFZ

Attributable to the owners of the Company

LYNSE TP
Convertible
bonds -
Capital Share Exchange equity
redemption option Other fluctuation conversion
Share Share reserve reserve resenve reserve reseve  Accumulated
capital premium (Note ) (Note i (Note i) (Note ) (Note ) losses Total equity
BREE EiR® TRkES-
B EhEss itk B ErEHE
i Rir%E (M) (ki) (HsHii) (Mzkiv) (M) By b oo
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
YT BT AU YT BT BETT BT BT BETTL
At1 Apri 2021 \ZEZ-F
mA-A 73570 3313728 14 294914 (795,421) (5,408) 728,704 2,136,207) 1,473,869
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - (101,326) (101,326)
Other comprehensive EREMsAlE
income for the year
-Bxchange difference arisingon ~ —AEFHERESEL
tranglating foreign operations EXZE - - - - - 102,069 - - 102,069
Total comprehensive ERRANRAT
income for the year - - - - - 102,069 - (101,326) 743
Shares repurchased and cancelled R E Rt @ (15) - - - - - - (17)
Share options lapsed BAMERE - - - (142,084) - - - 142,064 -
At 31 March 2022 R-Z--%
=h=1-8 73,568 3,313,708 14 162,850 (795,421) 96,661 728,704 (2,095,489) 147459
SR B E A R
SR CEAER
°
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
o bF HE 55 5% By R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

(V)

Capital redemption reserve in accordance with law of Bermuda which has been
paid out of the distributable reserves of the Company.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of unexercised share options
granted by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy of share-based payments set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other reserve represents:

(@) The change in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in loss of control over those subsidiaries; and

(b) The recognition of deemed contribution from Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (“Mr.
Li”) under merger accounting upon the completion of acquisition of
United Faith Investments Limited (“United Faith”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “United Faith Group”) on 26
March 2018, representing the differences amongst the investment cost
for the acquisition of United Faith Group and the amount due to related
companies, and elimination of the share capital of the United Faith.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The convertible bonds-equity conversion reserve represents the value of the
unexercised equity component of convertible bonds issued by the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for convertible
bonds set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
aHBeRExR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

2023 2022
—E_=HF .- —
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEEE
Profit/(loss) before tax BERIER, (EE) 121,456 (81,728)
Adjustments for: BN TEIAE
Bank interest income RITHFSHA (332) (722)
Finance costs b & R AR 106,475 121,327
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BREMEEITE
equipment 2,204 3,317
Depreciation of investment properties WEMFEITE 837 892
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 3,240 9,186
Loss arising from financial assets at REBEZEEANEREZ 2R
fair value through profit or loss BEEXEE 18,348 670
(Reversal)/provision of allowance for (Bm),FHEEKER K
impairment of loan and interest receivables | 8 Z B {E R (53,728) 60,423
Operating cash flows before movements EEEPHA LeRe
in working capital mE 198,500 113,365
Increase in investment properties B Y HEIE N (2,283) -
Decrease/(increase) in properties under BRAVERLD, (3EMN)
development 516,321 (1,102,149)
(Increase)/decrease in completed properties  #{EHEB R TYEE (M),
held for sale VR (271,522) 1,545
Decrease in other receivables, prepayments  EfthfEUREE X « FERTFIE K
and deposits BE R 35,060 168,544
(Increase)/decrease in loan and interest FEME R R F 2 (3G, R
receivables (65,698) 437,966
Changes on fair value of financial asset at REREEAABEEEZ SR
fair value through profit or loss BEAAEED = 509
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other E 5 R HE M EABRIE I,
payables O 282 (22,441)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BHEEORD), M (376,337) 741,125
Cash generated from operations LEMECHES 34,323 338,464
Income tax paid B ETSHR (15,467) (22,581)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM EETDMICELPH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 18,856 315,883
[ ]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
BisE BETT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Purchases of property, plant and EEME - BB &EHE
equipment (7) (37)
Interest received BUFE 332 722
NET CASH GENERATED FROM BRETDFR/CRESHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 325 685
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AMEEE
Advance from related companies BFREBEENT] 58,835 24,890
Payments on repurchase of shares BIGEE AR = (17)
Repayment of promissory note BEAREE (5,751) -
Repayment of bank borrowing EBIRTTIER - (393,170)
Repayment of convertible bonds BEEBRES = (63,750)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (3,286) (9,054)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ MEIHELE (FRA)ZES
(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES B 49,798 (441,101)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRBESSEMEM (KD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B 68,979 (124,533)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REA—HBZHRE&RAEEEY
AT 1 APRIL 152,120 306,515
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates ~ YMEFE R & F) 2 /2 (14,766) (29,862)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=RA=1+—HZER&R
AT 31 MARCH BeEEY 24 206,333 152,120

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o B B 5 e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

GENERAL INFORMATION

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information to the annual report.

The directors of the Company regard Wincon Capital Investment
Limited (“Wincon Capital”), a private limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company. Its ultimate controlling
party is Mr. Li Kwong Yuk.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in loan financing, securities
trading and properties development.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollar (“HK$’'000"), unless otherwise stated,
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
Other than those subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), whose functional currency is Renminbi
(“RMB”), the functional currency of its subsidiaries is HKS.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

J

2.

AU RRR LA )

NRERNRFERMTS2EERNNERF
RGPHEEEMUMEEBRABAXNZ
B MW ER R BERBRIUSEA
EREMMGET AR - REFTEEXAE
ZARER  AEEEERZENS2EE
R ERHHEEXRBEEERMERZE
ERBEZRHH - RREAHMBREPIE
RN/ UBRBERS AABTIRILEERE
BE o M BIERI - BREABYBREE
RIS 25 AR 17 3 E (Y 34 J BB R 2 AR
MRNRERR S - RIEFAVHREZER
F1I6RARCHER S - UREEEQT
B2 EFERERUZEELIFARE
PlanE B st ERIE2R/ FE /2 A # IR F
BB B G EREI65% FERE /2 (8
BE-

IIRAREXZNEMTAMS @ FAIBER
BAEZAERMTHRERBEANGER

SfE - BB ERM T ARE - Bk o)t tE
REF - HERMEREXSHERS
AN BB BHREME - AREFED/F

—& - FoRIE=R BFLH DR
EEBARBNABRIZE RZBAREY
NREFENERBENL - HlamT

o  FEABABEEZERNGERHH
RS LR EESABESNIRE
(REEFHE) -

s F_ABABBERFE-ANMES
REUIN  ATERAEERNEREEN
BEZENMEHNBARBE &

o FERBABBIEZBABBE AN
REENBENEHMES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Going concern assessment

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before
Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRSs (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October  Insurance Contracts'

2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —Z—

4.

SEZA=—AULEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment property over the estimated useful live and after taking
into account of the estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposal. A leased property which is recognised as a right-of-
use asset is derecognised if the Group as intermediate lessor
classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for own
use in the production or supply of services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease term or
3 years
Furniture, fixtures and office  33'/;%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development and completed properties held
for sale are classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold
land element which is measured at cost model in accordance with
the accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties under
development and completed properties held for sale are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on a specific identification basis including allocation of the related
development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated cost
to completion and costs necessary to make the sales. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale upon completion.

4,

TERHBE @)
sk - R R AR (o)

WE - BERRERE HRNEERLERSR
SEERAZEER T ELRRLEN @
THER REEXRENE  BELRE
HARELZ ERaERER (AL EMRER
TREZEEZ REE ZRERE) I EmE

5
27
e ©

8
FEERAR AT BT FEMENBIEET
Bk FERANBEASLLAERE - AJ#R
FEEFEZ A HEER TR 2 RMEE
XA B2 SHE PR AR ©

ERPOREFEHENCSETIY
E

BRF#E KRR ENERTYERFEL
ENERTINESIBRRBEE - KHEE
THEB DRI E A EEE 2 QT BORIEMA A
BRI BRTPVELFIELEND R
T AR ER] #IRFERE R OREE
SRR o ECANARIBNT E BB B EMEE - B30
FEEEEMMERRAEHAREEEERT
BERMCMEERAR - AT FERYENG
At EERIG T ST AR BAETTIHE PR IR
Ko fFHIHENBERABREERBBRNIHE
EREERARAEERIEHHEERELN
IREIBPIAN

BRPNEERTREEHEHENDRT
YE K

S0 AR IO B A PR )
SRR

111



112

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise
cash at banks and in hand and cash at financial institutions. For
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash, as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
For financial instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “loss arising from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” line item or “loss on
disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including loan and
interest receivables, other receivables, deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowance for financial assets
at amortised cost equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular debtor, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair
value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised
cost;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable:

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor;
or

- information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counter party has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weight
amount that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying
amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amount due to a related company, liabilities component
of convertible bonds, other bond, promissory note and bank
borrowing are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

4,
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Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that does
not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option
is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to share premium. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible
note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Modification of financial liabilities

Except for changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform in which
the Group applies the practical expedient, when the contractual
terms of a financial liability are modified, the Group assess whether
the revised terms result in a substantial modification from original
terms taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under
the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly,
such modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain
or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such difference
is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions

Share options granted to employees

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss, with a corresponding increase in equity (i.e share
option reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve), when
the Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments
are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (*CGU”) to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services to a customer. Specifically, the Group uses a
five-step approach to recognise revenue:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligations is transferred to

customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or services (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods that are substantially the same.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties and sales related taxes.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset
or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognised revenue from the following major source:
- Sales of properties

Sales of properties

The Group’s property development activities are mainly carried out
in the PRC. Taking into account the contract terms, the Group’s
business practice and the legal and regulatory environment,
revenue from property sales contracts is recognised at a point
in time. Under the transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS 15,
revenue from property sales is generally recognised when the
property is accepted by the customer, or deemed as accepted
according to the contract, whichever is earlier, which is the point
in time when the customer has the ability to direct the use of the
property and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of
the property.

The Group receives the deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreement. Such deposits result
in contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period for the full amount of the contract price.

Lease
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases with
similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when the
Group reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from individual
leases within the portfolio.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases is recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
- the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include: fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

- the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

- the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

- the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Group entities operate various pension schemes. The schemes
are generally funded through payments to insurance companies
or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculation. The Group has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

Payments to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme in
the PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision to the
carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition exemption
are recognised on the date of remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

4.

Aﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁi’élﬁi;{
For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZF = =H=+—HIFF/E
FESETHE
WRIE=#)
VAR RGEAE T IB RN B2 IR TR - BRIEE BN

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —Z—

4.

SEZA=—AULEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the
part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits has become probable.
If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic
benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in which the change
in probability occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances
where no reliable estimate can be made.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group estimates and recognises liabilities based on the
submitted tax returns and expected the final tax assessment to be
received will have no additional tax become due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 March 2023, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$41,359,000 (2022: approximately HK$54,791,000) in relation
to allowance for loan and interest receivable are set out in Note
31. The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits generated are less or more than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which result in revision of
future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal
or further recognition takes place.

5.

fEET TRARBAE =R 2 2 AR #)

AT RBRARNRZ TR RN oS R
A TR RN EME 2 AR - AHERK
RAAARRERES T -V RFEEENM
BEREEFHERABZERRR

FRiG#R
AEBANZERDEIEEBNAENR - RE
EHRZHAEHABRBELERH
B o FRAHZ R P RET EAD AR E &N
| o AEBERBAIIZR 2 MV KA RIER
BB & B iR R B BT 1 o PR RR SN AR
B o WS EEZREBEHEREY T L
ZEBREMTR - MABEZEFFENEDL
EREEHRRANZERRELEMEHREER
afE-

BIERBAEE

R-TE-_=F=A=+—R0 HEKE
RERFEBEREBZELERIBEENS
41359000 L (ZTEZZF : N8
54,791,0007T ) KT 331 c IBEFHIBE E
LRI ZECARBARREA R ZARK
BN ERTRR 5 - WATEECERK
RIERBBMINAZHREY  EREE
RIERB B MBET] RRERREFHET
APREFRIIEE E N e NIB R B ol — i
R WREESGE— PR ML ianiE

=7
7o

S0 AR IO B A PR )
SRR

137



138

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

The PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible allowance and expenditures including sales charges,
borrowing costs and all properties development expenditures.

The Group is subject to the PRC land appreciation tax in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations. In recognising
the PRC land appreciation tax, the management estimated the
tax rates enacted to the Group with reference to the latest tax
jurisdictions of the cities of the PRC in which the properties of the
Group situated in. However, the PRC land appreciation tax rates
might vary upon the finalisation of payment.

Estimated net realisable value of completed
properties held for sale and properties under
development

Management performs a review at each reporting period on
the carrying amounts of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development. Based on management’s
review, write-down of completed properties held for sale and
properties under development will be made when the estimated
net realisable value has declined below the carrying amount. In
determining the net realisable value of completed properties held
for sale and properties under development, management based
on recent global and local economic developments, recent sales
transactions of the Group and other similar properties in the
surrounding areas, marketability of the Group’s existing properties,
market survey reports available from independent property
valuers, internally available information and management’s
expectation on future sales.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amounts of the completed
properties held for sales and properties under development
were approximately HK$347,952,000 (2022: approximately
HK$108,828,000) and HK$1,470,254,000 (2022: approximately
HK$2,145,681,000) respectively. No write down of completed
properties held for sales and properties under development was
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: nil).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

J

fEET T RABARA = 2 F 2R (%)

RE L IRER (M L HIRER )
B IR E R D RAETR R £ IR AR
Y IR ERE AR EMEMSRBRAN
A MR (BIREEER - BN
BMERHRFAX)

AEBRBEEBERZMERAINHE L
BED - NHERTE L IRETR - E12E
BE2EAKEMEME 2F BB 2 &M
EEFHEARAREZBE - A > PEL
WIBEREAEENEENFTRERES -

FEHENERTIYMREZRD]Y
RZGRTRBRE

EEENSHEPHBELENESRTIYE
RERTYRZREELETERN  REEE
EBZERN  BREFAERFERSENEKE
B - BEHRELENERTYERER
RYRELHOR - BIEESRRIITHIRRNR
A E R - AEE K EASRE MR
MEZEOHER S - AREREMEZT
BWEIN - B YEGEMARR ZTS
HERE - A SERNREEEHRKHE
EZRAEEREFHENERIMERER
PR A BIRFEE -

RIZE-=F=A=+—H  HEHEND
ETIMERBERPYECETEIOL
B #5347,952,000C( Z B - —F : 98K
108,828,0007T ) & ##1,470,254,0007T (=
T ZF )74 82,145,681,00000) © B E
ZE=FZRA=+—HLFE  BEER
FHELEMNE R TMERBERP YA
ZERZF )



>

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for loan and interest
receivables

ECL on loan and interest receivables are assessed individually.
Allowance for impairment of loan and interest receivables are
based on assumptions about ECL. The Group uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, bases on the number of days that an
individual loan and interest receivable is outstanding as well
as the Group’s forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and estimates
could materially affect the result of the assessment and it may
be necessary to make additional allowance for impairment to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of loan and
interest receivables was approximately HK$1,803,871,000
(2022: approximately HK$1,817,875,000), net of allowance
of approximately HK$165,437,000 (2022: approximately
HK$219,165,000). The information about the ECL and the
Group’s loan and interest receivables are disclosed in Note 23.

5.

fEET TRARBAE =R 2 2 AR #)

Bl ERRFBZRABERERE
i

FEWE TR R M B TR M E BB R E R 1TR
ft - BRER LA SRR EREERERE
BEHMEEBRNER - AREEFLZER
R EBRER E O BRAZBER - TRERE
B M E TR R M B ARTBERREBIA R AEE

RBEHROBIEEEREL A - ZEFR
BRI M EERELERY
£ BrgtAUERAHBRERPIELREI
ER A -

RZTEZ=F=A=+—8 " EREZXK
FE R BREE 451 1,803,871,000T( =&
— 4 #978%51,817,875,0007T ) ¢ FORR B
HBH)B#165,437,000( ZE==F : 4978
#219,165,0007T) - BEATEEIEEBEUR
REBHEREFR RN EHER KM E231%
5% o

S0 AR IO B A PR )
SRR

139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE
6. REVENUE 6. WA
WAEFNRE  BHEBERVEHREEL

) B U5 e B YRR (P B R R 58 = 7 Y
FIRKSHERBERIA) - AKREWAZAHTIA

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable arising
from loan financing, securities trading and properties development,
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties and sales

related taxes. An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: N
2023 2022
—2=-= T fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BRTT BT T
Revenue from contracts with customer  Fi#M ¥R E 4RI 1558
within the scope of HKFRS 15 H/EANERSHIA
Sales of properties — at point of time THE W — A IF 2 1,075,503 6,512
1,075,503 6,512
Revenue from other sources e LN
Interest income from provision of loan REETRERBE 2FE
financing services ON 141,061 148,432
Dividend income AR S WA 9 40
141,070 148,472
1,216,573 154,984
Transaction price allocated to the remaining PRERTEVREZXZER

performance obligations

The amount of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
regarding contracts for sale of properties as at 31 March 2023
was approximately HK$1,086,772,000 (2022: approximately
HK$954,988,000) and is expected to be recognised as revenue
within one year.

The ultimate consideration for those contracts will depend on the
occurrence or non-occurrence of future customer’s fulfilment
of contracts. Accordingly, the above may not reflect the actual
performance of the Group in the future. The analysis is solely for
compliance with the HKFRS 15 disclosure requirement in respect
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations.

R-ZTE-=F=ZA=+—R8  2B=HMEH
EMESN 2B TRARKCREBITHE DK
[B1T) 2 X 5B B#I7E%1,086,772,0007T
(ZEZZF : 4975%054,988,0007T) * I
TEETR —F RERABUA -

HZEENZERERERIARREEFRES
BITEHIME Bt - Lt FIERMEER R
AEBERRZERKE - AESMER/RE
EEMBREENFEIGRAAIBERTE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZF = =H=+—HIFF/E
SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. PEEH
Information reported to the board of directors, being the chief MEFS(NEELERREEELEREK
operating decision maker (“CODM?), for the purpose of resources EHEDEFRZERDIHE RS R H L
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on WEd - RIERAR S EY KT IRERE
types of goods delivered or service rendered. ZEER o
The Group has three reportable and operating segments (i) AEEE=-RHAZ2ZmMMEESE  ()BFHE
securities trading business; (i) loan financing business; and (iii) EER  (\EXMEER  Kii)ypEERZE
properties development business. Segment revenue is measured % o DM AEHHBER R P — B A AR
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of 2 o
profit or loss.
Segment revenue and results WA R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REERETERREESFHEI D ZWAR
reportable and operating segment: EEDWWT -
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE_Z_=—F=-A=1+—HLEE
Securities Loan Properties
trading financing  development
business business business Total
BHEERE HSRNERE DRAREE ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
EETT T BT EETT
Revenue WA
External revenue SAERURA 9 141,061 1,075,503 1,216,573
Loss arising from financial assets at FVTPL  MMERIRIZANEREZ £/
BEEEBR (18,348) = = (18,348)
Reversal of allowance for impairment of BEERETR RS ZHE
loan and interest receivables a3 - 53,728 - 53,728
Segment (loss)/profit SE(ER) B2 (18,339) 194,789 75,188 251,638
Bank interest income BITRBIA 332
Finance costs AR A (106,475)
Unallocated corporate income RABREA 301
Unallocated corporate expenses AAWMARIHT (24,340)
Profit before tax BREtAI &R 121,456
[ ]
Prikise LK S g el L YA
TR EAER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2022

7. DEER @)

DR A B ER (W)
HE-_E-_F=A=+—HIFE

Securities Loan Properties
trading financing development
business business business Total
BHREEER ERRBER  NERLES Fak]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT
Revenue A
External revenue I3 LVON 40 148,432 6,512 154,984
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERBRRELNERE
at FVTPL ZERBECER (60) - - (60)
Loss arising from financial assets at FVTPL  MMERIRIZANEREZ £/
BEEAZER (670) - - (670)
Provision of allowance for impairment of ~ FHEEWERRFIS 2 RE
loan and interest receivables B - (60,423) - (60,423)
Segment (loss)/profit AH(ER) 29 (690) 88,009 (14,776) 72,543
Bank interest income FITFBMA 722
Finance costs AR A (121,327)
Unallocated corporate income AAWAFRA 218
Unallocated corporate expenses AAWMARIHT (33,884)
Loss before tax PRI AR E (81,729

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4. Segment
profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from each
segment without allocation of certain other income, finance costs,
gain on modification of convertible bonds and certain central
administration expenses. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and performance

assessment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEER )

Segment assets and liabilities SPHREERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by REERETERREEDHE D EER
reportable and operating segment: BEITAT -
2023 2022
2= —EF-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Segment assets SHEE
Securities trading business BEEEFEE 14,695 33,043
Loan financing business BB XY 1,803,816 1,817,875
Properties development business MR ETE 2,071,444 2,329,284
Total segment assets DB ELT 3,889,955 4,180,202
Unallocated corporate assets RAOBARIEE 55,313 235,980
Total consolidated assets SHtEERE 3,945,268 4,416,182
Segment liabilities SHEAaR
Securities trading business BHFEEEK = -
Loan financing business BB ER = -
Properties development business s ESkE e 1,563,479 1,528,653
Total segment liabilities DIEEEER 1,563,479 1,528,653
Unallocated corporate liabilities KHBEARIAE 1,125,058 1,412,934
Total consolidated liabilities SHaERSE 2,688,537 2,941,587

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other

than certain property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, certain right-of-use assets, deferred tax assets,
certain other receivables, prepayments and deposits and

cash and cash equivalents; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

certain other payables, tax payables, deferred tax liabilities,

amount due to related companies, promissory note,

convertible bonds, other bonds and lease liabilities.

HRERNBERALASBERDEERME

s MMBBEEBIEREZEEZENE(GETY
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 March 2023

7. DEER @)

HEtinrEmEH

BE_Z_-#=-A=t+—HILEFE

Securities Loan Properties
trading financing  development
business business business  Unallocated Total
BHEREE HRREEE DERRER AR ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BRTT ERTT BRTT BT
Amounts included in the measure of ~ REFENBEFIEB
segment profit or loss or segment DEEERTTAZEE
assets:
Additions to non-current assets FERBEENE(TRERL
(other than deferred tax assets) WEEE) - - 7 3,295 3,302
Depreciation of property, plantand 9% - R RZENTE
equipment - - 1,042 1,162 2,204
Depreciation of investment properties  REMENE - - 837 - 837
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {EFREAETE = = = 3,240 3,240
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE-_Z-_—_F=A=+—HILFE
Securities Loan Properties
trading financing  development
business business business Unallocated Total
BREEXE BYRERE NERZEE KAl ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETT BETT
Amounts included in the measure of R ENBEFIER
segment profit or loss or segment NEBERTAZEE:
assets:
Additions to non-current assets FERBEERE(TREET
(other than deferred tax assets) WHEE) - - 37 4,842 4879
Depreciation of property, plantand % - BE RRETE
equipment - - 1,741 1,576 3,317
Depreciation of investment properties  REMENE - - 892 - 892
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EFREEETE - - - 9,186 9,186
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country of
domicile) and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location of the operations. Information
about the Group’s non-current assets (other than prepayment
and deposits and deferred tax assets) is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.

O S 5 3 Bt

BE—T-=—F=-A=1—HIFE

7. DEEF @)

EEH
AEBz EEUNEEFERR ME) R
-

BRAKERAINSDES 2 BAZERHZE
BREMET - BEAKEZIERBEE (B
MR E S MREHIREERIN) 2 BRHR
BEMEHENERS

Revenue from external customers

REMBERZKA
2023 2022
- el “EoCF
Revenue from Revenue from
contract with From other contract with From other
customers sources Total customers sources Total
EFANBA  RERRMEKE g XPeMA REEMRR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT ERTT BRTT BB BB BB
The PRC H 1,075,503 141,061 1,216,564 6,512 148,167 154,679
Hong Kong B - 9 9 - 305 305
1,075,503 141,070 1,216,573 6,512 148,472 154,984
Non-current assets
ERBDEE

As at 31 March

®=BA=+—H
2023 2022
—E== B
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥ETT BETT
The PRC H 26,565 29,273
Hong Kong B 3,473 4,095
30,038 33,368

The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31

AEBERBE—T—

=FRZFE-F=H

March 2023 and 2022.

=+ B FRE L EARRI D EREE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. PEER @
Information about major customers FREEERHEH
The Group has a large number of customers, none of whom REERERERP SIBREREPERAE
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue. EEUWART0%IA L ©
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfblas
2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Bank interest income IRITH B 332 722
Government grants (Note) BB (P3E) 361 -
Rental income HEWA 298 216
Exchange gain B 5 s - 2
Others E A 26 546
1,017 1,486
Note: The amount represents salaries and wage subsidies granted under M3 R BEABABRINTRREBFENEESET
Anti-Epidemic Fund by the Government of the Hong Kong Special BHROF L ITEMM  ARXMNEEZZ
Administrative Region for the use of paying wages of employees for the Z=F=A=T+—HIEFENEEIEA -
year ended 31 March 2023.
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. RERA
2023 2022
= B
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Effective interest expenses on convertible MR EHF BRI RS
bonds (Note 29) (MF5E29) 86,671 104,530
Interest on promissory note EHEBRZHE 112 250
Interest on other bonds HAbES 2 HE 19,565 16,295
Interest on lease liabilities HEABZNE 127 252
106,475 121,327
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

10. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 10. BRAERAIEAN],(EE)
Profit/(loss) before tax has been arrived at after charging: BREATEF] (BB EMBRTHISE -
2023 2022
—EB=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments  ®E % K& EBTHR A B#E 4,500 5,422
Other staff costs (excluding directors’ and EMBTITRACTEREESR
chief executive’s emoluments) FETBAEMSE) 11,728 13,820
Retirement benefit schemes contribution RNEREEEZ(TREE
(excluding directors’ and chief executive’s EFEREFETHRAEME)
emoluments) 325 315
Total staff costs BIALLRR 16,553 19,557
Amount of inventories recognised as an EMRARAI I FESRE
expense 982,658 1,866
Auditors’ remuneration Z RN B &
— Audit services — BIZARTE 1,330 1,280
— Non-audit services — EFZRT - 300
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - = KB 2 ITE 2,204 3,317
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE 837 892
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 3,240 9,186
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 1. EFERTBITHAE ZF
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s () ERFRFETHRARBZ#HE
emoluments
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and EXNHENAFEEEREETHRA
chief executive for the year are as follows: BEXAZHE0T

For the year ended 31 March 2023
BE-S_=FSA=t+-HLEE

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fees other benefits  contribution Total
Hek Hido et
ik Htias AR #a
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

W W W ERTT

Executive Directors: HBITEE:
Li Kwong Yuk (resigned on FHRE(HR=Z==

30 December 2022) TZRA=+HEHE) - 3,080 42 3,122
Su Xiaonong HER - 640 51 691
Wang Xiaohua T - 180 9 189
Ho Cheong Hang Edmond (appointed il E#(R =T =—4%

on 30 December 2022) +ZR=1THBEZHA) - 75 4 79
Independent Non-Executive BIEBTES:

Directors:
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki FER 150 - - 150
Ip Chi Wai ELH 150 - - 150

420 3,975 106 4,501
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the year ended 31 March 2022

BE—T-=—F=-A=1—HIFE

1. EBENTEBITHA B Z FH

(%)

(a) EEREETHRARZHM® @)

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fees  other benefits contribution Total
ek RIRRER
He Hitigr AT g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive Directors: YITES:
Li Kwong Yuk S - 4,046 59 4,105
Su Xiaonong HER - 650 58 708
Wang Xiachua TheE - 180 9 189
Independent Non-Executive BIAFRITES :
Directors:
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki k28 150 - - 150
Ip Chi Wali 258 150 - - 150
420 4876 126 5,422
[ ]
SR A T B A WA
TR OSSR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Mr. Su Xiaonong is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
the directors and chief executive of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended
31 March 2023 and 2022.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included two directors
(2022: two directors) of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out in Note 11(a) above. The
emoluments paid to the remaining three (2022: three)
highest paid individuals are as follows:

 BEERTBITHAE ZHH

(a)

(b)

(435 )
(5 )/

EEREERTRARZHM®(®)

FHEORELET AR ZEBITRAR
MEEEXARBECMEBEES AT
RITHABFTRH 2 IR & 15 2 B

T -

RBEZE-_=FR-FT-__F=H
=T —HIEMAFE - AEBEBERAK
NAEERFEBITHA B A BB
% - fEARSI IMASKRINARE B
RS LBEREIE -

B TEEME DRESHREEAR
AIRANEEEBAREZIRGER - £
WBLERITEEME DRFRERR
AIEEMRHEZRT -

hBEEHAL
FAGERHFALEREARATMEBES
ZEIF  MEBES)  BEMe
FHBEHIR EXME11@) » X T
T=Z(ZE_=F : =F)EaH AL
ZBEmT

2023 2022

—=E-= T —fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BRETT BT T

Salaries and other benefits e LEMBER 3,516 6,504
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RURIETET SR 48 48
3,564 6,552
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EFREBITBRABZEME)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EBEEFALE)
The emoluments were within the following bands: FE D AT E -
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH BB A%
Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 T 2= %1,000,0007T 1 -
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 7B #4,000,001 7L E
75 %1,500,0007T 1 2
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 7B #1,500,001 70 E
75 #2,000,0007T 1 -
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 7B #3,000,0017TE
75 #53,500,0007T = _
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 B #£3,500,001 7T E
785 #4,000,0007T - 1
No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the REBEE—_ZT_=FR_T-__F=H
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon =+ —HIEMEFERRE - NEEGE
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office BN ENTEESHALME - tERRS
during the two years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022. AR INAR S B H 2R - SER
BRI (E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE . 5B

2023 2022
—EB_= .- "
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT IT

Current income tax & HARTIS R
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) PRI ZFTSRL([ TSR 36,528 35,339
The PRC LAT B R E R 69,855 194
Over provision in prior years FFiBERE - 911)
Deferred tax RIERIE 10,407 (15,024)
Income tax expense s % & A 116,790 19,598

(i)

(iv)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
profits tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%.

Since group entities are not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, Hong Kong Profits tax was
calculated at a flat rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profits (2022: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong tax has
been made during the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022 as there are no assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”), Singapore and Bermuda, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the BVI, Singapore and
Bermuda for both years.

LAT in the PRC is levied on properties developed by the
Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% (2022: ranging from 30% to 60%) on the appreciation
of land value, which under the applicable regulations, is
calculated based on the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights
and all properties development expenditures.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FTSMRERA @)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the REEMREHBERESHERRIT IR
profit/(loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or RI&F (BB HERET

loss as follows:

2023 2022
—E=HF T HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT ST T
Profit/(loss) before tax BERTER, (E51E) 121,456 (81,728)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% R4S Hi T R 25%
(2022: 25%) (Note (i) TR TF  25%) Rt E 2 A
(BREEG)) 30,364 (20,432)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses Ik il aunivd 1537 17,623 42,692
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERR G 2 S 2 = (581)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZHIEBE 2 BETE 6,557 7,028
LAT deductible for EIT purposes AEHE RSN 2 T HIZER (16,647) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REA ARG ENB AR Z
operating in other jurisdictions TR EE 12,303 (8,198)
Over provision in prior years BEFERERE - 911)
LAT T IEET 66,590 -
Income tax expense Frigti& M 116,790 19,598
Note: MEE -
0] The domestic tax rate in the PRC is used as it is where the operation of 0] ARAEBRIBDEFBHIRPBRILE - BURA
the Group is substantially based. FRER AR R -
. DIVIDENDS 13. I B
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 REBEE-_ZE_=—F=-A=+—HILFERH
March 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end IR SGEREMWRE - MEEREERINA
of the reporting period (2022: nil). REZEMRE(ZEZF - &) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

14. FRR&EF, (EE)

ARAVEE ANEEGRERREERT (B
18) T IR A TN 8RR &

2023 2022
—E-=F —ECF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Profit/(loss) BF,(§548) BRTIT BT T
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the RRBEREANELFE
owners of the Company ar/ (E8) 4,666 (101,326)
’000 ‘000
Number of shares BHnEE T T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st & SRR EAR R EEEF] (EiE) 2
for the purpose of basic and diluted TR N 88
earnings/(loss) per share 7,356,861 7,356,861
HK cents HK cents
Earnings/(loss) per share B/ERF(HE) &4l il
Basic and diluted EXREE 0.06 (1.38)

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2023 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
share options because the exercise price of the share options
were higher than the average market price for shares for 2023.

The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2022 are the same since the computation of diluted loss per share
does not assume the conversion or exercise of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds and share options since they
would result in decrease in loss per share for 2022.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023

J

HEHE-E-_-HF-A=+—RALFEZ
BREFRFTEBIADABREET
F REARBRETEESNROR=-F
Z=FHFEmE -

HE-_Z - —F-A=1+—HILFEZERK
EXRREEEEAR - TDERFETRES
BB MR IR AT AR D F 2 M ARTTEE
AR E S R ERE - RARZFERNT
e T _F 2 EREERD -



. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R A R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZF = =H=+—HIFF/E

15. IREW =

Completed
investment
properties
BRTREYME
HK$
ks
COST 5%
At 1 April 2021 RZE-——FMWMA—H 19,306
Exchange difference fEH =% 816
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RIZBEZZF=A=+—HK
—E-FMA—H 20,122
Additions NE 2,283
Exchange difference M ZE5R (1,474)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=A=+—H 20,931
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt E
At 1 April 2021 RZE-Z—FMA—H 3,543
Charge for the year FEMY 892
Exchange difference EHZER 164
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZE_—F=A=+—HK
—E-—#PA—H 4,599
Charge for the year FEME 837
Exchange difference MEHZ (337)
At 31 March 2023 AZE-=F=A=+—H 5,099
CARRYING VALUES RmE{E
At 31 March 2023 N_ZE-_=F=A=+—H 15,832
At 31 March 2022 R-T-_F=HA=+—H 15,523

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2023 was approximately HK$27,415,000 (2022: approximately
HK$19,800,000). As at 31 March 2023, the fair value has been
arrived at based on a valuation carried out by an independent
valuer, not connected with the Group, International Valuation
Limited (2022: International Valuation Limited).

The Group lease out the kindergarten and shops under operating
lease with rental payable quarterly and the Group is not exposed
to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease arrangements, as
the lease is denominated in the respective functional currency of
group entities.

RZTEZ=F=ZA=+—R FAEEZKE
YIENELN AEE27,415,0000(ZF ==
& #97819,800,0007T) e RZE-_=F=
A=Z+—8  AREDNEREREE Y S
E B AERBRTEARAR(ZE =
F: ERFEAERAR)ETHNEENES
Hj o

AEBRELEHEHHEYRE N
FEXNESE ﬁﬂaﬁé%ﬂ%%%l;ﬁ%ﬁ%é
MR EHE  AtASETgRHEER
BEMERSNERER

S0 AR IO B A PR )
SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value was determined based on the comparison approach
with reference to the realised price or current asking prices for
the comparable properties and adjusted to take into account
the market expectation from property investors to reflect factors
specific to the Group’s investment properties. There has been no
change from the valuation techniques used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the property is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
are as followings:

15.

WEYR#E)

ARETRELEEBET AL BNE &
SERSNAAHEEE  ARMEREE
045 TR AR YR L 3B A R B AR SR R B W
BZRE - N EEFE - 5 ERIE

44
=8 e

RIHEZSEMENRER - ZFEVWEZR
B REEREASRERMME

REERBERRRENEHEREBA
AESHEERNT -

Fair value
at level 3
Carrying as at
Amount 31 March 2023
REB3RZ
KRE
R-EZZ=
lFm{E =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT HBETT
Kindergarten located in the PRC IR B ) 7R 13,543 20,561
Shops located in the PRC IR B T 9 2,289 6,854
Fair value
at level 3
Carrying as at
Amount 31 March 2022
REIR 2
AN
RIZT-—F
fkEE =—A=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Kindergarten located in the PRC AR )RR 15,523 19,800

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the term of lease of 20 years.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

>

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023

16. Y% BB Kk

Furniture,
fixtures, and

BE—T-=—F=-A=1—HIFE

Leasehold office Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
& KER
BT HENRRE WOERH RE 8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BT
COST BE
At 1 April 2021 R-E-—FNA—H 19,197 7,654 10,324 15,810 52,985
Additions NE - - 37 - 37
Written-off Hsa - - (162) - (162)
Exchange difference EHZESR 811 - 408 183 1,402
At31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZZE-—F=A=1+-HEK
—E--FNA—H 20,008 7,654 10,607 15,993 54,262
Additions NE - - 7 - 7
Exchange difference EHZESR (1,472) (159) (743) (333) (2,707)
At 31 March 2023 W-E-=F=ZA=1—H 18,536 7,495 9,871 15,660 51,562
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  BAHrE
At 1 April 2021 RZZE-—¥WHA—H 7,884 7,568 10,263 12,975 38,690
Charge for the year FERY 1,687 - 54 1,576 3317
Written-off | - - (162) - (162)
Exchange difference BEHER 362 - 402 168 932
At31March2022and 1 April2022 ~ AZZ-—#=A=+—-H}
—T__¥MA-A 9,933 7,568 10,557 14,719 42,777
Charge for the year FERS 999 - 43 1,162 2,204
Exchange difference EHESR (729) (79 (729) (414) (1,945)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=A=1—H 10,203 7,495 9,871 15,467 43,036
CARRYING VALUES EEE
At 31 March 2023 RZZZ=%=R=1—H 8,333 - - 193 8,526
At 31 March 2022 RZZZZF=A=1—H 10,075 86 50 1,274 11,485

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment and the right-of-use assets based on higher

of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The carrying

amount of the relevant assets does not exceed the recoverable

amount based on value in use and no impairment has been

recognised.

AEBERB A SAER D ERAAREREE
ZEEEMDE - BELREBARERE
BEZAWOEHE - HAEE REELE
BEEREREEFEZ KOS - B
EMERRE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. FRABEEEREEGE
LIABILITIES
(i) Right-of-use assets (i) CHESEE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HELH HEEF et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BT

As at 1 April 2021 RZE-—FNA—H 2,534 8,009 10,543
Addition NE - 4,842 4,842
Depreciation during the year FRFTE (73) 9,113) (9,186)
Exchange difference bE N = 106 55 161
As at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 H-ZE-_—#=A=+—H

M=—FE-—&#mMA—H 2,567 3,793 6,360
Addition NE - 3,295 3,295
Depreciation during the year FAHME 68) 38,172 (3,240)
Disposal HE - (479) (479)
Exchange difference bE 5 = (189) 67) (256)
As at 31 March 2023 —T_=Ff=A=+—H 2,310 3,370 5,680
Leasehold land represent land use rights located in the PRC HE TR R ELZ T E AR - I
and under medium-term lease. The lease terms of leased LHEEERE - HEMHENESAR
properties range from 2 to 3 years (2022: 2 to 3 years). NF2EIF (T4 : 253%F) °
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

17. A AERAEA &)

(i) Lease liabilities (i) HEARK
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥TT BT T
Current portion B 2,972 2,418
Non-current portion FERBNEL 589 1,857
3,561 3,775
2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT IT
Amounts payable under lease liabilities: HE&EBETEFHRIE -

Within one year —FK 2,972 2,418
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 589 1,357
3,561 3,775

Less: Amount due for settlement within W P12 AR EEE 2 £ 58

12 months (shown under current (RREAEETIITR)

liabilities) (2,972) (2,418)
589 1,357

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities range from 2.96% to 3.44% (2022: from

2.96% 1o 3.99%).

EARTEE S EZ T8 2 550
RNF296%E3.44%( —F ==
FH2.96%23.99%) °

S0 AR IO B A PR )
SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o B BA 5 i 2 B G

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. FRBEERMEEGE®
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(iii) RIERWREZLE

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

2023 2022
—E=HF TEC 4
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT BT
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use FREEEZINERY
assets
— Leased properties —HEgF 3,172 9,113
— Leased land —HETH 68 73
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEBEZMEMST 127 252
(iv) Others (iv) Hft
During the year ended 31 March 2023, total cash outflow REBEzE—_ZE-_=F=A=+—H81t
for leases amount to approximately HK$3,286,000 (2022: FE G HEZReREBRENS
approximately HK$9,054,000). #3,286,0007C (Z T Z4F : K8

9,054,0007T) ©
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18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

18. BERERPYE

2023 2022

—E=HF —EC 4

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT

At the beginning of the financial year R EREET) 2,145,681 1,001,215

Additions NE 715,143 1,102,149
Transfers to completed properties HERENENDRIYE

held for sale (1,231,464) -

Exchange difference &N =% (159,106) 42,317

At the end of the financial year REBUEFERE R 1,470,254 2,145,681

Properties under development are classified as current assets as
the construction period of the relevant properties development
project is expected to be completed in the normal operating

cycle.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are situated on a
leasehold land in the PRC. All the completed properties held for

sale are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

ST °

19. FHIFHENERTYE
AEEREHEOERTYELRRE DA
it o FIARIEHENERTRIGRR

BRPMEDBARBEE - THANEREY
FERRIEQ CEEREE-REERBHA

REA I FHEME 2 BIEEIIK -

Lifice JUEid o sy YA

SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  20. RERERIZANERIBEZ S/E

PROFIT OR LOSS =
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
—E=HF TEC 4
=A=+—H =A=+—H
Financial assets mandatorily measured @#ZABRRIBRERARE HK$’000 HK$’000
at FVTPL EEMEZEMBE BT BT
Listed equity securities held for trading HIEEE EMRAES 14,695 33,043
The fair value of listed equity securities is determined based on B EMERAR R Z R ETIRBREA -
the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange, LEBBESR IR MBAESFRZ SRR ZHR
the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the London Stock Exchange. WS EMETE -
Included in the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are the following TS EEREEB UINZ EHT
amounts denominated in currency other than the functional ENEZRFAAEENNERKEZANER
currency of the relevant group entity: BremERE :
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
—E_= —E-CfF
ZA=+-B =A=1-A
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Pound Sterling L 12,528 30,676
RMB ARHE 298 344

162 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023




4,"

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF B B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z=F==4F=H=+—HIFZ

21. INVENTORIES 21. &
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT ST T
Wine Ml 7,250 7,250
22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 22. EMEIERFN - BN FUR LR E
DEPOSITS

2023 2022
—EC=F - F
HK$’000 HK$'000
B%TIT BT
Prepayments TEfSRIR 20,706 58,985
Deposits paid [=ANE-&n 1,230 2,510
Other receivables H b UL BR TR 1,580 1,731
23,516 63,226

Analysed for reporting purposes: ESRERBRZ DT
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,466 1,231
Current assets MENEE 22,050 61,995
23,516 63,226
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

23. EIWE R LT &

2023 2022
—E-=F —TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRETT BT T
Loan receivables JEWE TR 1,837,964 1,910,003
Interest receivables FEWIF B 131,344 127,037
1,969,308 2,037,040

Less: Allowance for impairment of loan and & : FEWE F K I SR E B
interest receivables (165,437) (219,165)
1,803,871 1,817,875

The loans and interest receivables are due from independent
third parties, which are unsecured and their relevant due dates
started from April 2023 to June 2023 (2022: started from April
2022 to March 2023). The interest rates on the loan and interest
receivables are fixed ranging from 8% to 15% per annum (2022:
8% to 15% per annum).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of loan and interest receivables,
net of allowance for impairment of loan and interest receivables
recognised presented based on the loan drawn down date and
interests accrued at the end of the reporting period:

O S 5 3 Bt

REIR - USRS A B (FkR B FERE
WE T EH B Z BB ) R E A A B &
FERTH S 2| BRI DA T ¢

2023 2022

=== T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT

Within 90 days 90HMA = 66,910
91 days to 180 days 91%Z180H - -
181 days to 365 days 181E365H 1,803,871 1,750,965
Over 365 days 3658 M £ - -
1,803,871 1,817,875

The Group’s loan financing customers included in the loan and
interest receivables are due for settlement at the date specified
in the respective loan agreements. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The credit risk of loan and interest receivables is considered as
low since initial recognition as loan and interest receivables at
the end of both reporting periods are not past due. There was
no recent history of default of the debtors. To measure the ECL
of loan and interest receivables, loan and interest receivables are
assessed individually by the management of the Group, based
on the credit loss experience, the customers’ repayment history,
financial background and financial condition of each borrower and
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic data that is available without undue cost or effort.

AARBEREMNB 2 AREERRERP
REERBRENEE AHEHEEE - K
SEYERZF G T EAR

A A R 8 3 15 A R 0 FE M B R B M) B R
B BRERRHNENEERRBRS
BYRERARBE - EHATHREED
B - Rt ERKER N SHNEREERE
B AEEEEEERESERANEER
BEE  FPERLE - BWBERMIYHR
AR GERBEBENAEEEN (WHA
TEETVERARE NI RENEBEEH
%) - ERIFHE R E RS o

S0 AR IO B A PR )
SRR

BE—T-=—F=-A=1—HIFE

23. [EWER LA E )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movement in the allowance for impairment of loan and

interest receivables is as follows:

23. EWERNFE (&
TR S R M SR E R BT -

Total
st
HK$'000
BEETIT
Balance as at 1 April 2021 RZEZ_—FMHA—HB 2685 158,742
Provision of allowance for impairment on loan and interest 52BN E 7k & T 8 2 BB B
receivables 60,423
Balance as at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZBEZZF=A=+—HK
ZE-FMA—BZHBE 219,165
Reversal of allowance for impairment on loan and interest 13 [0 & U & 5% K2 K| 5, B 351 (8 5 45
receivables (63,728)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 RZE-_=F=A=+—H2&% 165,437
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or {HET RS P EE B E A B R L ) o

significant assumptions made.

The Group has conducted an assessment of ECL according to
forward-looking information and used appropriate model and
assumption in its measurement of expected credit losses. The
assumptions included the future macroeconomic conditions and

AEBECREAMEEER LG ERREES
BrREEEA RRRETERMEEERN
1l - HERRR BREAR K ZBEAN R K AE R
AREEER(IMER A REE RARRIER)

borrower’s creditworthiness. (e.g. the probability of default and

the corresponding losses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, HE MIREZEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand HeReEBYeERTRE FHER:
and cash at financial institutions with an original maturity of three R IREEREAMR A& = 8 A sk A A 2 770 & Bl
months or less: BZBSWT
2023 2022
—E=HF T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITRERFHERS 206,333 152,120
Cash at bank and financial institutions carried interest at market FITHS RN RKE Y BEENTEE
rates which range from 0.01% to 0.385% (2022: 0.001% to 0.3%) 0.01% % 0.385% ( —ZF — — 4 : 0.001% %
per annum. 0.3%) 2 TG FZHET & o
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB KREB 7S NRSZEMUAARKEE -
which are placed with banks in the PRC are subject to the Foreign WEERTEZRIT  BXBRRPRBAE
Exchange Control Regulations imposed by the PRC government. e SNEE B AT o
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the AEBRERBEEBYA T ERE :

following currencies:

2023 2022
—E-= —E- 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
HKD ok 334 511
Australian dollar (“AUD”) BT (DRIT)) 33 36
RMB AR 205,917 151,523
USD E 5 5
Others HAh 44 45
206,333 152,120

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 25. BN EEARIFUA
The amounts are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are FREAERB ﬁﬁﬁb&ﬁ MBREREFEER -

repayable on demand.

mmmaaman 167
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z -—F_-=#F=H=+—HItFZ

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

T%&ﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁm/m, E\

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Trade payables 2 S ETIRK 1,822 5,854
Accruals JEGTE 50,709 27,587
Other payables H At fETBR IR 3,200 3,223
55,731 36,664

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented NEEIK - B ENBERIZREZE[E2 R

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. ZEEBOMWT

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
B%TIT FEHETIT
Within 30 days 30BA 161 3,543
31 to 60 days 31£260H - -
61 to 90 days 61£290H - -
91 to 180 days 91£180H 300 -
Over 181 days 181HM £ 1,361 2,311
1,822 5,854

The average credit term on purchase of goods is 60-180 days
(2022: 60-180 days). The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the

credit timeframe.

The Group receives the deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreement. Such deposits result
in contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed property for sales.

Revenue of approximately HK$923,441,000 and HK$6,582,000
were recognised relates to arrived-forward contract liabilities upon
the respective performance obligations were satisfied during the

year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

27. PROMISSORY NOTE 7. A EE

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT IT FEHET T

Promissory note A HEIR - 5,639

On 11 September 2019, the Group issued an unsecured
promissory note with principal amount of HK$5,000,000 to an
independent third party. The promissory note bears interest at
a rate of 5% per annum and has a term of one calendar year.
During the year ended 31 March 2021, supplementary agreement
was signed on 10 September 2020 for further extension to 10
September 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, supplementary agreement
was signed on 10 September 2021 for further extension to 10
September 2022.

Supplementary agreement was signed on 13 June 2022 for
further extension to 10 September 2023. The promissory note
was denominated in HK$.

On 10 September 2022, a supplementary agreement was
entered into between the promissory note holder and the
Group, according to which the parties agreed that the terms of
promissory note be terminated in September 2022.

On 21 September 2022, the promissory note was entirely settled
by the Company.

RZE-NFNLA+—B  AEBER—EE
NE =T BT AR §8 7 5,000,000 7T < &
HIFAHZR - R ERBEFHNES%ETE
RERA—EEF - RBE_ZT_—4F=H4
=T—BIEFE #RBERER_T_TF
NATHEELT  NE—FPRERE-ZFT-—F
NA+H-

REBEE-_ZE-_—_F=A=+—HIFE " #
THEN T —F A THZET -
—FREE-_E-_—_FHAATH -

WrRBBEON_E-—_F XA +=A%:T
NE—HTEREE_E-_=FHNA+AH - &H
ERVEEETE o

R —FNA+H ALZEFEAHR
REBEIHTHE - Bt sIAFRER
ZE T FNAKRIEEEEIROGK -

E-_FAA-+—H  AEZECEH

AN ¢y

i

S0 AR IO B A PR )
SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o PF B 5 K B Rk
For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. frRZx
Number of shares Share capital
Kir#E B
2023 2022 2023 2022
—B-= —EoCE ZE-= “E-F
'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tk ARTT BETT
Authorised ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: FEAERR00I T AT EBR
At the beginning and the end of the financial year AT EEF IR E R 10,500,000 10,500,000 105,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01 ~ BREEAK001TTZEETT
each: R RELRR -
At the beginning of the financial year RIBEEED 7,356,783 7,357,008 73,568 73,570
~ Shares repurchased and cancelled (Note) ~RHEBE R - (225) - @
At the end of the financial year RIBEEER 7,356,783 7,356,783 73,568 73,568
Note: MI3E

REBEEZ_T__F=-A=+—HLFE  ARFEHA
B AP El B AR SRR 1D+ IR TETR ¢

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company repurchased its own
shares through the Stock Exchange as follows:

No. of
ordinary
shares of
HK$0.01 each Aggregate
SREE consideration
B#0.01TTZ Price per share paid
Month of repurchase BEA B HERNE wERER Eft#EARE
Highest Lowest
mEE =®IEE
’000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
T ok o BT
April 2021 —E-—4FNA 225 0.079 0.079 17

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. LD ERE RIS o
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29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B B4 %5 Hie 3% Bt

BE—T-=—F=-A=1—HIFE

For the year ended 31 March 2023

29. A[HIKIES

2023 2022
—g-= —E-fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Liability components &RES
Current liabilities mEAE
— Convertible bond 4 (“CB 4”) — AR EHA([ AT RARESH4]) - 893,329
CB3 CB4 Total
AR ESS WM ES Akt
(Notes (i), (i,
(ili) & (iv)) (Note (v))
GEIRR
(i) Bz (v)) (FI7EM)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT
Liability component at 1 April 2021 RZE-_—FMA—BAZAGESS 327,971 813,277 1,141,248
Add: Effective interest expense m:ERNEER 24,478 80,052 104,530
Reclassification of accrued coupon interestto B MBI E S EEMEMER
other payables (9,199 - (9,199
Repayment Ei& (63,750) - (63,750)
Reclassffication of convertible bonds to other ~ EF AR HREFEHbES
bonds (279,500) - (279,500)
Liability component at 31 March 2022 and RZBZZF=A=+—HR
1 April 2022 ZTFMA-RAZAESS - 893,329 893,329
Add: Effective interest expense m:ERFIBER - 86,671 86,671
Reclassification of convertible bonds to other B BRI BRERZEtEH
bonds - (980,000) (980,000)
Liability component at 31 March 2023 RZBZ=F=f=+—HY
aEHs - - -
[ ]
ShE AR E B A A
TR EAER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —Z—

SEZA=—AULEE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes:

0

The Group issued CB 3 with 7% coupon rate at a total principal value
of HK$279,500,000 on 17 February 2017 and 14 March 2017 to an
independent third party. The convertible bonds will mature in 3 years
from date of issue at its principal amount or can be converted into
328,823,529 shares at any time between the three months after the
date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.85 per share. The convertible
bonds will be matured on 17 February 2020 and 14 March 2020
respectively. The Company shall have the right, as from the expiry of
15 months following the date of issue of the convertible bond, to partly
or fully redeem the convertible bond early, by giving one month’s prior
notice in writing to the bondholder.

The Group further issued CB 3 at a total principal value of
HK$630,000,000 on 28 April 2017, 5 June 2017, 28 June 2017 and
30 June 2017 to independent third parties. The convertible bonds
will mature in 3 years from date of issue at its principal amount or can
be converted into 741,176,471 shares at any time between the three
months after the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity
date at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.85 per share. The
Company shall have the right, as from the expiry of 15 months following
the date of issue of the convertible bond, to partly or fully redeem the
convertible bond early, by giving one month’s prior notice in writing to
the bondholder.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$24,886,000 were converted into approximately
29,277,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the
fixed conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. As a result, the amount
of approximately HK$17,745,000 in convertible bond reserves was
transferred within equity.

All the new shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2020 rank
pari passu with the existing shares in all respects.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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AEBR-_ZT—+F-_A+tAR-FT—+tF
—ATHBBHTASBERS %279,500,000
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75 oo AR E SIS E AN S S A 31T B AT
SENFBHREHFIFTEARBITAIRKES
ZBE=EAZEmHAEER) REES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o B B R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZF = =H=+—HIFF/E

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

On 15 August 2019, the Company had early redeemed the CB 3
partially with the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 at redemption
amount of approximately HK$10,211,000, which held by a bondholder,
Safe Arena Limited. The accrual interests up to redemption date are
approximately HK$529,000, which included accrued coupon interest
of approximately HK$211,000 up to redemption date. The fair value
of the liability component was remeasured at the date of redemption
with the difference between the fair value of the liability component
and the redemption cost allocated to equity component and the equity
component of approximately HK$8,650,000 had been derecognised.
As a result, an aggregated loss of approximately HK$129,000 (i.e. loss
on early redemption of liability component of the convertible bonds and
early redemption options of approximately HK$120,000 and HK$9,000
respectively) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Upon the redemption of the convertible bonds, the remaining value
of the conversion option reserve of approximately HK$8,650,000 was
released to accumulated losses.

On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into the deed of amendments
(the “Amendment Deed”) with the bondholder to extend the maturity
date of CB 3 with the principal amounts of HK$220,000,000 and
HK$59,500,000 from 17 February 2020 to 17 August 2020 and from
14 March 2020 to 14 September 2020 respectively (the “Extended
CBs”). On 23 March 2020 (the “Date of Modification”), the Company
had, with the approval of the bondholder and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, executed the Amendment Deed. The bondholder
has granted to the Company a waiver in respect of the failure of the
Company to pay any principal or interest on the convertible bonds when
due under the terms and conditions to the extent necessary and solely
to effect the Amendment Deed. Details are set out in the Company’s
announcements on 13 March 2020 and 23 March 2020.

At the Date of Modification, the carrying amounts of the liability
components, the equity components, and derivative financial assets in
respect of early redemption options of the Extended CBs immediately
before the modification were approximately HK$314,301,000,
HK$112,857,000 and nil, respectively. According to a valuation
report issued by an independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group, the fair value of the new liability component, the
equity component and the derivative financial assets in respect of
early redemption options of the Extended CBs immediately following
the modification are approximately HK$271,974,000, nil and nil,
respectively. Upon modification, the original CB 3 was extinguished
and a gain of approximately HK$42,327,000 arising from the fair
value difference of the liability portion was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2020 and an aggregate amount of
HK$112,857,000 from the equity conversion reserve was transferred
to the accumulated losses. The effective interest rate of the new liability
components of Extended CBs are 18.33% to 19.55% whereas the
effective interest rate of the liability components immediately before the
modification are 14.3% to 14.7%.

29. A[HIKIES

e« (&)

(i)

(i)

RZZE—hENATHA  ARARNLELDS
B4 B 10,211,000 iR PIER — B EHF
H A Safe Arena Limited 15 5 2 7~ & 8 78 ¥
10,000,000 2 #30 AJ 2R (&3 - B EEE
A 8 7 FERHF) 8B40 A8 529,0007T + H A #
Eﬁé@ HH 2 fERT B 498 #211,0007T © B
EHOZAAERELDE BEHHE  MAE
Z’&fcfaﬁﬁi Az ZEEDEER
mEpy - M AP 9 #))%8 %58,650,0007T B B
,ﬁﬁﬁfm Fitt - 4978 %129,0007T 2 5B 5
(MRRERREESEESD 2B RIE
F & O Hi%E 2 1B 9 5 497885 120,0007T & i
¥69,0007L ) RAHBEEFHER - B[R
EHEERE - JRRESRHEZSRELEE
8,650,000 T = RET/E1E -

RZZZTF=A+=0 ' ~EEHEHIFHE
.ﬂﬂ@ﬂ%@@( 1BETRE]) - LA
& 78 220,000,000 7T & 7% & 59,500,000 7T #J
AR EARINEHE D T -—FF - A
+tEL§i_7_2§¢)\H+tEI&EE z

TE= HerELEi_?_?EnHJrPH
(M«L%T%ﬁﬂ%fﬁﬁ RZZEZTF=H
Z+=R(1ETRE])  ARFAKESFFEA
REBBARGAERARIE - BEEV(ER]
B - EHIFBAERARARIRERBER R
TERAF PO B BR B 2 (< AT IR (B 25 2 (R AT A & S A
BRARRRLBR(UNEEBRREAE

BARBEEY - FEHENARRNBRR-F
—EEZAT=ZHAR-ZTEF=A-+=H
Z R e

PMERTRHE - RERET A RFEELTERA

HRESFENBEDS BRI D RITES
A E M BREE 5 B 4778 % 314,301,0007T
B¥112,857,000C R T o IRBEB L FEMEE
Bl (BEZARSEE00 MRS ) B M ERS - BE
ffsﬂi%ﬁéﬁ%ﬁrﬁ%@Nkﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ‘%%,ﬁm&m%ﬁ
BEeEHD  ERBORITESREENAR
ED R4 BBEE271,974,0007T * ERE - B
Ei1#%  RABBRESFITUAEHELEEDDY
RSB ESEFTE £ 2 WS #075% 42,327,000

TRBE_ZT_TF=ZA=ZF+-HLFEH
IBERPRER - ﬁﬁﬂi@ﬂx%k%ﬁ&f&ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂw*ﬁ%ﬁ%

112,857,000 L & = 25T E5 18 - LLERAR
MEF BTGB ET D 2 BRFIENT18.33%
£19.55% -+ MEEHEFIAIAEIDHER M=
NF14.3%E14.7% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —Z—

SEZA=—AULEE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(v)

On 27 May 2020, the Group entered into the deed of amendments (the
“Amendment Deed 1”) with the bondholder to extend the maturity date
of CB 3 with principal amounts of HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000
from 17 August 2020 to 31 May 2021 and from 14 September 2020
to 31 May 2021, respectively (the “Extended CBs”). On 9 June 2020
(the “Date of Modification 1”), the Company, with the approval of
the bondholder and the Stock Exchange, executed the terms of the
Amendment Deed 1. The bondholder has granted to the Company
a waiver in respect of the failure of the Company to pay any principal
or interest on the convertible bonds when due under the terms and
conditions to the extent necessary and solely to effect the Amendment
Deed 1. Details are set out in the Company’s announcements on 27
May 2020 and 9 June 2020.

At the Date of Modification 1, the carrying amounts of the liability
components, the equity components, and derivative financial assets in
respect of early redemption options of the Extended CBs immediately
before the modification were approximately HK$279,884,000, Nil
and Nil, respectively. According to a valuation report issued by an
independent professional valuer not connected with the Group, the fair
value of the new liability component, the equity component and the
derivative financial assets in respect of early redemption options of the
Extended CBs immediately following the modification are approximately
HK$222,959,000, Nil and Nil, respectively. Upon modification,
the original CB 3 was extinguished and a gain of approximately
HK$56,924,000 arising from the fair value difference of the liability
portion was recognised in profit or loss during the six months ended
30 September 2020. The effective interest rate of the new liability
components of Extended CBs are 35.91% whereas the effective interest
rate of the liability components immediately before the modification are
14.37%.

On 15 June 2020, the Group entered into the deed of amendments (the
“Amendment Deed 2”) with the bondholder to extend the maturity date
of CB 3 with principal amounts of HK$63,750,000 from 5 June 2020
to 30 June 2021 (the “Extended CB”). On 29 June 2020 (the “Date of
Modification 2”), the Company, with the approval of the bondholder
and the Stock Exchange, executed the terms of the Amendment Deed
2. The bondholder has granted to the Company a waiver in respect
of the failure of the Company to pay any principal or interest on the
convertible bonds when due under the terms and conditions to the
extent necessary and solely to effect the Amendment Deed 2. Details
are set out in the Company’s announcements on 15 June 2020 and 29
June 2020.
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R A R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z-ZF = =H=+—HIFF/E

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(v)

(Continued)

At the Date of Modification 2, the carrying amounts of the liability
components, the equity components, and derivative financial assets in
respect of early redemption options of the Extended CB immediately
before the modification were approximately HK$64,442,000,
HK$69,783,000 and Nil, respectively. According to a valuation report
issued by an independent professional valuer not connected with
the Group, the fair value of the new liability component, the equity
component and the derivative financial assets in respect of early
redemption options of the Extended CB immediately following the
modification are approximately HK$52,046,000, Nil and Nil, respectively.
Upon modification, the original CB 3 was extinguished and a gain of
approximately HK$12,396,000 arising from the fair value difference of
the liability portion was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended
31 March 2021 and an aggregate amount of HK$69,783,000 from the
equity conversion reserve was transferred to the accumulated losses.
The effective interest rate of the new liability components of Extended
CBs are 30.99% whereas the effective interest rate of the liability
components immediately before the modification are 17.85%.

On 11 June 2021, the Company entered into the third deed of
amendments (the “Third Amendment Deed”) to further extend the
maturity date of such other bond with the principal amounts of
HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000 (the “Relevant CB”) to 31 May
2022 (the “Third Amendments”). The bondholder has granted to the
Company a waiver in respect of the failure of the Company to pay any
principal or interest on the convertible bonds when due under the terms
and conditions to the extent necessary and solely to effect the Third
Amendment Deed. The conversion rights attaching to the Relevant
CB expired on 31 May 2021. As such, the Relevant CB has become a
straight debt and no longer been classified as convertible debt securities
but other bond. Details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 11 June 2021 and 17 June 2021.

In June 2021, the Company has settled all remaining CB 3 amounting
to approximately HK$68,500,000 (including principal amounts of
approximately HK$63,750,000 and interest payable amounts of
approximately HK$4,750,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —Z—

SEZA=—AULEE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

V)

The Group issued CB 4 with zero coupon rate at a total principal value
of HK$1,000,000,000 to the substantial shareholder of the Company
on 26 March 2018 as the consideration for the acquisition of 100%
equity interest of United Faith Group pursuant to the acquisition
agreement dated 21 June 2017. Details of such acquisition are set
out in Company’s circular dated on 28 February 2018. The convertible
bonds will mature at five years after issuing of the convertible bond. The
detail maturity dates of each batch of issue are shown in following table
at its principal amount or can be converted into 1,250,000,000 shares
at any time between the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the
maturity date at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.8 per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$20,000,000 were converted into approximately
25,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the
fixed conversion price of HK$0.8 per share. As a result, the amount
of approximately HK$14,872,000 in convertible bond reserves was
transferred within equity.

All the new shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2020 rank
pari passu with the existing shares in all respects.

On 23 June 2023, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with a subscriber (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to issue, and the Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, the convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$980,000,000 (the “New Convertible Bonds”)
convertible into the Company’s shares at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.4 (the “New Conversion Price”) per conversion share (the “New
Conversion Share”).
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

V)

(vi)

(Continued)

The subscription price of the New Convertible Bonds in sum of
HK$980,000,000 shall be settled by the Subscriber by setting it
off against the redemption money payable by the Company to the
Subscriber in the equivalent sum of HK$980,000,000 for redemption of
the CB4 expired on 26 March 2023.

As such, as at 31 March 2023, the relevant CB4 has become a straight
debt and no longer been classified as convertible bonds but other
bonds. Details please refer to note 42.

The fair values of the above convertible bonds were valued by an
independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL"), as at issue date, early redemption date and
modification date. The fair values of above convertible bonds as at
Date of Modification 1 and Date of Modification 2 were valued by an
independent valuer, International Valuation Limited. CB 3 comprise a
liability component and an equity conversion component whereas CB 4
comprise a liability component and equity conversion component.

The fair values of the unlisted bond component were calculated by using
a market interest rate of similar non-extendable and non-convertible
bonds. The fair values of the convertible bonds were valued by using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The residual amount, representing the
value of the equity conversion component, is included in the convertible
bond - equity conversion reserve under equity attributable to the owners
of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o PF B 5 K B Rk
For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE
30. OTHER BONDS 30. HfbiEs
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 April 2021 RZE_—FMA—H -
Recognition of other bond upon modification of 1EET I AR (B 55 1% Fh Pl A AR B 5 FERR AL
convertible bond from convertible bonds (Note (i)) BEH (FIEEG) 279,500
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZZEZ_—_F=A=1+—HK
—E-_FMA—H 279,500
Recognition of other bonds from convertible bonds B AT AR B MR E & 25 (P FE29(v))
(Note 29 (v)) 980,000
At 31 March 2023 R-E-_=F=ZA=+—H 1,259,500
Note: Bi5E
0] During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company entered into the 0] REBE-E-__F=A=+—RH1FE A
Third Amendment Deed to further extend the maturity date of CB 3 with BEIMAEETHRIES  LNiE— S IERASFEASD
the principal amounts of HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000 to 31 220,000,000 7T & 7% ¥ 59,500,000 7T & 7] 2
May 2022 (the “Relevant CB”). The conversion rights attached to the BEAEINEBAE T -_—FRAA=+—H
Relevant CB expired on 31 May 2021. As such, the Relevant CB has ([FERE TR E S ) - 1B AT A E A S
become a straight debt and no longer been classified as convertible BN S —FHEA=+—HBIH-H
debt securities but other bond. The effective interest rate is 7% per I VAN BREESERALTRER T~HS
annum. BEATHMREBKES  MeEMmES - BERF
EEEFT% -
On 24 June 2022, the Company entered into the fourth deed of RZZFZZFRNAZ+WMAE  ARAIEFIALE
amendments to further extend the maturity date of the other bond in the TREETRE  NE— S B ALEABK
principal amounts of HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000 to 31 May 220,000,000 7T & 7 ¥ 59,500,000 7T 2 £ i (&
2028. FOIBRALERE-_T-_=FAA=1T—H -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EEFIA
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are fiti B A OE 98 HI AT 2 REFS & AT IR B B
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current HHE B IBABEREREMSHER—M
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred kAR - REMSHEE NELEFE
income tax relates to the same fiscal authority. e EamEEy -
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets and MY BHREENNS F EEREEERAE
liabilities, after set off certain deferred tax assets against deferred LHEEBRERNEENE TREHIEEE
tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial reporting MEEFRITBAGER - DT
pUrposes:
The Group
*&EEH
2023 2022
—E-= T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Deferred tax assets BB E E 41,359 54,791
Deferred tax liabilities BIETRIARE = 3,265
[ ]
miEgmuEaman 179
TR EAER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

years:

31. RIEFHIE (%)

ATRAFEMBEFECDERA T ERIT

RE(EE) BEREEHER

Allowance for
impairment of

loan and

interest
receivable LAT Total

BRERR

FIRZRE
] THEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2021 RZE-—5MA—H (39,573) 2,943 (36,630)
Credited to profit or loss PEEETA (14,830) (194) (15,024)
Exchange realignment P 5 AR (388) 516 128

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RIE-—F=A=+—-HAR-ZT_—F

MA—H (54,791) 3,265 (51,526)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss RBER/(GTA) 13,672 (3,265) 10,407
Exchange realignment X AR (240) - (240)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=f=+—H (41,359) - (41,359)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$584,275,000 (2022: approximately
HK$544,768,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of

these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams (2022: same). Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of approximately HK$5,314,000 (2022: approximately
HK$5,300,000) that will expire in the next five years. Other losses

may be carried forward indefinitely.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

J

RIERR  NEBBEARDAFREEEY
584,275,000 ( — B = — 4 : 4B
544,768,0007T ) A] X SRR B H) o B
KRBFHIRZ N T MU ERZSR
BEBRAREREBELE(ZZE=--F [
) o RERTIEEEREERARAFE R
2 BB ES5,314,000 0 (C T - —F 4
75155,300,0007T ) o EL 518 P] AR IR HR 4B o



31.

32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$100,185,000
(2022: approximately HK$97,573,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital structure to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes convertible bonds, lease liabilities, bank borrowing, other
bond, promissory note and amount due to a related company net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risk associated with each
class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

31.

32.
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EIERL IR (8)

BIECEMRSEEL A-TTNF—F—H
RBELF B B AR ATRRAFNE IR 2 EA
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B A Rz REt & F497% % 100,185,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

33. &RAT A

Categories of financial instruments (a) BT AR
2023 2022
—E=HF —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EB¥ETIT FEHET T
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL PEFHRIRANERIE Y
SREE 14,695 33,043
Financial assets at amortised cost HEIERAGTEZ & MEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (PREEERRSEEY) 2,013,014 1,974,236
2,027,709 2,007,279
Financial liabilities eMaR
Financial liabilities measured at amortised HEERAGTEZE2mEE
cost 1,415,739 1,256,223
Financial risk management objectives and (b) £EEREEREEORBE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include other
receivables and deposits, loan and interest receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other payables, promissory note, amount due to related
companies, other bonds, bank borrowings and convertible
bonds. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, currency
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2023

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate promissory note, other bond,
lease liabilities and loan and interest receivables.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank borrowing and
cash and cash equivalents carried at prevailing market
rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of prevailing market rates arising from the Group’s
floating-rate bank borrowing.

The directors of the Company consider that the
interest rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
borrowing and bank balances is insignificant as the
outstanding balances are not significant.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC
with most transactions mainly settled in HK$ and
RMB. As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group
holds financial assets at FVTPL (see Note 20) and
bank balances (see Note 24) denominated in AUD,
USD, RMB and GBP. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets are denominated in a currency that is not the
Group’s functional currency. The Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging the potential foreign

currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
denominated in currencies other than the respective

. R T

f \
=,

(b) EmlEbREE B8R BE®)

% mB% (%)
(i) SFEEmEE

AEBTERNEBNPRELEE
B EXEDRZHETBUNEER
ARBERE -N_T_=FRk_
E-__#ZA=Z+—8 ~5£H
FEWART - Xt - ARBRE
FIHEZNERREANERRE
ZeREE(RMFE20) RRTTHE
gR(FKIEE24) - SNERBR N E K
REERXZHHACHEREEALIE
AEBEEEN 2 BB HERE
Ao RERE M HMNE SRR
R - BEEEGERIMNERR K
AR 4 B2 B 25 R S B A SNES [E

i o
AA

RB|ERR - NEEUKREAHE
=g ZXQIJJ BEE®UINZ

functional currencies of the relevant group entities at BT ECEKEERAEN
the end of the reporting period are as follows: N
Assets
gE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
AUD SEIT 33 36
usD E 5 5
Others Efh 44 45
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ
33. @I A
(b) &FRMREEHMRBE®E)

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) % mB% (%)

(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SFMEEmER (%)
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
As the Group had no material foreign currency HRASER T _=FK=F
denominated monetary assets at 31 March 2023 —F=ZA=t+—HBfELERE
and 2022, no significant impacts on the results of AINEFHEEREE - AEEH
the Group would arise from the changes in foreign EXBETGREINEZET X N EM
currency rates, accordingly no sensitivity analysis is BEATE WU EIREHED
presented. 7o

(iiij) Other price risk (iii) R EERE

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and these
investments are classified on the consolidated
statement of financial position as financial assets at
FVTPL. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, the management has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

If the share price of the respective listed equity
securities had been increased/decreased by 20%
and all other variables were held constant, the post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$2,939,000
(2022: approximately HK$6,609,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL.

AEEZBE EHEAEFRE
i E R ANE SRR - M&FER
BEREHBBHRRRINERIER
FRANEREZEREE - &
BEZBEFTRRER REMR
BEEZFRR - HH 0 BEE
EERERANEERERRER
W BESZ B AR

RB|EBR » TXZBREDT
REFMEBRRAESRRE

2
}'_j:jo
WMEMALETRAZSFHREL
/T 20% - BFFA H &
BERBTE  AEEREEZZT
Z=F=ZRA=+—HLEFEZK
Rl e B A A IR D 8
2,939,000 (=T == : #/8
#6,609,0007T) + JhHAMRRNIBE
REANEREBEZSCMEEZR
AEEE) -

S0 AR IO B A PR )
SRR
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from cash and
cash equivalents, loan and interest receivables, other
receivables and deposits. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent our Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

The Group recognised 12m ECL for loan and
interests receivables with gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,969,308,000 (2022: approximately
HK$2,037,040,000) as at 31 March 2023, based on
individually assessment for significant debtors by applying
weighted average expected credit loss rate of 8.40%
(2022: 10.76%). Reversal of impairment of approximately
HK$53,728,000 is provided as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
provision of impairment of approximately HK$60,423,000).
The directors of the Company consider that the changes
in expected credit loss rates is mainly due to economic
condition of the industry.

The weighted average expected credit loss rates are
estimated based on forward-looking information and used
appropriate model and assumption in its measurement of
expected credit losses. Such forward-looking information is
used by the management of the Group to assess both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date. The details are disclosed in Note 23.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Management considered other receivables and deposits

to be low credit risk and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12m ECL.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout the
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

Internal credit rating;

o actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

° actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower;

° significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.

33. xR T @)
(b) &FRMREEHMRBE®E)

=SB )

ERERA  HMERERRIRS
BRKBAE - EULRE BRI E B
A1 218 B TR EB = 1R AR o

AEEEEENTIAHERE E BEND
ATEEE - REEERE S EN G
BEERBRBELN - AFHHERERR
EREEREN  ARE/REAHNE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of the loan and interest receivables arising from
the Group’s loan financing business, 1% (2022: 2%) of the
total gross loan and interest receivables as at 31 March
2023 was due from the Group’s largest customer and 7%
(2022: 8%) of the total gross loan and interest receivables
as at 31 March 2023 was due from the Group’s five largest
customers for the Group’s loan financing business.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for loan and interest receivables is in the PRC,
which accounted for 100% (2022: 100%) of loan and
interest receivables as at 31 March 2023.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) . R T R
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) &MEEEEENRBE®)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) SRR =)
The Group’s current credit risk grading framework REE B RMEERBETRIERB2IEN
comprises the following categories: THER -
Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
851 ik REFRUEHBRNELE

Performing  For financial assets where there has low risk of default or 12m ECL
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit impaired (refer to as
Stage 1)
R#f BHARBBERBEAERLEERRAB ARSI B 12 BREEER
BEEREZEREE(RE—TER)

Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are

not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

BYIRERE EERBARENEEFEREZSR  EBEFTEIRPEESRE-BEFERE
BE(REZRER)

el
T
7l

Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred

(refer to as Stage 3)

%'“—IEY%IE$1¢¥T/£EE’§EE’ﬁﬁﬂﬂiﬂﬁfii\ﬁiﬁi$ BREFEHEREEEE—EEREAE
NP BE  ZEERTAREERE(RE=RR)

fil

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery

i gH ENRFABHEABABRENV SR FAMAEERER  FRIBE M
HHR B

mmmaamas 189
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. @ T E#)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) &REREEEENRBE®)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) SRR =)
The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s TRAMVNEAEBESHEE RS
financial assets, as well as the Group’s maximum exposure EURAERZEERBRFTAT TN
to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. KNeERR -
Gross  Allowance Net
Internal 12m ECL or carrying for carrying
credit rating lifetime ECL amount  impairment amount
12 AHEEERSK
ABEEFE  EEFENRANEEER fRE#E pedrtd ] IRERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT
2023
ZBZ=
Loan and interest receivables Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired and 1,969,308 (165,437 1,803,871
assessed individually)
FERE R RAE R#f REAEHEEFR(TECERER
{ERIETTAIE)
Deposits and other receivables Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired and 2,810 - 2,810

assessed individually)
7E REMEKERR Rif 12AARREEFR(TEEERER
(BRI TEE)

2022

Loan and interest receivables Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired and 2,037,040 (219,165) 1,817,875
assessed individually)

FEME R RAE, R#F RERAEHEEFR(TECERER
{ERETTIE)

Deposits and other receivables Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired and 4,241 - 4,241

assessed individually)
7E REMEKERR Rif 12EARREEFR(TREERER
(BRI TR L)
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

33. @I E#®)

(b) &l bREE B AR BE®)

B 3T & B
BEERBESRRAIE  AEEERER
MRS PREFEMNEEER/RT
RZKF - DRREAREERE XA
Be WRPBRERERBDZTE -

TRENAKENTES R A B2 RER
BRFHFS o ZIIRBNAEE AL
BERNFEFRHZ BB ERIER
Rengmsl - TREENEEAZHE
R °

Liquidity tables -9 E3
More than
Ondemand  one year but Total
or within less than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years cash flows Amount
REXRY Bi—F KBRS
R—FR BIRMEF RERE WREE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT AT BRTT
2023 ZBC=
Non-derivative financial liabilities TS RHEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 R EMERRR 55,731 - 55,731 55,731
Amount due to related companies B EEARERR 96,947 - 96,947 96,947
Other bonds HitbhfE%H 1,259,500 - 1,259,500 1,259,500
Lease liabllities HEak 2,972 589 3,561 3,336
1,415,150 589 1,415,739 1,415,514

S0 AR IO B A PR )
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

. 2RI A
(b) £REEEEAEMRBE ®)

BN & RS #)

=g JEE )]

More than

On demand one year but Total

or within lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years cash flows Amount
I ESE iR —F AEBRRS
R—FRA BIRmE mERH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BETT BT

2022 —E-C

Non-derivative financial liabilities TSR

Trade and other payables B 5 REMERRR 36,664 - 36,664 36,664

Promissory note EAEE 5,764 - 5,764 5,639

Amount due to related companies  [ERTEIE A RIER R 41,091 - 41,091 41,091

Convertible bonds AARES 980,000 - 930,000 893,329

Other bond Hinfg s 299,065 - 299,065 279,500

Lease liabilties MERRE 2,445 1,427 3,872 3,775
1,365,029 1,427 1,366,456 1,259,998
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

O S 5 3 Bt

BE—T-=—F=-A=1—HIFE

33. @I E#®)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other current financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their corresponding fair values
due to short-term maturities. The directors of the Company
consider that carrying amounts of other non-current
financial assets and liabilities approximate to their fair value
as the impact of discounting of non-current assets is not
significant and the non-current liabilities are amortised at
market interest rates.

(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the (c) EHIBRRAETAERZLR
consolidated statement of financial position HitE
The following table provides an analysis of financial TRIEHRESBMTAZ D - THIERETE
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of MEEREMERRZAREE - I
each reporting period for recurring measurement, grouped REREEETBERER QA BEATEE
into Levels 1 based on the degree to which the fair value is ZEENERE—R -
observable in accordance to the Group’s accounting policy.
2023 2022
—E== B
Level 1 Level 1
- M
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BETT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL RIESFEBRAREREZ
SMEE
Listed equity investments R EE 14,695 33,043
There were no transfers between level of fair value hierarchy RAFERBAFE  SAAELRE
in current and prior years. I AR o

ARBEERA - ARNEHRMEE
K& P TSR RR MIABR SRR AN G 8k 2 B
fREEREEKBEZ REEEER
2 RA(ENEE - ARFEZERS - B
RIERBEER 2 FEALFEARIE
MBRBEIEM SN R - SUELMIE
nBEMEENRABROIEREAE
e
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

34. COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessor

The Group leases out investment property under operating

leases in the PRC. The leases typically run for an initial

period of 20 years. None of the leases includes variable

lease payments. All are fixed lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases in place at the reporting date will be

(b)

receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

34, AIE
(a) EEHERIE
FEEESHEA

AEERTERBELEMEHLEY
XM HBER20F - BEHRE
BEFEHENK - MAHEREEHE
BN -

R¥RE BT A AR EHE T 2 KRR
BB A AR B A TR

YgER -

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

—2-=F —EF
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Within one year —FR 192 207
Between one and two years —FEMF 192 207
Between two and five years MEERF 590 623
Over five years BBAF 1,833 2,196
2,807 3,233

Capital commitments (b) BEKiE

Contracted for but not provided in the

ERTHEXRR S HMEERRD

consolidated financial statements 120
2023 2022
k- =Sl 3 —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BYTT BT T
For properties under development BEEETYE 691,526 262,578

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

J




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 September
2012 for the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to its employees, the directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group and to encourage them to
contribute further to the development of the Group so as to
enhance value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

As at 31 March 2023, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 609,500,000 (2022: 717,000,000), representing
8.3% (2022: 9.8%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.

The total number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit was renewed, at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate
Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which might be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any one year was not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without
prior approval from the shareholders in general meeting.

35.

PAB D IR ERE 2 TR X

— AR RAER B ([ A B D IRER =T — =
FAA=+—BBBZRBREB IR -
TEEAMDARES  BEAREMAMNEZ
SEE REERAEBIRIZ BRIELHE
KRR - CERBESAREE L RREES
N RIREARRRERR 2 BE - #E0
SARAREZBRTIRLTE -

MR-ZT-_=%=A=+—8 " BiEZ%t2
EREBMRTEZEREZROEE A
609,500,000 & ( =% — — £ : 717,000,000
B MERZAARBEZITRNDES.3%
(CZE- - :98%)°

RIEZ A B AR A5 BIFT R 2 BB A
Z By BBAIFEB AR AR R R EZ
FFEIE B EITRMD 210% ([ 51 SR ER
B ARERLETHASREREE
B W% 10%RBEE IR ZRE - ARE
ZaT 8| R EMBEREA S E R BERKR
TR ZFAERETR 2 B TR M T
ZEEBMNERE  TRBBARRTRE®
172D 488 230% °

REBERPBERARG 2 FRME - REA—
BFER FERER AL ZBRERN 2 A
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES 35. AR BEEE 2 NS (&)

(Continued)

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder must be approved by independent
non-executive directors of the Company. Where any grant
of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates would
result in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options already granted and to be granted in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date
of such grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option might be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by
the board of directors which shall not be later than 10 years from
the date of grant.

The exercise price was determined by the directors of the
Company, and would not be less than the highest of the closing
price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the share on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant,
and the nominal value.

BPEAES  xEZTHRABRTERRZ
B—BREHELEARNR ZBIIERNTT
EEME - WEREERESBIUIFNTE
FAHEFTEAMBEATRDL 2 A AER
B eEyEEABREARHLET_@AR
HEETEE R SRR 2 BREmET
REFEITZARRARMGEBRAARDET
IR 2. 0.1% K (B (& 8 8 7 # 5,000,000 7T -
BB EEA N RIIRER 2 B -

RHOBAREANK L BHEE21 B AEIR
RO B8 TIARNER T 2 BIE -
BB AT AR IR AR BRI ST 81 2 B
[RAERERTE  EFS KA RBRE
HAE  BRHRASERR L B BER 1
& o

TEEBAARBZESTETE  $TIRAR
ARMRE LB R ZWTHE  ARBRNR
EEROAYMAEASERET BB A2
FHUNERARBRG 2EE - AEaE
RAEE -

196 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES 35. AR BEME 2 A (@)
(Continued)
Details of specific categories of options granted under the share IRIRIERR R B L 2 e AR BB AR i 2 5F
option scheme are as follows: BT
Fair value Fair value Fair value
Vesting Exercise at grant date at grant date at grant date
Date of grant period  Exercise period price  for consultants  for employees for directors
BREREL ERREL EEREL
BHAY RER  TEH TR AERARE AERLRE BRI A AE
11 November 2015 Note 11 November 2015 to 10 November 2020 HK$0.638 HK$0.27 - -
ZZ-1E+-A+-R ifd e S = 710,638 0277 - -
ZZ-RET-R+A
28 December 2015 Note 28 December 2015 to 27 December 2020 HK$0.792 HK$0.35 - HK$0.35
“E-REF-A-tNE ME “Z-Rf+ZA=+N\HE B%0.7927T B%0.357T - BH0.357
ZE-REFCA-4A
19 December 2016 Note 19 December 2016 to 18 November 2021 HK$0.738 HK$0.73 HK$0.73 -
2 RETZATAR jfd “E-AE+ZATARE 0,738 0737 0737 -
I 3 R WAE!
19 October 2017 Note 19 October 2017 to 18 October 2022 HK$0.488 HK$0.22 - -
ZE+ETATAR jfd ZZ+ETATNAEE 710,488 50.227T - -
ZECCETATR
11 April 2019 Note 11 April 2019 to 10 April 2024 HK$0.456 HK$0.2107 HK$0.2107 HK$0.224
“Z-NFRAT-H fitst “E-NEFMAT-RE BB04s6T A0 EK0.2107T 02047
ZERIRENATA
Note: In accordance with the terms of the Scheme, these share options were MEE : ARIE IS - ZERIEN S Y B s
vested at the date of grant. & -
[ ]
SR AR T A B A W
SR CEAER
{ J

197



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O S 5 3 Bt

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES 35. MR AER 2 IRAZ @)
(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TEEEES - BRERKBHAABNALGHE
options held by directors, employees and consultants during the BERNBZE_Z_=F=HA=+—HL1EFE
year ended 31 March 2023: HEEE)
Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
at 1 April during  at 31 March
2022 the year 2023
R-B-Z% R-B-=%
mA—H =A=+-H
Option type BREER RRTHE FRAKHY RFRTE
Directors =
11 April 2019 “Z-NEWAT—H 57,000,000 - 57,000,000
Employees E8
11 April 2019 “T-NEFNA+—H 231,000,000 (7,500,000) 223,500,000
Consultants M
19 October 2017 “E—tFTATNHE 100,000,000  (100,000,000) -
11 April 2019 “E-NEFNAT—H 329,000,000 - 329,000,000

717,000,000  (107,500,000) 609,500,000

Exercisable at the end of the year FRATE 609,500,000
Weighted average exercise price IMETHTRE HK$0.460 HK$0.486 HK$0.456

0460t  #EW0.486T  EW0.4567T

A total of 107,500,000 share options at the weighted average REBE_ZE-_=F=A=+—H1LEFEE K
exercise price of HK$0.486 lapsed during the year 31 March 2023 I AR RE 2 M B - & $£107,500,00017 hniE F
upon expiration of the options. BT EEAE0.486 MR RED 2R
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by directors, employees and consultants during the year

O S 5 3 Bt

BE—T-=—F=-A=1—HIFE

35. AR AER 2 AT @)
TERPEEES EEREMEOHAR
AEREREE-_S-_—F=A=1+—

ended 31 March 2022: BIEFERMES) :
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
at 1 April during at 31 March
2021 the year 2022
i —E RZF=ZZ
mA—H ZA=+—H
Option type iR WATE FREM WATTE
Directors EE
11 April 2019 “E2-NFNA+—H 57,000,000 - 57,000,000
Employees 4=}
11 April 2019 “E-NFNA+—H 231,000,000 - 231,000,000
Consultants B
19 December 2016 “E-RF+ZAtTNH 467,000,000  (467,000,000) -
19 October 2017 “T—+E+ATNE 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
11 April 2019 “E-NENA+—H 329,000,000 - 329,000,000
1,184,000,000 (467,000,000) 717,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FRATE 717,000,000
Weighted average exercise price IMEEHITHE HK$0.570 HK$0.738 HK$0.460
BrkosToL  A0T738T  BH04607T
A total of 467,000,000 share options at the weighted average exercise REE-_ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—HItF

price of HK$0.738 lapsed during the year 31 March 2022 upon

expiration of the options.

€ - REBRREIE WA - & 3£467,000,000
AN

0 DR F 91T (B R B H0.738 T AR

BRI -

Lifice JUEid o sy YA
SRR
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 36. RIKEF|

Hong Kong

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the Group companies (the “employer”) in Hong
Kong and its employees are required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. The contributions
from each of the employer and employees are subject to a cap
of HK$1,250 per month before 1 June 2014 and HK$1,500 per
month, since 1 June 2014 onwards. During the year ended 31
March 2023, the total amount contributed by the Group to this
scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss was approximately HK$151,000 (2022: approximately
HK$207,000).

The PRC

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, subsidiaries in
the PRC are required to contribute to a state-managed retirement
plan for all its employees at a certain percentage of the basic
salaries of its employees. The state-managed retirement plan is
a defined contribution retirement plan and responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees. Under
the state-managed retirement plan, the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. During the year ended
31 March 2023, the total amount contributed by the Group to
this scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss was approximately HK$279,000 (2022: approximately
HK$234,000).

T8
REBRB(ERE RGBT LB KO A
HEARBEERERTE - aBE25E
BEBUITATEZ —HTEBHEIRIKGT
gl o REBEBESFE  AEBREBEZER
al([MEx]) REEBAERREHIMAESE
BIARTE R IR BURA Z 5% M s EIfEH AR -
RZZE—MFANA—HA BEREESE
ZHHERERAEEE1250 MEZZF
—MERA—BRAEBE1,5007T - REBE=
T=FZAZ+—ALFE  FEEMRZ
FHEEL 2 B ER G HHEER AR -
D RBEA51,0007t(ZFEZZF - LB
207,0007T) °

R
BIEFEG@ERA KA - RPEZHHER
AEREREBEAT & — Tl AHE 2
EEMAEREERARTEIHAK - ERER
RINETE AT REHFURIRGT 8 R A2 8RR
BEXFHZ2BPEREAEE - BREERER
RIRETE] - BRBFZHERIN  AEEWER
BERRRSN RS EREEBIAEE—FE
T -HBE_ZE-_=F=-—A=+—HLFE -
REEMZETEVEL 2 BN A OB
KA - Y AEBEK279,000t(ZF ==
& H)8#5234,0000T) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z=F==4F=H=+—HIFZ

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BAAEBEALZRS
Such as disclosed in elsewhere of the consolidated financial BA G BmEEMM T IREEIN A&
statement, the Group had the following significant transactions B HEEFEEATETTIIEARS

with its related parties:

Compensation of key management personnel FTEEBARBZHE
The emoluments of the directors and other key management FRNESRAEEEMETEEEAS 2
personnel of the Group during the year were disclosed in Note 11. M EE11R IR EE -

mpgmanamas 201
SR CSIRER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38. RRRIFEARK

COMPANY
2023 2022
== —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BRTT BT T
Non-current assets JERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries PTG B A E) 2 e 807,245 807,245
Non-current prepayments and deposits IEmBTE AR IES 473 473
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 1,173 2,934
808,891 810,652
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits  EAbEUERTR « T8 KB ML d 634 637
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BB A~ B BR X 960,297 062,522
Financial assets at fair value through RIERRIEAERE Y
profit or loss SREE 1,316 3,223
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 130 260
962,377 966,642
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables and accruals HE b e ER IR S FERT B A 51,981 25,884
Amount due to subsidiaries JERIB B A RIERR 88,229 88,372
Amount due to related companies FERTEE R AIER 63,836 50,478
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,246 1,824
Convertible bonds AR E S - 893,329
Promissory note FHER - 5,639
Other bonds EmES 1,259,500 279,500
1,464,792 1,345,026
Net current liabilities mEARSE (502,415) (378,384)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTEAR 306,476 432,268
Capital and reserves B A B G R
Share capital [N 73,568 73,568
Reserves (Note a) i (i Ea) 232,908 357,454
Total equity aEa 306,476 431,022
Non-current liabilities ERBIAE
Lease liabilities HEAE - 1,246
306,476 432,268

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

O S 5 3 Bt

BE—T-=—F=-A=1—HIFE

38. RRBIFBAMNK &)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: P
(@  Reserves (@) FE
Convertible
bonds -
Capital Share equity
Share  Contributed Other  redemption option  conversion Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(Note ) (Note i)
[} 1
&% BB  RH-Ru
RVAR  @ARE  RMBGE 0 WERE BiE  BRRE  ZHEE £}
(HizH) (izki)
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i At EEfr ABTn AETn AETn BT #ETn BT
At 1 April 2021 R-Z--¥NA-H 3,313,723 55,215 (7195,421) 14 294914 728,704 (2,794,946 802,208
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRERRGA SRS
for the year - - - - - - (444,734) (444,734)
Share option lapsed BAElRE - - - - (142,064) - 142,064 -
Share repurchased and cancelled EEERTHERD (15) - - - - - . (15)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 Apri 2022 RZFZZE=A=1-BR
“Z--EMA-H 3,313,708 55,215 (7195,421) 14 152,850 728,704 (3,097,616) 357,454
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRERRGAEEEE
forthe year - - - - - S (126549
Share option lapsed BRMERE - - - - 23670) - 2670 -
Convertile options lapsed BRiaiRE - - - - -804 728704 -
At 31 March 2023 RZZ-=%=p=1-A 3,313,708 55,215 (795,421) 14 129,180 - (2469788) 232,908
Notes: k=g
0] As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the contributed surplus of i) RIEZ=FRZF-_F=A=+—
approximately HK$55,215,000 represents the difference A BABEHLERS5,2150007 AT
between the fair value of net assets of subsidiaries acquired and WHEMBARFEEZ D AEEEAAR
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the MUB AT TR 2 EE 22 =5
acquisition and approximately HK$48,989,000 represents the T 4975 # 48,989,000 7.8 B & A8 & J& 1%
amount being transferred from share capital and share premium HEELERAIDIRMHFE S8 -
as distributable reserve.
Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the BREBRZE-NN—FRE(EE
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to i) ARBZHABEG AR TR
shareholders. e
(i) Other reserve represents the differences amongst the investment (ii) HibFEEREEREER 2 REK AN E
cost for acquisition of United Faith Group and elimination of the BEER_Z-N\F=A=+HBZRE
share capital of the United Faith on 26 March 2018. HiH 2 AR -
°
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. ARAI X BB ARIZFFIE

OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March RZEZ=FR=T_—F=HA=+—8 "

2023 and 2022 are as follows: RRAFEEMBRRZFBHT -

Place or country Issued and
of incorporation/ paid up share
establishment/  Class of shares capital/registered ~ Number Proportion of ownership interest and
Name of company operations held capital ~ of shares voting power held by the Company Principal activities
R/ B/ BRRMERS/
ACEL ERMBEER  HRROEN ithEs  RO#E ENSEEL ALt B ES ] IERK
2023 2022
- “E-CF
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indlrectly
ER [} B i
% % % %

Dingyi Jin Hui (Shenzhen) The PRC - Registered capital of N/A - 100 - 100 Investment advisory
Investment Consulting RMB50,000,000 and paid-up service and loan
Limited*! capital of RMB22,082,000 financing

SELE(NMRERN  9HE AfERARE  TER RELARBRER
BRAT 50,000,0007C R R HE

AE%22,082,000710

Golden Season Intemational ~ The BVI Ordinary US$1 1 - 100 - 100 Securities trading and
Limitec? trading of wine

SEERARAR AB4BREE BB %7 BFEEREREE

Ease Main Limitec? The BVI Ordinary US$1,000 1,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding

and securities
frading

RRERAR AR4RREE BB 1,000%7 REBRRESEE

Dingyi Financial Services Hong Kong - HKS1 1 - 100 - 100 Loan financing
Investment Limited®

SECERKRERRAR B BT EVRE

Dingyi Bao Yin (Shenzhen) ~ The PRC - Registered capital of N/A - 100 - 100 Financial leasing and
Financial Leasing Limited ! RMBB300,000,000 and loan financing

paid-up capital of
RMB85,700,000

SEER(VBERE  PE AfERARE @R BABERETHE

ERAF 800,000,000 R RRA
AE85,700,00070

Zhanjang Xintai Investment ~ The PRC - RMB50,000,000 N/A - 100 - 100 Properties
Company Limited ! development

EIERRARRAT il ARES0000000m  THEA YEE

The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

1 Company with limited liabilities established in the PRC.
2 Company with limited liabilities incorporated in British Virgin Islands.
8 Company with limited liabilities incorporated in Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities neither at
the end of both years nor at any time during both years.
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40. IR E (A
REEFEHOPEEREABEITOT :

40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

The face value of the financial guarantees issued by the Group is
analysed as below:

31 March

=B=+—H
2023 2022
== —E- 4
HK$°000 HK$’000
BRTIT BT IT

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage AR T AL EYEE IIBEE R
facilities granted to purchasers of RITVE AR (B7E)

the Group’s properties (Note) 11,394 -

Note: The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of the

Group’s property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations of
such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees terminate upon the
issuance of the real estate ownership certificate.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued interest and
penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of
grant of the mortgages. The directors consider that the likelihood of
default in payments by purchasers is minimal and in case of default in
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties can cover
the repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals together with
the accrued interest and penalty and therefore the fair value of these
financial guarantees is immaterial.

Mt AEBEERAEEYEEME TERLHRT

BE - UHZEFERWEREEREER - Z
SRERELAFERMAESRLL -

RBRRER  EXSERERZBESRES
AEEABAMRITEERBRRERBROIKS
AeBREFAS NI - MAREEEREK
HEMENEEXRELERE - AEEMER
HRFHIRE R ERG - EFRRERIER
IR ATBEMEAR DY - W AR - AR
MEZABRFERNEEHREERERS
ERENEEES  AUZEFBERZA
REBIFEK -

S0 AR IO B A PR )
SRR

205



206

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F _-=F=H=+—HI-FE

41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities.

M. BERBMELBENYK

TRAXAEERETHMELABNESF
BRASKIFRGEE - METBME

-

ERENAREMEBIARKER

TRENEH

ReREXRNBEABELTHRERENARE -

Accrued

interest

Amount (included

dueto in “trade

related  Convertiole QOther  Promissory Lease Bank and other
companies bonds bonds note liabilties borrowing  payables’) Total

TS

(GTATEZ

e Bt REH
ARER fBr  HEbEr ARRE  BERGE  ROEX  ENEN) %%
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Bgtr  B%tr BEfr BEfr BEfn BETm BETR #ETR
Asat 1 April 2021 RZF--EMmA-A 15,239 1,141,248 - 5,389 7,735 383,884 21409 1574904
Non-cash movements FREEY %2 - - - 37 9,286 905 11,480

Reclassification of accrued coupon BN BB ZEREM
interest o other payables ERER - (0,199 (16,299) - - - 25,494 -
Effective Interest expense incurred ~ CELERFIS R - 104,530 16,205 250 252 - - 121,327
Recognition upon modffication of  FERT TR e

convertiole bonds - (279,500) 279,500 - - - - -
Recogniton of lease RE®D - - - - 4515 - - 4515
Financing cash inflows BARENA 24,890 - - - - - - 24,890
Financing cash outflows HER S - (63,750) - - 0054 (393,170 (38609 (5045589
As at 31 March 2022 RZEZZ¥=A=1-H 41,091 893,329 279,500 5639 3,775 - 9199 1232533
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2_-F _-=F=H=+—HIFFZ

41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 4. MEGBMEXBENYR®)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)
Accrued
interest
Amount (included
due to in “trade
related  Convertible Other  Promissory Lease  and other
companies bonds bonds note liabilities  payables”) Total
chedl !
(ATES
EfRE Wik REM
LERR %  RtER  ARRE  HERG EAER) a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
#RTT  ERTR  EBRTT ERTR ERTR 0 ERTm ERTR
Asat 1 April 2022 R-E-—EmA-A 41,001 893,329 219,500 5,639 3,775 9199 1,282,533
Non-cash movements HieEy (2,979) - - - (350) - (3,329)
Reclassification of accrued coupon interest ~ EH AR ZE M
o other payables TR - - (19,565) - = 19,565 =
Effective Interest expense incurred BELERHSHY - 86,671 19,565 112 127 - 106,475
Reclassication of convertible bonds to ENDETARERZAMES
other bonds - (980,000) 980,000 - - - -
Recogntion of lease HERD - - - - 3,295 = 3,295
Financing cash inflows HERERA 58,835 - - - - - 58,835
Financing cash outflows BARAH - = = (5,751) (3,286) = (9,087)
As at 31 March 2023 R-E-=F=A=+-H 96,947 - 1,259,500 - 3,561 28,764 1,388,772
[ ]
ShE AR E B A A
TR EAER
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which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, and
the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for,
the convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$980,000,000 (the “New Convertible Bonds”) convertible into
the Company’s shares at the initial conversion price of HK$0.4
(the “New Conversion Price”) per conversion share (the “New
Conversion Share”).

Assuming the exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching
to the New Convertible Bonds at the New Conversion Price of
HK$0.4 per New Conversion Share, a total of 2,450,000,000 New
Conversion Shares will be issued, representing approximately
33.30% of the existing issued share capital of the Company and
approximately 24.98% of the issued share capital of the Company
as enlarged by the issue of the New Conversion Shares. The
New Conversion Shares will be allotted and issued under a
specific mandate (the “Specific Mandate”) to be approved by the
independent shareholders at a special general meeting.

The subscription price of the New Convertible Bonds in sum of
HK$980,000,000 shall be settled by the Subscriber by setting
it off against the redemption money payable by the Company
to the Subscriber in the equivalent sum of HK$980,000,000 for
redemption of the CB4 expired on 26 March 2023.

The New Convertible Bonds are subject to conditions precedents
including but not limited to independent shareholders’ approval at
general meeting.

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42, EH1REIR
On 23 June 2023, the Company entered into a subscription RZBZ=FRAZT=0 AARHRE
agreement with a subscriber (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to AN(READLRERZ T)glit VNN

ERUREETMRBABIGRGREZERER
BRES ([FTRRES]) - NeBBAE
#980,000,0007T + AJ IRV 8 (E Tk
Bk ([ mRkm 1) BEo4x([ gk
EBDEBARNARRG -

TEJ‘“%ﬁ—I?ﬁ‘ﬂxf’*‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘iﬁﬁ‘%ﬁz%ﬁiﬁmﬁt
PR B 0. AT BRI TE - AR

1% 3% 17 & $£2,450,000,000 A% 7 45 #2 1% 15
HERARRIRE B HITAAI33.30% M A&
BITHEBRE D ERRARREHITRALD
24.98% o FTEHAMR D A IRIEE L AR BR
R RI K & L/ 45 B 1A ([ 4 I 14 | ) B 2
ReEETT

A BRBREBES CRBEESHABEE
980,000,000 #% B3R A FE B H AR 7
MEODR-_ZE-_=F=A=-+BEHZ
AMREFAENREA 2 SEBE LB
980,000,000t KI5 R ETT °

AR RE S X (BRETRR) B RRRN
PRIRKE L2 FORIGIFRR -

208 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
RREEERERRAF

Unit 2708, 27/F, RS FBEE R
Convention Plaza - OfficeTower. &R EEi A A&

1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, 27 182703%

Hong Kong

Tel : +852 2845 5188 B 7E: +852 2845 5188

Fax: +852 2824 3188 €5 +852 2824 3188



	封面
	目錄
	財務概要
	企業資料
	署理主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	財務回顧
	董事及高級管理層簡介
	企業管治報告書
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告
	合併損益表
	合併損益及其他綜合收益表
	合併財務狀況表
	合併權益變動表
	合併現金流量表
	合併財務報表附註
	封底



